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The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. These securities may not be sold until the
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell
nor does it seek an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.
 

Subject to Completion. Dated October 8, 2004.
 

             Shares
 

Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
 

Common Stock
 

 

 
This is an initial public offering of shares of common stock of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.

 
Monolithic Power Systems is offering              of the shares to be sold in the offering. The selling stockholders identified in this prospectus

are offering an additional              shares. Monolithic Power Systems will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the shares being sold by
the selling stockholders.
 

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the common stock. It is currently estimated that the initial public offering price per
share will be between $      and $     . Application has been made for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “MPWR”.
 

See “ Risk Factors” on page 7 to read about certain factors you should consider before buying shares of the common stock.
 

 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities

or passed on the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
 

 

   

Per Share
  

Total

Initial public offering price   $               $          
Underwriting discount   $    $  
Proceeds, before expenses, to Monolithic Power Systems   $    $  
Proceeds, before expenses, to the Selling Stockholders   $    $  
 

To the extent that the underwriters sell more than              shares of common stock, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an
additional              shares from Monolithic Power Systems at the initial public offering price less the underwriting discount.
 

 
The underwriters expect to deliver the shares against payment in New York, New York on             , 2004.

 

Goldman, Sachs & Co.  Merrill Lynch & Co.
Deutsche Bank Securities  Piper Jaffray
 

 
Prospectus dated             , 2004.
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Description of Artwork
 
Along the top of the page, a large caption reads, “High Performance Analog IC Solutions for Broad-Based Markets.”
 
In the center of the page is a large “MPS” logo. Various finished microchips with MPS logos emanate from the logo in a staggered, radial pattern.
In an outer circle around the microchips are the names of various market segments: “Communication, Automotive, Computing, Flat Panel,
Wireless Networking, Audio, and Consumer.” Faint images of various products within each market segment surround each of the respective
market segment names.
 
At the bottom of the page a block of text reads, “We design, develop, and market proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal semiconductors
for inclusion by original equipment manufacturers and original design manufacturers in a variety of electronic products, such as notebook
computers, flat panel displays, cellular handsets, digital cameras, wireless local area network access points, home entertainment systems, and
personal digital assistants.”
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 PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights the information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. You should read the entire prospectus carefully, especially

the risks of investing in our common stock discussed under “Risk Factors.”
 

Monolithic Power Systems is a high performance analog and mixed-signal semiconductor company. We design, develop, and market
proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal semiconductors for large and high growth markets. Our semiconductors, or integrated circuits (ICs),
are used in a variety of electronic products, such as notebook computers, flat panel displays, cellular handsets, digital cameras, wireless local
area network (LAN) access points, home entertainment systems, and personal digital assistants. Analog and mixed-signal ICs are used to
interface with real world signals, such as pressure, light, or sound. We differentiate our ICs by offering solutions that are more highly-integrated,
smaller in size, more energy efficient, more accurate with respect to performance specifications, and, accordingly, more cost-effective than many
competing solutions. Our ability to offer these benefits to customers is enabled by our three core strengths: our deep system-level and
applications knowledge, our strong analog and mixed-signal design expertise, and our proprietary process technology for the design and
manufacture of our ICs.
 

We are focused on delivering products for large and high growth markets, currently targeting the computing, consumer electronics, and
wireless markets. In 2004, according to International Data Corporation (IDC), these markets, including the notebook computer, flat panel display,
cellular handset, and personal data assistant markets, are expected to represent unit sales of over 700 million in the aggregate. There are a
number of trends driving growth in these target markets, including a drive toward smaller devices that incorporate smaller and more highly
integrated ICs, a focus on enhanced audio and visual experiences, and continuing growth in wireless connectivity. While these trends have driven
growth in our target markets, they have also presented new challenges for suppliers of ICs into these markets. For example, in the cellular handset
and notebook computing areas, customers are looking for semiconductors that are both smaller and more highly-integrated and that are more
energy efficient. Similarly, in the flat panel television market, customers are looking for semiconductors that offer advanced sound and image
quality, while simultaneously enabling them to make their products more affordable.
 

We deliver products to our customers that are highly-integrated, small in size, energy efficient, accurate, and cost-effective, positioning us
well to address these industry trends. Our product families currently include:
 
 Ÿ Cold cathode fluorescent lamp (CCFL) backlight inverter ICs, used in lighting electronic displays, such as those found in notebook

computers and flat panels;
 
 Ÿ Direct current (DC) to DC converter ICs, used to convert and control voltages within a variety of electronic devices;
 
 Ÿ Light emitting diode (LED) driver ICs, used in lighting displays, such as those found in cellular handsets and personal digital assistants;

and
 
 Ÿ Audio amplifier ICs, used to amplify sound and particularly well-suited for increasingly smaller and/or portable electronic devices.
 

In 2002 and 2003, respectively, our CCFL backlight inverter product family accounted for 79.4% and 69.8% of our revenues, our DC to DC
converter product family accounted for 3.2% and 22.9% of
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our revenues, our LED driver product family accounted for 3.4% and 6.0% of our revenues, and our audio amplifier product family accounted for
14.0% and 1.3% of our revenues.
 

We sell our products primarily to third parties with whom we have distribution arrangements and through our direct sales and applications
support organization to original design manufacturers, who typically design and manufacture electronic products on behalf of original equipment
manufacturers, to electronic manufacturing service providers, who typically provide manufacturing services for original equipment manufacturers or
for other electronic product suppliers, and to original equipment manufacturers. Our significant direct customers are Asian Information Technology,
Uppertech, and Yosun, all three of which are distributors. For the six months ended June 30, 2004, these customers represented 22%, 19%, and
11% of our total revenues, respectively. Our semiconductors are ultimately contained in electronic products sold by original equipment
manufacturers such as Acer, Dell, Hewlett-Packard, and IBM in the computing industry, LG Electronics, Samsung, and Sharp in the consumer
electronics industry, and Apple, Dell, LG Electronics, and Motorola in the wireless industry.
 

Our competitive differentiation in the analog and mixed-signal semiconductor industry is founded on our three core strengths: our deep
system-level and applications knowledge, our strong analog and mixed-signal design expertise, and our proprietary process technology. Our deep
system-level and applications knowledge is important because it allows us to work closely with our customers to identify new product opportunities
and areas of potential integration, as well as to reduce our customers’ time to market. We have also assembled a strong team of analog and
mixed-signal design engineers that average over 15 years of design experience. Through our analog and mixed-signal design expertise, we have
developed a portfolio of intellectual property and know-how that we are able to apply across our products and markets. Finally, our proprietary
process technology for design and manufacturing is a source of competitive differentiation as it allows us to integrate power devices, analog
circuitry, and digital circuitry onto a single chip in a cost-effective manner.
 

Our proprietary process technology offers many benefits over conventional analog and mixed-signal process technologies. A key deficiency
of conventional analog and mixed-signal process technologies is that they generally cannot support integration of power devices into ICs at high
power levels without resulting in either unacceptably large semiconductors or significant levels of power loss. High levels of power loss result in
significant heat dissipation, which then must be managed to avoid harm to a system. To avoid these problems, many other analog and mixed-
signal semiconductor vendors design solutions comprised of multiple chips. Our process technology overcomes this limitation, allowing us to
deliver smaller, single-chip solutions with strong degrees of both efficiency and accuracy. In addition, we believe that having one process
technology that is broadly applicable across a wide range of analog and mixed-signal applications simplifies our design process and results in
higher design productivity. Through our process technology, we are able to simplify our manufacturing process, improve our yields, and lower our
manufacturing costs.
 

We utilize a fabless business model, working with third parties to manufacture our ICs, rather than manufacturing our ICs ourselves. In
contrast to many fabless semiconductor companies that utilize standard process technologies, we have developed our own proprietary process
technology and collaborate with our foundry manufacturing partners to install our technology on their equipment in their facilities for use solely on
our behalf to manufacture our products.
 

Our goal is to be a leading provider of proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal ICs. To accomplish our goal, we intend to:
 
 Ÿ Focus on large and high growth markets;
 
 Ÿ Leverage our core strengths to expand our product portfolio;
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 Ÿ Continue to invest in research and development to extend our technology leadership position; and
 
 Ÿ Expand our sales and applications support organization globally.
 

As of June 30, 2004, we had 127 employees located in the United States, Taiwan, China, and Korea. Of these employees, 42% were
dedicated to research and development.
 

While we believe we compete favorably in the markets we serve, we face a variety of challenges. We are engaged in multiple legal
proceedings with O2 Micro International Limited in the U.S. and Taiwan and Linear Technology Corporation in the U.S., generally over intellectual
property matters such as patent infringement and misappropriation of trade secret claims. We strongly advise you to read “Business—Legal
Proceedings” for a more detailed description. In addition, we have a history of losses, a limited operating history, and a limited number of
customers as compared to many of our competitors that have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, more established customer
relationships, more diversified product offerings, and greater resources than we do. While we have recently experienced significant growth, we
must continue to develop our operational, accounting, and management systems to manage any future growth, and we must continue to expand
our product offerings and broaden our customer base to further grow our business.
 

We were incorporated in California in 1997 and will reincorporate in Delaware prior to the consummation of this offering. Our executive
offices are located at 983 University Avenue, Building A, Los Gatos, CA 95032. Our telephone number is (408) 357-6600. Our e-mail address is
investors@monolithicpower.com, and our web site is www.monolithicpower.com. Information contained on our web site is not a part of this
prospectus.
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The Offering

 
Common stock we are offering                        shares

Common stock the selling stockholders are offering                        shares

Common stock to be outstanding after this offering                        shares

Proposed Nasdaq National Market symbol   MPWR

Use of proceeds

  

For general corporate purposes, including working capital, marketing,
research and development and capital expenditures. For more
information, see “Use of Proceeds.”

 
Except as otherwise indicated, whenever we present the number of shares of common stock outstanding, we have:

 
 Ÿ based this information on the shares outstanding as of June 30, 2004, excluding:
 
 Ÿ 7,023,300 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options at a weighted average exercise price of $3.76 per

share;
 
 Ÿ 3,283,733 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our existing stock option plan and our stock option plan

adopted in connection with this offering;
 
 Ÿ 200,000 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under our employee stock purchase plan adopted in connection with this

offering; and
 
 Ÿ 213,718 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding warrants at a weighted average exercise price of $1.68 per

share;
 
 Ÿ given effect to the automatic conversion of our outstanding preferred stock into common stock upon completion of this offering;
 
 Ÿ assumed no exercise of options after June 30, 2004; and
 
 Ÿ assumed no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option.
 

Monolithic Power Systems and MPS are among the trademarks of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. This prospectus also contains brand
names, trademarks, and service marks of companies other than Monolithic Power Systems, and these brand names, trademarks, and service
marks are the property of their respective holders.
 

This prospectus contains market data and industry forecasts that were obtained from industry publications. These publications generally
state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable. While we believe that these market data and
industry forecasts are reliable, we have not independently verified such information.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

 
Our summary consolidated financial data is presented in the following table to aid you in your analysis of a potential investment in our

common stock. You should read this data together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2004 and our
consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The summary consolidated statement of operations
data for each of the three years ended December 31, 2003 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which are
included elsewhere in this prospectus, and the summary consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 1999 and
December 31, 2000 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not included elsewhere in this prospectus. The summary
consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2004 and the summary consolidated statement of operations data for the six months ended June
30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 have been derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere in this
prospectus. Pro forma net loss per common share reflects the conversion of all outstanding preferred stock into common stock from the beginning
of the period presented or at the date of original issuance, if later. The as adjusted balance sheet data assumes the conversion of all outstanding
convertible preferred stock into common stock and reflects our receipt of the estimated net proceeds from our sale of              shares of common
stock in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions and the estimated expenses of this offering.
 

  

Year ended December 31,
  

Six months
ended June 30,

 

  

1999
  

2000
  

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

  (in thousands, except per share data)  
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:                             
Revenues  $ 572  $ 5,252  $ 8,130  $ 12,206  $ 24,204  $ 7,932  $ 18,059 
Cost of revenues   520   3,853   5,975   6,831   10,930   4,196   8,002 

        
Gross profit   52   1,399   2,155   5,375   13,274   3,736   10,057 
Operating expenses:                             

Research and development (excluding stock-based compensation)   1,175   1,435   2,610   4,459   5,493   2,760   3,328 
Sales and marketing (excluding stock-based compensation)   37   387   976   1,443   2,181   910   1,956 
General and administrative (excluding stock-based compensation)   101   715   832   997   1,733   767   1,229 
Patent litigation   —   —   958   1,603   4,332   2,469   1,475 
Stock-based compensation   54   494   180   167   2,741   504   5,751 

        
Total operating expenses   1,367   3,031   5,556   8,669   16,480   7,410   13,739 

        
Loss from operations   (1,315)   (1,632)   (3,401)   (3,294)   (3,206)   (3,674)   (3,682)
Total other income (expense), net   40   29   (172)   57   170   119   58 

        
Net loss   (1,275)   (1,603)   (3,573)   (3,237)   (3,036)   (3,555)   (3,624)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock   —   —   —   447   1,340   670   670 

        
Net loss attributable to common stockholders  $ (1,275)  $ (1,603)  $ (3,573)  $ (3,684)  $ (4,376)  $ (4,225)  $ (4,294)

        
Basic and diluted net loss per common share  $ (0.27)  $ (0.33)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.71)  $ (0.70)  $ (0.65)

        
Shares used in basic and diluted net loss per common share   4,689   4,846   5,682   5,863   6,143   6,034   6,603 

        
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share                  $ (0.20)  $ (0.20)  $ (0.19)

                    
Shares used in pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share                   21,599   21,490   22,059 
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June 30, 2004

   

Actual
  

As Adjusted

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:         
Cash and cash equivalents   $12,094  $                
Short-term investments    500    
Restricted assets    6,020    
Working capital    13,157    
Total assets    28,059    
Redeemable convertible preferred stock    19,083    
Convertible preferred stock    11,163    
Total stockholders’ equity    3,499    
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 RISK FACTORS
 

An investment in our common stock is very risky. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other
information in this prospectus, before making a decision to invest in our common stock. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business,
financial condition, operating results, and growth prospects could be adversely affected. In such an event, the trading price of our common stock
could decline and you could lose all or part of your investment in our common stock.
 

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
 
We have a history of losses, and we may not achieve or sustain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.
 

We have incurred losses on an annual basis since our inception. As of June 30, 2004, we had an accumulated deficit of $19.3 million. We
expect to incur significant operating expenses over the next several years in connection with the continued development and expansion of our
business. Our operating expenses include general and administrative expenses, selling and marketing expenses, litigation expenses, stock based
compensation expenses, and research and development expenses relating to products that will not be introduced and will not generate revenues
until later periods, if at all. We may not achieve or sustain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis in the future.
 
If we are unsuccessful in our current lawsuits with O2 Micro International Limited in either the U.S. or in Taiwan, we could be prevented
from selling many of our products and/or be required to pay substantial damages or fines. Any unfavorable outcome would cause our
revenues to decline significantly and severely harm our business and operating results.
 

We are engaged in multiple legal proceedings with O2 Micro, Inc. and its parent corporation, O2 Micro International Limited. We refer to O2
Micro and O2 Micro International together as O2. These proceedings involve various claims and counterclaims in the United States and Taiwan by
O2 and us alleging, among other things, patent infringements and misappropriation of trade secrets, all of which relate to our CCFL backlight
inverter product family. O2 has obtained an injunction in Taiwan prohibiting us from manufacturing, designing, displaying, importing, or selling two
of our most significant products in Taiwan, either directly or through a third party acting at our request. While we believe, based on the advice of
our Taiwan counsel Chen and Lin, that our course of business is in compliance with this injunction, O2 has attempted on several occasions to
convince the court otherwise. Although the injunction specifically names only our MP 1011A and MP 1015 CCFL products, the underlying patent
dispute in both the United States and the Taiwanese litigation involves issues that could affect all of our CCFL backlight inverter products used in
the United States and Taiwan. In 2003, revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter product family were $16.9 million or 69.8% of total revenue, of
which we believe products used in or shipped to Taiwan represented a significant portion. O2 has also taken legal action against some of our
customers and users of our products in the United States and Taiwan. We generally agree to indemnify our customers against patent infringement
claims, and we are currently defending one of our customers (at our expense) against a claim by O2. All of these legal proceedings are complex.
We describe the proceedings and related events in detail under “Business—Legal Proceedings,” and we strongly advise investors to read that
section carefully.

The legal proceedings in which we are involved expose us to the following risks:
 
 1. We could be ordered to pay monetary fines and/or damages if we are found to be in violation of the Taiwan injunction or liable to O2

on its claims against us;
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 2. We could be prevented from selling many of our products, either into Taiwan, directly or through the distribution arrangements we
currently employ, or in the U.S.;

 
 3. We could be liable to customers who have purchased our products and whom we have indemnified against liability for damages

arising from claims by O2 or others that our products infringe patents of O2 or others;
 
 4. Our management team could be required to devote so much time, effort and energy to the legal proceedings that the rest of our

business suffers;
 
 5. Our customers and end-users of our products could decide not to use our products to ensure that they will not be brought into the

litigation and/or sued directly by O2, or, if they are sued directly by O2, our products could be seized from them; and
 
 6. Interim developments in the various legal proceedings may contribute to increased volatility in our stock price as the market

assesses the impact of those developments on the likelihood that we will or will not ultimately prevail in the litigation with O2.
 

The outcomes described above could result in us having to pay fines or substantial money damages to O2 and/or to our customers. We
could also be prevented by an injunction from selling any or all of our CCFL backlight inverter products into the U.S. and/or Taiwan, either directly
or through the distribution arrangements we currently employ. A significant portion of our expected future revenues over the next several years is
expected to come from users of our CCFL backlight inverter product family in Taiwan. Even if we are ultimately successful, we could lose
customers due to the uncertainty surrounding the litigation. Any of these results would have a material and adverse effect on our results of
operations for one or more quarters, and any injunction that prohibits us from selling significant products for any length of time would have an
immediate and drastic negative effect on our business and results of operations.
 

Until the litigation is resolved, we will continue to incur substantial legal expenses, which vary directly with the level of activity in the legal
proceedings. This level of activity is not entirely within our control, as we often need to respond to legal action by O2. Consequently, we may find
it difficult to predict the legal expenses for any given quarter, which will impair our ability to forecast our results of operations for that quarter.
 

We are aware that on May 28, 2002, O2 was issued U.S. Patent No. 6,396,722 (“the ’722 patent”), a continuation of O2’s U.S. Patent No.
6,259,615 B1. We are also aware that O2 has filed for related patents in other Asian counties. We are not aware that any foreign patents have
been issued in response to these patent applications and do not know when, if ever, any such patent will issue. Nevertheless, we expect O2 may
pursue claims against us in the U.S. based on the ’722 patent and on any foreign patents that O2 may obtain in the future. Depending on the
scope and severity of those claims, any injunctions that may be issued against us, or damages that may be awarded against us, could have a
material and adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
 

This risk factor only summarizes the various legal proceedings and related events. We strongly advise you to read “Business—Legal
Proceedings” for a more detailed description.
 
Due to our limited operating history, we may have difficulty both in accurately predicting our future revenues and appropriately
budgeting for our expenses.
 

We were incorporated in 1997 and did not begin generating meaningful revenues until 2000. As a result, we have only a short history from
which to predict future revenues. This limited operating experience combined with the rapidly evolving nature of the markets into which we sell our
products, as well as other factors which are beyond our control, reduces our ability to accurately forecast
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quarterly or annual revenues. We are currently expanding our staffing and increasing our expense levels in anticipation of future revenue growth. If
our revenues do not increase as anticipated, significant losses could result due to our higher expense levels.
 
We expect our operating results to fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year, which may make it difficult to predict our future
performance and could cause our stock price to decline.
 

Our revenues, expenses, and results of operations are difficult to predict, have varied significantly in the past and will continue to fluctuate
significantly from quarter to quarter and year to year in the future due to a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. For example,
our revenues for the first quarter of each year tend to be significantly less than the revenues for the last quarter of the previous year. We expect
fluctuations to continue for a number of reasons, including:
 
 Ÿ the timing of developments in our litigation matters with O2, Linear Technology Corporation (Linear), and Microsemi Corporation

(Microsemi) and the related expenses;
 
 Ÿ general economic conditions in the countries where our products are used;
 
 Ÿ seasonality and variability in the computer, consumer electronics, and wireless markets;
 
 Ÿ the timing of new product introductions by us and our competitors;
 
 Ÿ the scheduling, rescheduling, or cancellation of orders by our customers;
 
 Ÿ the cyclical nature of demand for our customers’ products;
 
 Ÿ inventory level and product obsolescence;
 
 Ÿ our ability to develop new process technologies and achieve volume production;
 
 Ÿ changes in manufacturing yields;
 
 Ÿ movements in exchange rates, interest rates, or tax rates; and
 
 Ÿ the availability of adequate supply commitments from our outside suppliers.
 

Due to the factors noted above and other risks discussed in this section, many of which are beyond our control, you should not rely on
quarter-to-quarter or year-over-year comparisons to predict our future financial performance. Unfavorable changes in any of the above factors may
seriously harm our business and cause our stock price to decline.
 
The highly cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, which has produced significant and sometimes prolonged downturns, could
materially adversely affect our operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.
 

The semiconductor industry has historically been highly cyclical and, at various times, has experienced significant downturns and wide
fluctuations in supply and demand. These conditions have caused significant variances in product demand, production capacity and rapid erosion
of average selling prices. Although the semiconductor industry has recently experienced strong demand, the industry may experience severe or
prolonged downturns in the future, which could result in pricing pressure on our products as well as lower demand for our products. Because a
significant portion of our expenses is fixed in the short term or is incurred in advance of anticipated sales, we may not be able to decrease our
expenses in a timely manner to offset any shortfall of sales. This could materially adversely affect our operating results, financial condition, and
cash flows.
 
If demand for our products declines in the major end markets that we serve, our revenues will decrease.
 

Applications of our products in the computer, consumer electronics and wireless markets have and we believe will continue to account for a
majority of our revenues. In addition, within these markets
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we are dependent upon a small number of products. We are particularly dependent on the computing market, including notebook and flat panel
monitor applications, and we expect that a significant level of our revenues and operating results will continue to be dependent upon notebook and
flat panel monitor applications for at least the near term. If demand for our products declines in the major end markets that we serve, our revenues
will decrease.
 
We receive a significant portion of our revenues from a small number of customers and the loss of any one of these customers or failure
to collect a receivable from them could adversely affect our operations and financial position.
 

We market our products through distribution arrangements and through our direct sales and applications support organization to customers
that include original equipment manufacturers, original design manufacturers, and electronic manufacturing service providers. Receivables from our
customers are not secured by any type of collateral and are subject to the risk of being uncollectible. Significant deterioration in the liquidity or
financial position of any of our major customers or any group of our customers could have a material adverse impact on the collectibility of our
accounts receivable and our future operating results.
 

In addition, in 2003, CTP, Yosun, and Ambit/Unique Logistics, third parties with whom we currently have or formerly had distribution
arrangements, accounted for 30%, 16%, and 14% of our revenues, respectively. We terminated our distribution arrangement with CTP in March
2004, and entered into expanded distribution agreements with Asian Information Technology, or AIT, and Uppertech. Any future termination or loss
of a distribution arrangement could reduce customers’ willingness or ability to purchase our products and could thereby reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our future operating results.
 

We primarily conduct our sales on a purchase order basis, rather than pursuant to long-term supply contracts. The loss of any significant
customer, any material reduction in orders by any of our significant customers or by their OEM customers, the cancellation of a significant
customer order, or the cancellation or delay of a customer’s or OEM’s significant program or product could reduce our revenues and adversely
affect our operations and financial position. For example, revenues from our audio amplifier product family declined from 14.0% of total revenues in
2002 to 1.3% of total revenues in 2003. The decline was due to the loss of one major customer who placed a large non-recurring order in the third
and fourth quarters of 2002.
 

Moreover, we believe a high percentage of our products are eventually sold to a small number of end customer original equipment
manufacturers, or OEMs, such as Dell, Hewlett-Packard, IBM, and Sony. Although we communicate with OEMs in an attempt to achieve “design
wins,” which are decisions by OEMs and/or original design manufacturers to use our products, we do not have agreements with any of these end
customers, formal or informal. Therefore, there can be no assurance that they will continue to choose to incorporate our ICs into their products. We
cannot be certain that we will continue to achieve design wins from large OEMs, that our direct customers will continue to be successful in selling
to OEMs, or that the OEMs will be successful in selling products which incorporate our ICs.
 
We have recently had to improve our internal accounting systems and controls, and if we fail to make continued improvements, our
business may suffer.
 

Our reporting obligations as a public company will place a significant strain on our management, operational and financial resources and
systems for the foreseeable future. As we have been an early stage private company, we have had limited accounting personnel and other
resources with which to address our internal controls and procedures. As a result, when our auditors audited our financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2003, they identified in their report to our audit
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committee three significant deficiencies in our internal accounting controls. Two of these significant deficiencies rose to the level of “material
weaknesses,” while the third was considered a “reportable condition.” The two material weaknesses were that (i) we lacked certain formalized
accounting policies and procedures, including written procedures for the monthly, quarterly, and annual “closing” of our financial books and records
and (ii) we lacked sufficient staff in our accounting and information technology departments. The reportable condition was that our accounting
personnel lacked adequate training on our enterprise resource planning system. The report also contained other observations and
recommendations, none of which rose to the level of a “reportable condition.” Following our receipt of this report, we consulted with our audit
committee and undertook remedial steps to address these deficiencies, including hiring additional staff, training our new and existing staff, and
establishing monthly, quarterly, and annual closing procedures.
 

We believe our actions remedied the material weaknesses and reportable conditions in our internal controls. At the direction of our audit
committee, we engaged our external auditors to audit our financial statements for the quarter ended March 31, 2004. In their report to the audit
committee following this audit, the material weaknesses and reportable condition previously identified were no longer reported; however, other
matters that did not constitute material weaknesses or reportable conditions were identified. These other matters included control deficiency
recommendations relating to:
 
 Ÿ hiring a financial analyst to assist with management reporting and analysis;
 
 Ÿ enhancing certain cost accounting procedures;
 
 Ÿ modifying or documenting policies relating to certain other reserve and accrual procedures and closing procedures; and
 
 Ÿ documenting information security policies.
 

In response to these recommendations, we are in process of hiring a financial analyst, we have implemented the other recommendations
relating to cost accounting and other reserve, accrual and closing procedures in connection with our June 30, 2004 quarterly close, and we have
also completed documentation of our information security policies. These other control deficiencies did not have a material impact on our financial
statements and, as they all have now been or are in the process of being addressed, are not expected to have any future material impact on our
financial statements. If, however, we fail to continue to adequately staff our accounting and finance function and maintain internal controls
adequate to meet the demands that will be placed upon us as a public company, including the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
our business may suffer.
 
The loss of any of our key personnel or the failure to attract or retain specialized technical and management personnel could impair our
ability to grow our business.
 

Our future success depends upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified technical and managerial personnel. We are particularly
dependent upon the continued services of Michael Hsing, our President and Chief Executive Officer, who founded our company and developed our
proprietary process technology. Also, personnel with highly skilled analog and mixed-signal design engineering expertise are scarce and
competition for personnel with these skills is intense. There can be no assurance that we will be able to retain existing key employees or that we
will be successful in attracting, integrating or retaining other highly qualified personnel in the future. If we are unable to retain the services of
existing key employees or are unsuccessful in attracting new highly qualified employees, our business could be harmed.
 

In addition, Tim Christoffersen and Dave Satterfield, our Chief Financial Officer and Controller, have served in those positions since only
June 2004 and February 2004, respectively. Accordingly, our finance team has worked together for a relatively short period. Any failure of our
finance team to communicate or work together effectively could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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We currently depend on one third-party supplier to provide us with wafers for our products. If our wafer supplier fails to provide us
sufficient wafers at acceptable yields and at anticipated costs, our revenues and gross margins may decline.
 

We have a supply arrangement for the production of wafers with Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation of Shanghai, or
ASMC. Although certain aspects of our relationship with ASMC are contractual, many important aspects of this relationship depend on their
continued cooperation. We began this relationship with ASMC in 2001 and commenced volume production at ASMC’s facilities in the first half of
2003. We cannot assure you that we will continue to work successfully with ASMC in the future, that they will continue to provide us with sufficient
capacity at their foundries to meet our needs, or that they will not seek an early termination of their wafer supply agreement with us. In addition,
the fabrication of ICs is a highly complex and precise process. Problems in the fabrication process can cause a substantial percentage of wafers
to be rejected or numerous ICs on each wafer to be non-functional, thereby reducing yields. The failure of ASMC to supply us wafers at acceptable
yields could prevent us from fulfilling our customers’ orders for our products and would likely cause a decline in our revenues.
 

Although we provide ASMC with rolling forecasts of our production requirements, their ability to provide wafers to us is limited by the
available capacity of the facilities in which they manufacture wafers for us. An increased need for capacity to meet internal demands or demands
of other customers could cause ASMC to reduce capacity available to us. ASMC may also require us to pay amounts in excess of contracted or
anticipated amounts for wafer deliveries or require us to make other concessions in order to acquire the wafer supply necessary to meet our
customers’ requirements. If ASMC extends lead times, limits supplies, or increases prices due to capacity constraints or other factors, our
revenues and gross margins may decline.
 

Further, as is common in the semiconductor industry, our customers may reschedule or cancel orders on relatively short notice. We are
required under our agreement with ASMC to order wafers at least three months in advance. If we cancel these orders after ASMC’s
commencement of manufacturing, which generally occurs six to eight weeks before scheduled delivery of the wafers, we must pay cancellation
fees to ASMC. If our customers cancel orders after we have ordered the corresponding wafers from ASMC, we may be forced to incur cancellation
fees or to purchase wafers that we may not be able to resell, which would adversely affect our operating results, financial condition, and cash
flows.
 
We might not be able to deliver our products on a timely basis if our relationships with our assembly and test subcontractors are
disrupted or terminated.
 

All of our products are assembled by third-party subcontractors and a small percentage of our testing is performed by third-party
subcontractors. We do not have any ongoing agreements with these subcontractors. As a result, we may not have direct control over product
delivery schedules or product quality. Also, due to the amount of time typically required to qualify assembly and test subcontractors, we could
experience delays in the shipment of our products if we were forced to find alternate third parties to assemble or test our products. Any future
product delivery delays or disruptions in our relationships with our subcontractors could have a material adverse effect on our operating results,
financial condition, and cash flows.
 
Failure to protect our proprietary technologies or maintain the right to certain technologies may negatively affect our ability to compete.
In the future, third parties could assert that our products infringe their intellectual property rights, which could result in restrictions or
prohibitions on the sale of our products and cause us to pay license fees and damages.
 

We rely heavily on our proprietary technologies. Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and
maintain protection of certain proprietary technologies
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used in our products. We pursue patents for some of our new products and unique technologies, and we also rely on a combination of
nondisclosure agreements and other contractual provisions, as well as our employees’ commitment to confidentiality and loyalty, to protect our
technology, know-how, and processes. Despite the precautions we take, it may be possible for unauthorized third parties to copy aspects of our
current or future technology or products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. We intend to continue protecting our
proprietary technology, including through patents. There can be no assurance that the steps we take will be adequate to protect our proprietary
rights, that our patent applications will lead to issued patents, that others will not develop or patent similar or superior products or technologies, or
that our patents will not be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented by others. Furthermore, the laws of the countries in which our products are or
may be developed, manufactured, or sold may not protect our products and intellectual property rights to the same extent as laws in the United
States. Our failure to adequately protect our proprietary technologies could harm our business.
 

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent claims of infringement and litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property
rights, such as our litigation matters with O2, Linear, and Microsemi. Patent infringement is an ongoing risk, in part because other companies in
our industry could have patent rights that may not be identifiable when we initiate development efforts. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our
intellectual property rights, and we may have to defend ourselves against infringement claims. Any such litigation could be very costly and may
divert our management’s resources. Further, we have agreed to indemnify our customers in some circumstances against liability from infringement
by our products. In the event any third party were to make an infringement claim against us or our customers, we could be enjoined from selling
selected products or could be required to indemnify our customers or pay royalties or other damages to third parties. If we were unable to obtain
necessary licenses or other rights on acceptable terms, we would either have to change our products so that they did not infringe or stop making
the infringing products, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.
 
We derive a substantial majority of our revenues from direct or indirect sales to foreign customers and have significant foreign
operations, which may expose us to political, regulatory, economic, foreign exchange, and operational risks.
 

We derive a substantial majority of our revenues from direct or indirect sales to foreign customers, including 98.6% from sales into Asia for
2003, a majority of which represents revenues from parties with whom we have distribution arrangements for resale to users of our products in
Taiwan. As a result, we are subject to increased risks due to this concentration of business and operations. There are risks inherent in doing
business internationally, including:
 
 Ÿ changes in, or impositions of, legislative or regulatory requirements, including tax laws in the United States and in the countries in which

we manufacture or sell our products;
 
 Ÿ trade restrictions;
 
 Ÿ transportation delays;
 
 Ÿ work stoppages;
 
 Ÿ economic and political instability;
 
 Ÿ changes in import/export regulations, tariffs, and freight rates;
 
 Ÿ longer accounts receivable collection cycles and difficulties in collecting accounts receivables;
 
 Ÿ difficulties in collecting receivables and enforcing contracts generally;
 
 Ÿ currency exchange rate fluctuations; and
 
 Ÿ less effective protection of intellectual property.
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Our manufacturing partners are subject to extensive government regulation, which could increase our costs or limit our ability to sell
products and conduct activities in China.
 

Most of our manufacturing partners, including ASMC, our current foundry, are located in China. In addition, we are currently in the process
of establishing a facility in China, initially for the testing of our ICs. The Chinese government has broad discretion and authority to regulate the
technology industry in China. China’s government has implemented policies from time to time to regulate economic expansion in China. It also
exercises significant control over China’s economic growth through the allocation of resources, controlling payment of foreign currency-
denominated obligations, setting monetary policy and providing preferential treatment to particular industries or companies. New regulations or the
readjustment of previously implemented regulations could require us and our manufacturing partners to change our business plans, increase our
costs, or limit our ability to sell products and conduct activities in China, which could adversely affect our business and operating results.
 

In addition, the Chinese government and provincial and local governments have provided, and continue to provide, various incentives to
encourage the development of the semiconductor industry in China. Such incentives include tax rebates, reduced tax rates, favorable lending
policies, and other measures, some or all of which may be available to our manufacturing partners and to us with respect to the facility we propose
to establish in China. Any of these incentives could be reduced or eliminated by governmental authorities at any time. Any such reduction or
elimination of incentives currently provided to our manufacturing partners could adversely affect our business and operating results.
 
We may be unsuccessful in developing and selling new products or in penetrating new markets required to maintain or expand our
business.
 

We operate in a dynamic environment characterized by rapidly changing technologies and industry standards and technological
obsolescence. Our competitiveness and future success depend on our ability to design, develop, manufacture, assemble, test, market, and
support new products and enhancements on a timely and cost-effective basis. A fundamental shift in technologies in any of our product markets
could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position within these markets. Our failure to develop new technologies or to react to
changes in existing technologies could materially delay our development of new products, which could result in product obsolescence, decreased
revenues, and/or a loss of market share to competitors.
 

The success of a new product depends on accurate forecasts of long-term market demand and future technological developments, as well
as on a variety of specific implementation factors, including:
 
 Ÿ timely and efficient completion of process design and device structure improvements;
 
 Ÿ timely and efficient implementation of manufacturing, assembly, and test processes;
 
 Ÿ product performance;
 
 Ÿ the quality and reliability of the product; and
 
 Ÿ effective marketing, sales and service.
 

To the extent that we fail to introduce new products or penetrate new markets, our revenues and financial condition could be materially
adversely affected.
 
Because of the lengthy sales cycles for our products and the fixed nature of a significant portion of our expenses, we may incur
substantial expenses before we earn associated revenues and may not ultimately achieve our forecasted sales for our products.
 

The introduction of new products presents significant business challenges because product development plans and expenditures must be
made up to two years or more in advance of any sales. It
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takes us up to 12 months or more to design and manufacture a new product prototype. Only after we have a prototype do we introduce the product
to the market and begin selling efforts in an attempt to achieve design wins. This sales process, which averages 6 to 12 months, requires us to
expend significant sales and marketing resources without any assurance of success. Volume production of products that use our ICs, if any, may
not be achieved for an additional 3 to 6 months after an initial sale. Sales cycles for our products are lengthy for a number of reasons:
 
 Ÿ our customers usually complete an in-depth technical evaluation of our products before they place a purchase order;
 
 Ÿ the commercial adoption of our products by original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and original device manufacturers is typically

limited during the initial release of their product to evaluate product performance and consumer demand;
 
 Ÿ our products must be designed into a customer’s product or system; and
 
 Ÿ the development and commercial introduction of our customers’ products incorporating new technologies frequently are delayed.
 

As a result of our lengthy sales cycles, we may incur substantial expenses before we earn associated revenues because a significant
portion of our operating expenses is relatively fixed and based on expected revenues. The lengthy sales cycles of our products also make
forecasting the volume and timing of orders difficult. In addition, the delays inherent in lengthy sales cycles raise additional risks that customers
may cancel or change their orders. Our sales are made by purchase orders. Because industry practice allows customers to reschedule or cancel
orders on relatively short notice, backlog is not always a good indicator of our future sales. If customer cancellations or product changes occur, we
could lose anticipated sales and not have sufficient time to reduce our inventory and operating expenses.
 
Our products must meet exacting specifications, and undetected defects and failures may occur, which may cause customers to return
or stop buying our products and may expose us to product liability risk.
 

Our customers generally establish demanding specifications for quality, performance, and reliability that our products must meet. Integrated
circuits as complex as ours often encounter development delays and may contain undetected defects or failures when first introduced or after
commencement of commercial shipments, which might require product replacement or recall. We have from time to time in the past experienced
product quality, performance or reliability problems. If defects and failures occur in our products, we could experience lost revenues, increased
costs, including warranty expense and costs associated with customer support, delays in or cancellations or rescheduling of orders or shipments,
and product returns or discounts, any of which would harm our operating results.
 

In addition, product liability claims may be asserted with respect to our technology or products. Although we currently have insurance, there
can be no assurance that we have obtained a sufficient amount of insurance coverage, that asserted claims will be within the scope of coverage of
the insurance, or that we will have sufficient resources to satisfy any asserted claims.
 
We compete against many companies with substantially greater financing and other resources, and our market share may be reduced if
we are unable to respond to our competitors effectively.
 

The analog and mixed-signal semiconductor industry is highly competitive, and we expect competitive pressures to continue. Our ability to
compete effectively and to expand our business will
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depend on our ability to continue to recruit applications and design talent, our ability to introduce new products, and our ability to maintain the rate
at which we introduce these new products. We compete with several domestic and international semiconductor companies, many of which have
substantially greater financial and other resources with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing, marketing, and distribution of their products.
We are in direct and active competition, with respect to one or more of our product lines, with at least 10 manufacturers of such products, of
varying size and financial strength. The number of our competitors has grown due to expansion of the market segments in which we participate.
We consider our primary competitors to include Intersil Corporation, Linear Technology Corporation, Maxim Integrated Products, Micrel
Incorporated, Microsemi Corporation, National Semiconductor Corporation, O2, Semtech Corporation, STMicroelectronics, and Texas Instruments.
We expect continued competition from existing competitors as well as competition from new entrants in the semiconductor market. Our ability to
compete successfully in the rapidly evolving area of integrated circuit technology depends on several factors, including:
 
 Ÿ our success in designing and manufacturing new products that implement new technologies;
 
 Ÿ our ability to recruit applications and design talent;
 
 Ÿ our protection of our processes, trade secrets, and know-how;
 
 Ÿ our ability to maintain high product quality, reliability, and customer support;
 
 Ÿ the pricing policies of our competitors;
 
 Ÿ the performance of competitors’ products;
 
 Ÿ our ability to deliver in large volume on a timely basis; and
 
 Ÿ our manufacturing, distribution, and marketing capability.
 

We cannot assure you that our products will continue to compete favorably or that we will be successful in the face of increasing
competition from new products and enhancements introduced by existing competitors or new companies entering this market.
 
Our current backlog may not be indicative of future sales.
 

Due to the nature of our business, in which order lead times may vary and customers are generally allowed to reschedule or cancel orders
on short notice, we believe that backlog is not necessarily a good indicator of future sales. Our quarterly revenues also depend on orders booked
and shipped in that quarter. Because lead times for the manufacturing of our products generally take 6 to 8 weeks, we often must build in advance
of orders. This subjects us to certain risks, most notably the possibility that expected sales will not materialize, leading to excess inventory, which
we may be unable to sell to other customers. Therefore, our backlog may not be a reliable indicator of future sales.
 
Major earthquakes or other natural disasters and resulting systems outages may cause us significant losses.
 

Our corporate headquarters, the production facilities of our third-party wafer supplier, a portion of our assembly and research and
development activities, and certain other critical business operations are located in or near seismically active regions and are subject to periodic
earthquakes. We do not maintain earthquake insurance and could be materially and adversely affected in the event of a major earthquake. Much of
our revenues, as well as our manufacturers and assemblers, are concentrated in Southeast Asia. Such concentration increases the risk that other
natural disasters, labor strikes, terrorism, war, political unrest, epidemics, and/or health advisories like Sudden Acute Respiratory Syndrome or bird
flu could disrupt our operations. In addition, we rely heavily on our internal information and communications systems and on systems or support
services from third parties to
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manage our operations efficiently and effectively. Any of these are subject to failure due to a natural disaster or other disruption. System-wide or
local failures that affect our information processing could have material adverse effects on our business, financial condition, operating results, and
cash flows.
 
We intend to expand our operations, which may strain our resources and increase our operating expenses.
 

We plan to expand our operations, domestically and internationally, and may do so through internal growth, strategic relationships, or
acquisitions. We expect that this expansion will strain our systems and operational and financial controls. In addition, we are likely to incur
significantly higher operating costs. To manage our growth effectively, we must continue to improve and expand our systems and controls. If we
fail to do so, our growth will be limited. If we fail to effectively manage our planned expansion of operations, our business and operating results
may be harmed.
 
We may engage in future acquisitions that dilute the ownership interests of our stockholders and cause us to incur debt or to assume
contingent liabilities, and we may be unable to successfully integrate these companies into our operations, which would adversely affect
our business.
 

As a part of our business strategy, we expect to review acquisition prospects that would complement our current product offerings,
enhance our design capability or offer other growth opportunities. While we have no current agreements and no active negotiations underway with
respect to any acquisitions, we may acquire businesses, products or technologies in the future. In the event of future acquisitions, we could use a
significant portion of our available cash, issue equity securities which would dilute current stockholders’ percentage ownership, and/or incur
substantial debt or contingent liabilities. Such actions by us could impact our operating results and/or the price of our common stock.
 

In addition, if we are unsuccessful in integrating any acquired company into our operations or if integration is more difficult than anticipated,
we may experience disruptions that could harm our business.
 

Risks Related to This Offering
 
There has been no prior public market for our common stock, and an active public market may not develop.
 

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We cannot assure you that an active trading market will
develop or be sustained or that the market price of our common stock will not decline. The initial public offering price for the shares of our common
stock will be determined by us and the representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the trading
market. We do not know the extent to which investor interest will lead to the development of an active public market. The lack of an active market
may impair your ability to sell your shares at the time you wish to sell them or at a price which you consider reasonable. The lack of an active
market may also reduce the fair market value of your shares. An inactive market may also impair our ability to raise capital by selling shares and
may impair our ability to acquire other companies or technology by using our shares as consideration.
 
We expect our stock price to be volatile.
 

The trading price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations in price in response to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:
 
 Ÿ the depth and liquidity of the market for our common stock;
 

17



Table of Contents

 Ÿ developments generally affecting the semiconductor industry;
 
 Ÿ commencement of or developments relating to our involvement in litigation, including the ongoing O2 litigation and/or the ongoing Linear

litigation;
 
 Ÿ investor perceptions of us and our business;
 
 Ÿ changes in securities analysts’ expectations or our failure to meet those expectations;
 
 Ÿ actions by institutional or other large stockholders;
 
 Ÿ terrorist acts;
 
 Ÿ actual or anticipated fluctuations in our results of operations;
 
 Ÿ developments with respect to intellectual property rights;
 
 Ÿ announcements of technological innovations or significant contracts by us or our competitors;
 
 Ÿ introduction of new products by us or our competitors;
 
 Ÿ our sale of common stock or other securities in the future;
 
 Ÿ conditions and trends in technology industries;
 
 Ÿ changes in market valuation or earnings of our competitors;
 
 Ÿ changes in the estimation of the future size and growth rate of our markets;
 
 Ÿ our results of operations and financial performance; and
 
 Ÿ general economic, industry and market conditions.
 

In addition, the stock market in general often experiences substantial volatility that is seemingly unrelated to the operating performance of
particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.
 
Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock could harm the market price of our stock.
 

A substantial amount of our shares will be eligible for sale shortly after this offering. If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of
common stock in the public market soon after the lock-up period ends, the market price of our common stock could fall. Based on shares
outstanding as of June 30, 2004, upon completion of this offering, we will have              shares of common stock outstanding. Of these shares,
the              shares sold in this offering will be freely tradable. Another 21,781,322 shares will be eligible for sale in the public market 180 days
from the date of this prospectus, all of which are subject to lock-up agreements with us and/or the underwriters. Either we or the underwriters may
in our respective sole discretion and at any time without notice, release all or any portion of the securities from the restrictions imposed by our
respective lock-up agreements with securityholders prior to the expiration of such 180-day period. The remaining 95,833 shares are restricted
securities that will become eligible for sale in the public market pursuant to Rule 144 at various dates in the future. The sale of a significant
number of these shares could cause the price of our common stock to decline. For more detailed information, see “Shares Eligible for Future
Sale.”
 
Because of their significant stock ownership, our officers and directors will be able to exert significant influence over our future
direction.
 

Executive officers, directors, and entities affiliated with them will, in the aggregate, beneficially own approximately         % of our
outstanding common stock following the completion of this offering. These stockholders, if acting together, would be able to significantly influence
all matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or other
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business combination transactions. For more detailed information, see “Principal and Selling Stockholders.”
 
Management will have broad discretion over the use of proceeds from this offering.
 

The net proceeds from this offering will be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital and capital expenditures. We
currently anticipate spending a portion of the net proceeds on sales and marketing activities, research and development activities, general and
administrative matters and on capital expenditures. In addition, we may use a portion of the net proceeds to acquire or invest in complementary
businesses or products or to obtain the right to use complementary technologies. We have not reserved or allocated specific amounts for these
purposes, and we cannot specify with certainty how we will use the net proceeds. Accordingly, our management will have considerable discretion
in the application of the net proceeds, and you will not have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds
are being used appropriately. The net proceeds may be used for corporate purposes that do not increase our operating results or market value.
Until the net proceeds are used, they may be placed in investments that do not produce income or that lose value.
 
You will incur immediate and substantial dilution in the net tangible book value of the stock you purchase.
 

The initial public offering price is substantially higher than the prices paid for our common stock in the past and higher than the book value
of the shares we are offering. This is referred to as dilution. Accordingly, if you purchase common stock in the offering, you will incur immediate
dilution of approximately $             per share in the net tangible book value per share of our common stock from the price you pay for our common
stock. The exercise of outstanding options or warrants will result in further dilution.
 
Effective upon the closing of this offering, we will implement anti-takeover provisions that could discourage a third party from acquiring
us and consequently decrease the market value of your investment.
 

Effective upon the closing of this offering, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws will contain provisions that may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control or changes in management that a stockholder might consider favorable. Our planned certificate and
bylaws, among other things, will provide for a classified board of directors, require that stockholder actions occur at duly called meetings of the
stockholders, limit who may call special meetings of stockholders, and require advance notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations.
These provisions, along with the provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, such as Section 203, prohibiting certain business
combinations with an interested stockholder, may delay or impede a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving us. Any delay or prevention of
a change of control transaction or changes in management could cause the market price of our common stock to decline. For more information
about particular anti-takeover provisions, see “Description of Capital Stock.”
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
 

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements. When used in this prospectus, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “will,”
“intend,” and “expect” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations
reflected in those forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that these plans, intentions or expectations will be
achieved. Our actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those contemplated, expressed or implied, by the forward-
looking statements contained in this prospectus. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking
statements are set forth in this prospectus, including under the heading “Risk Factors.” All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons
acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements set forth in this prospectus. Other than as required by
federal securities laws, we are under no obligation to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.
 

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information
different from that contained in this prospectus. We are offering to sell and seeking offers to buy shares of our common stock only in jurisdictions
where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, regardless of
the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of our common stock.
 

 USE OF PROCEEDS
 

We estimate that we will receive net proceeds of approximately $         million, or $         million if the underwriters exercise their over-
allotment option in full, from this offering of our common stock, based on an assumed initial public offering price of $         per share and after
deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of
common stock by the selling stockholders. We currently anticipate spending a portion of the net proceeds on sales and marketing activities,
research and development activities, general and administrative matters, including patent litigation, and on capital expenditures, including the
facility in China described in “Business—Manufacturing,” which facility involves a commitment of up to $5 million. Except for the amounts
allocated for the China facility, we have not yet allocated specific amounts for these purposes. In addition, we may use a portion of the net
proceeds to acquire or invest in complementary businesses or products or to obtain the right to use complementary technologies. Except for our
agreement to establish a facility in China, we have no commitments with respect to any acquisition or investment, and we are not involved in any
negotiations with respect to any similar transaction. The principal purposes of this offering are to obtain additional capital, to enhance our ability to
acquire other businesses, products or technologies, to create a public market for our common stock, to facilitate our future access to public equity
markets, to provide liquidity for our existing stockholders, to improve the effectiveness of our stock option plans in attracting and retaining key
employees, to increase the visibility of our company in a marketplace in which several of our competitors are publicly-held companies, and to
provide our customers greater assurances as to our long-term viability, which is enhanced by being subject to the financial reporting and disclosure
obligations of a public company. The amounts and timing of our actual expenditures will depend on numerous factors, including the status of our
product development efforts, sales and marketing activities, technological advances, amount of cash generated or used by our operations and
competition. We may find it necessary or advisable to use the net proceeds for other purposes, and we will have broad discretion in the application
of the balance of the net proceeds. Pending the uses described above, we intend to invest the net proceeds in short-term, interest-bearing,
investment-grade securities.
 

 DIVIDEND POLICY
 

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock and do not intend to pay dividends in the foreseeable future. We
anticipate that we will retain any earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development of our business.
 

20



Table of Contents

 CAPITALIZATION
 

Our capitalization as of June 30, 2004 is set forth in the following table;
 
 Ÿ on an actual basis;
 
 Ÿ on a pro forma basis to reflect the conversion of all outstanding preferred stock into shares of our common stock; and
 
 Ÿ on the same pro forma basis as adjusted to give effect to the receipt of the estimated net proceeds from this offering, at an assumed

initial public offering price of $             per share.
 

The table does not include options outstanding as of June 30, 2004 to purchase 7,023,300 shares of our common stock with a weighted
average exercise price of $3.76 and warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2004 to purchase 213,718 shares of our common stock at a weighted
average exercise price of $1.68. You should read this table in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” our financial statements and the notes to those financial statements and “Description of Capital Stock.”
 

   

June 30, 2004
 

   

Actual
  

Pro forma
  

Pro forma
as adjusted

 
   (in thousands, except share data)  
      (unaudited)  (unaudited)  
Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock, 5,300,000 shares authorized,

5,087,767 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares, pro forma and pro
forma as adjusted   $ 19,083  $ —  $ — 

Stockholder’s equity:              
Convertible preferred stock, 10,548,260 shares authorized, actual and pro forma;

5,000,000 shares authorized, pro forma as adjusted; 10,368,260 shares issued and
outstanding, actual; no shares issued and outstanding, pro forma and pro forma as
adjusted    11,163   —   — 

Common stock, 35,800,000 shares authorized, actual and pro forma; 150,000,000
shares authorized, pro forma as adjusted; 6,988,991 shares issued and outstanding,
actual; 22,445,018 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma;              shares
issued and outstanding, pro forma as adjusted    24,859   55,105     

Notes receivable from stockholder    (398)   (398)   (398)
Accumulated other comprehensive income    (51)   (51)   (51)
Deferred stock compensation    (12,725)   (12,725)   (12,725)
Accumulated deficit    (19,349)   (19,349)   (19,349)
     

Total stockholders’ equity    3,499   22,582     

     
Total capitalization   $ 22,582  $ 22,582  $   
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DILUTION
 

Our pro forma net tangible book value as of June 30, 2004 was approximately $1.01 per share of our common stock. Our pro forma net
tangible book value per share represents the amount of our total tangible assets reduced by the amount of our total liabilities and divided by the
total number of shares of our common stock outstanding, as of June 30, 2004. After giving effect to our sale in this offering of shares of our
common stock at an assumed initial public offering price of $             per share and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses, our pro forma net tangible book value as of June 30, 2004 would have been $             per share of
our common stock. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible book value of $             per share to our existing stockholders and an
immediate dilution of $             per share to you. The following table illustrates this per share dilution:
 
Initial public offering price per share       $            

Pro forma net tangible book value per share before this offering   $1.01    
Increase attributable to investors in this offering         

       
Pro forma net tangible book value per share after the offering         

       
Dilution per share to investors in this offering       $  
       
 

The differences between our existing stockholders and investors with respect to the number of shares of common stock purchased from
us, the total consideration paid to us and the average price per share paid for both common and preferred stock is summarized on a pro forma
basis, as of March 31, 2004 before underwriters’ discount and offering expenses in the following table. The following table does not include
7,237,018 shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants as of June 30, 2004. To the
extent that outstanding options are exercised, there will be further dilution of $         per share to new investors.
 

   

Shares Purchased
  

Total Consideration
  Average

Price
   

Number
  

Percent
  

Amount
  

Percent
  

   (in thousands)    
Existing stockholders   22,445     $              $            
New investors                  

           
Total      100% $    100%   

         
 

If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, the number of shares of common stock held by existing stockholders will be
reduced to     % of the total number of shares of common stock to be outstanding after this offering, and the number of shares of common stock
held by the new investors will be increased to              shares or     % of the total number of shares of common stock outstanding after this
offering.
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 SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
 

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read together with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. The selected consolidated
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 and the selected consolidated statements of operations data for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2003 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere in this
prospectus. The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2004 and the selected consolidated statement of operations data for the
six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2004 have been derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere
in this prospectus. The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001 and the selected consolidated
statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements
not included in this prospectus. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the future. Pro forma net loss per
common share reflects the conversion of all outstanding preferred stock into common stock from the beginning of the period presented or at the
date of original issuance if later.
 

  

Year ended December 31,
  

Six months ended
June 30,

 

  

1999
  

2000
  

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

  (in thousands, except per share data)  
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:                             
Revenues  $ 572  $ 5,252  $ 8,130  $ 12,206  $ 24,204  $ 7,932  $ 18,059 
Cost of revenues:                             

Product cost   520   3,850   5,969   6,825   10,750   4,190   7,574 
Stock-based compensation   —   3   6   6   180   6   428 

        
Total cost of revenues   520   3,853   5,975   6,831   10,930   4,196   8,002 

        
Gross profit   52   1,399   2,155   5,375   13,274   3,736   10,057 
Operating expenses:                             

Research and development (excluding stock-based compensation)   1,175   1,435   2,610   4,459   5,493   2,760   3,328 
Sales and marketing (excluding stock-based compensation)   37   387   976   1,443   2,181   910   1,956 
General and administrative (excluding stock-based compensation)   101   715   832   997   1,733   767   1,229 
Patent litigation   —   —   958   1,603   4,332   2,469   1,475 
Stock-based compensation*   54   494   180   167   2,741   504   5,751 

        
Total operating expenses   1,367   3,031   5,556   8,669   16,480   7,410   13,739 

        
Loss from operations   (1,315)   (1,632)   (3,401)   (3,294)   (3,206)   (3,674)   (3,682)
Other income (expense):                             

Interest and other income   40   37   111   178   170   119   72 
Interest and other expense   —   (8)   (283)   (121)   —   0   (14)

        
Total other income (expense), net   40   29   (172)   57   170   119   58 

        
Net loss   (1,275)   (1,603)   (3,573)   (3,237)   (3,036)   (3,555)   (3,624)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock   —   —   —   447   1,340   670   670 

        
Net loss attributable to common stockholders  $ (1,275)  $ (1,603)  $ (3,573)  $ (3,684)  $ (4,376)  $ (4,225)  $ (4,294)

        
Basic and diluted net loss per common share  $ (0.27)  $ (0.33)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.71)  $ (0.70)  $ (0.65)

        
Shares used in basic and diluted net loss per common share   4,689   4,846   5,682   5,863   6,143   6,034   6,603 

        
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share                  $ (0.20)  $ (0.20)  $ (0.19)

                    
Shares used in pro forma basic and diluted net loss per common share                   21,599   21,490   22,059 

                    

*Stock-based compensation has been excluded from the following line items:                             
Research and development  $ 54  $ 32  $ 8  $ 7  $ 983  $ 100  $ 2,391 
Sales and marketing   —   387   96   90   562   121   1,508 
General and administrative   —   75   76   70   1,196   283   1,852 

        
Total  $ 54  $ 494  $ 180  $ 167  $ 2,741  $ 504  $ 5,751 
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December 31,
 June 30,

2004
  

1999
 

2000
 

2001
 

2002
 

2003
 

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:                   
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,359 $ 904 $ 5,264 $ 17,223 $ 12,135 $ 12,094
Short-term investments   —  —  —  —  1,007  500
Restricted assets   —  —  —  —  787  6,020
Working capital   2,453  796  4,621  17,568  16,743  13,157
Total assets   2,811  4,346  8,078  21,614  22,603  28,060
Redeemable convertible preferred stock   —  —  —  17,074  18,413  19,083
Convertible preferred stock   4,379  4,379  11,163  11,163  11,163  11,163
Total stockholders’ equity   2,651  1,697  5,441  1,979  1,231  3,499
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 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with “Selected

Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. In addition to
historical information, this discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Our
actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including but not
limited to, those set forth under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this prospectus.
 
Overview
 

We design, develop, and market proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal semiconductors. Our products include cold cathode
fluorescent lamp (CCFL) backlight inverter ICs, direct current (DC) to DC converter ICs, light emitting diode (LED) driver ICs, and audio amplifier
ICs. These products are used to perform functions such as lighting electronic displays, converting or controlling voltages or current within
systems, and amplifying sound. Since our incorporation in 1997, we have focused on delivering products for large and high growth market
opportunities, currently targeting the computing, consumer electronics, and wireless markets.
 

We operate in the cyclical semiconductor industry. For example, according to the Semiconductor Industry Association, overall
semiconductor industry revenues grew by 37% from 1999 to 2000 and then declined by 32% from 2000 to 2001. Although the semiconductor
industry has recently experienced increased demand, the industry may experience downturns in the future. While we will not be immune from
future industry downturns, we have targeted product and market areas that we believe have the ability to offer above average industry growth over
the long term. In addition, we currently operate as a fabless semiconductor company, working with third parties to manufacture and assemble our
integrated circuits, which has enabled us to minimize our capital expenditures and fixed costs, while focusing our engineering and design
resources on our core strengths.
 

We have derived a majority of our revenues from sales of our CCFL backlight inverter product family to the computing and consumer
electronics markets. In the future, we expect to derive an increasing percentage of our revenues from sales of our other products, such as DC to
DC converter ICs and LED driver ICs. Our ability to achieve revenue growth will depend in part upon our ability to enter new market segments, gain
market share, diversify our customer base, and successfully secure manufacturing capacity.
 

The markets to which we sell our products are subject to seasonality. Our revenues generally tend to increase in the third and fourth
quarters of each calendar year, when customers place orders to meet year-end holiday demand, and our revenues tend to decrease in the first
quarter of each calendar year. However, our recent rapid revenue growth makes it difficult for us to assess the impact of seasonal factors on our
business. This difficulty is partly attributable to a shift in our product mix from seasonally impacted markets to less seasonally impacted markets
and to the impact of market share growth during what we would expect to be a seasonally down quarter. In particular, strong sales of our CCFL
backlight inverter ICs and our DC to DC converter ICs resulted in increased revenues during the second quarter of 2003 compared to the fourth
quarter of 2002, partially offsetting seasonal demand factors.
 

Our sales cycle generally takes 6 to 12 months to complete following the introduction of a product, and volume production of products that
use our ICs generally takes an additional 3 to 6 months to be achieved, after initial customer orders are received. As a result of our sales cycle
and our relatively long product life cycles, characteristics of an analog and mixed-signal semiconductor
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company, our revenue for any given period tends to be weighted toward products which we introduced for sale in the prior one to two years. For
example, in 2003, a majority of our revenues were generated by sales of products which we first introduced for sale prior to 2002. The timing and
volume of orders is subject to the timing and volume of demand for our customers’ products. This, combined with the fact that orders in the
semiconductor industry can typically be cancelled or rescheduled without significant penalty to the customer, makes the forecasting of our orders
and revenues challenging.
 

We sell our ICs primarily through distribution arrangements and through our direct sales and applications support organization to original
design manufacturers and electronic manufacturing service providers. Our largest direct customers in 2003 (including such third parties under
distribution arrangements) were CTP, Yosun, and Ambit/Unique Logistics, accounting for 30%, 16%, and 14% of our revenues, respectively.
Original design manufacturers, electronic manufacturing service providers and other third parties under distribution arrangements are not end
customers, but rather serve as a channel to many end users of our products, while other end users of our products purchase from us directly. Our
end users include Acer, Dell, Hewlett-Packard, and IBM in the computing industry, LG Electronics, Samsung, and Sharp in the consumer
electronics industry, and Apple, Dell, LG Electronics, and Motorola in the wireless industry.
 

We derive a substantial majority of our revenues from direct or indirect sales to foreign customers, including 98.6% from sales into Asia for
2003, a majority of which represents revenues from parties with whom we have distribution arrangements for resale to users of our product in
Taiwan. This is because most of the products that use our ICs are manufactured in Asia. As a result, we believe that a substantial majority of our
revenues will continue to come from customers located in Asia, although in the future we expect sales into Taiwan to decrease as a percentage of
revenues as sales into other Asian regions increase.
 

Our gross margins have improved steadily over the last three years on an annual basis, reaching 54.8% in the year ended December 31,
2003. As a fabless semiconductor company, we rely on third party foundries to manufacture our ICs. We also rely on third-party assemblers to
assemble and package our ICs prior to final product testing and shipping. Our improvement in gross margins was primarily due to a growth in unit
volumes, which resulted in a lower per unit cost, as well as a reduction in our overall manufacturing costs, which included a significant reduction in
wafer costs resulting from a change of our primary external foundry during the first half of 2003. As we diversify our revenue mix, we expect to see
a reduction in overall average selling prices as our DC to DC converter and LED driver ICs, which we expect will represent an increasing
percentage of revenues, typically sell at lower prices. However, we expect the impact of these changes in product mix on our overall gross
margins to be approximately offset by increased sales of new higher margin products and lower manufacturing costs. However, there can be no
assurance that margin growth can be achieved, and margins can fluctuate due to changes in overall average selling prices, product mix, market
acceptance of new products, and manufacturing efficiencies.
 

One of the key factors that might cause our operating results to fluctuate from quarter to quarter and from year to year is the status of our
litigation with O2. As described beginning on page 7 of the risk factors, the outcome of that litigation is highly uncertain. We expect to continue to
incur patent litigation expenses in future periods, and such expenses might fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter due to developments in
the litigation.
 

O2 Litigation.    We are engaged in patent litigation in the United States and Taiwan with O2, a competitor. This patent litigation has had a
significant impact on our financial condition and results of operations for 2003 and the first six months of 2004 including the incurrence of litigation
expenses of $3.4 million discussed below, and the posting of cash bonds with the Taiwan court of approximately $6.1 million and the seizure of
assets with a net book value of approximately $18,000 through June 30, 2004. We expect the litigation to continue for the foreseeable future and to
require us to continue to
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incur significant litigation expenses, equal to or greater than the litigation expenses we incurred in 2003 and the first six months of 2004 ($4.3
million and $1.5 million, respectively). The ultimate outcome of the litigation in Taiwan and the United States could have a significant impact on our
financial condition and results of operations. If we prevail in the litigation in United States and Taiwan, we would see significant improvement in our
expense levels once we no longer incur substantial legal fees.
 

If we do not prevail in the litigation, either in the United States or Taiwan, we may experience a significant negative impact on our financial
condition and results of operations. Potential unfavorable outcomes include: (i) losing at trial in the United States (now scheduled for February
2005), (ii) being found by the court in Taiwan to have violated the Taiwanese injunction, (iii) losing in the court in Taiwan on O2’s contention that
the injunction should be expanded to include our MP 1010B product, (iv) losing in the underlying patent infringement suit against us by O2 in
Taiwan, and (v) if O2 appeals the summary judgment in our favor in the United States, losing the appeal and being required to re-litigate the issue
in the United States.
 

Losing at trial in the United States could result in a damage award against us in an indeterminate amount (O2 has submitted to the court a
damage claim ranging from $1 million to several tens of millions of dollars). Being found to have violated the existing Taiwan injunction could result
in fines of up to $9,000 per shipment of the specified products and could further preclude us from selling and shipping these products to anyone
who would subsequently sell them into Taiwan. Sales of the MP 1011A and MP 1015 products collectively accounted for 28.6% of our total
revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2004, and sales of our MP 1010B accounted for an additional 15.6% of our total revenue in that period.
We believe that a significant portion of those products were in turn shipped into Taiwan by third parties with whom we have distribution
arrangements. Thus, an expanded injunction that effectively precluded shipment of these products into Taiwan (whether by us or by others who are
commissioned by us) would have a materially adverse effect on our results of operations. Similarly, if we were to lose on the underlying patent
infringement claim in Taiwan or upon any appeal of the summary judgment in the United States, we could be enjoined from selling a significant
portion of our products (potentially including our MP 1011A and MP 1015 products, as well as other products in our CCFL backlight inverter product
family) in the United States and/or Taiwan, either directly or through distribution arrangements. This would have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. Direct sales to U.S.-based customers of our products covered by the O2 litigation accounted for less
than 1% of our revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2004. However, because a substantial portion of our products is resold into the U.S.
as components of our indirect customers’ products, an injunction covering such products could prevent us from selling all or substantially all of our
CCFL backlight inverter products, which accounted for 49.0% of our revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2004.
 

Linear ITC Litigation.    In our litigation matter with Linear that is before the U.S. International Trade Commission (ITC), we expect to incur
at least $3 million in legal fees and related expenses over the next 12 to 15 months, if the litigation goes to completion. If Linear is successful in
securing an exclusion order against one or more of our products, such an exclusion order would prevent such products from being shipped into the
United States and would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Direct sales to U.S.-based customers
of our products identified by Linear in the Linear ITC litigation accounted for less than 1% of our revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2004.
However, if Linear successfully adds other products to its initial claim, then the scope of that proceeding could be expanded to include, among
other of our products, most or all of our DC to DC converter products. If this were to occur, coupled with the fact that many of such products could
be eventually brought indirectly into the U.S. by our customers or other third parties, then an injunction covering such products could prevent us
from selling all or substantially all of our DC to DC converter products.
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If adverse results in either of the O2 or Linear cases were to prevent us from selling our products in Taiwan and/or the United States, we
would attempt to increase sales in China, Korea, Japan, and Europe, which are all markets in which we are currently attempting to expand sales.
This effort may be complicated, however, by the fact that many of our customers in these markets may desire to sell our products indirectly back
into the U.S. or Taiwan.
 
Results of Operations
 

The following describes certain line items in our statement of operations:
 

Revenues.    Revenues consist of sales of our ICs, net of sales discounts, returns, and incentives. All of our sales are denominated in
U.S. dollars, and we are therefore not subject to foreign exchange rate fluctuation.
 

Gross Profit.    Gross profit consists of the difference between revenues and cost of revenues. Cost of revenues consists primarily of the
costs of purchasing processed silicon wafers and also includes costs associated with assembly, test, and shipping of our ICs, cost of personnel
and equipment depreciation associated with manufacturing support and quality assurance, and occupancy costs. All of our sales and product
costs are denominated in U.S. dollars and are therefore not subject to foreign exchange rate fluctuation.
 

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses consist primarily of employee, contractor, and related costs,
expenses for new product development and testing, expenses for process development, evaluation, photolithographic masks and revisions to the
masks, occupancy costs, and depreciation on research and development equipment. All research and development costs are expensed as
incurred. We plan to continue to invest a significant amount in research and development activities to develop new products and processes.
Accordingly, we expect research and development expenses to increase in absolute dollars in future periods.
 

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee, contractor, and related costs, occupancy costs,
sales commissions to independent sales representatives, and promotional and marketing expenses. We expect sales and marketing expense to
increase in absolute dollars in future periods.
 

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee, contractor and related costs,
occupancy costs, insurance, and professional services. We expect general and administrative expenses will increase in absolute dollars to
support our future operations as well as the additional costs of operating as a publicly traded company.
 

Patent Litigation.    Patent litigation expenses consist of external legal fees incurred as a result of our lawsuits with O2. These expenses
have been primarily for our own defense but also include legal expenses incurred by our customers that O2 has or may take action against in
various international courts. We have agreed to indemnify certain of our customers in their lawsuits with O2 relating to their use of our ICs in their
products. Our U.S. case against O2 is scheduled for trial in February of 2005. We expect to continue to incur patent litigation expenses in future
periods, and such expenses might fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter due to developments in our litigation matters with O2 and Linear.
 

As of March 19, 2004, we have deposited approximately $6.1 million with Taiwanese courts in connection with our two injunctions there.
The deposits are held in a certificate of deposit account by the court and are accounted for as restricted assets in our balance sheet. If we lose
our lawsuit with O2 in Taiwan, we could forfeit some or all of these deposits and, if we are found to be in violation of O2’s injunction, we could face
additional penalties.
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Stock-Based Compensation.    We have granted stock options to employees where the fair value of our stock determined for financial
reporting purposes was greater than the fair value determined by our board of directors on the date of grant. We have recorded an aggregate of
$21.0 million of deferred stock compensation related to these grants. As of June 30, 2004, $12.7 million of deferred stock compensation remained
to be amortized through 2008. We determine our amortization expense following the multiple grant approach, which results in substantially higher
amounts of amortization in earlier years as opposed to the single grant approach, which results in equal amortization over the vesting period of the
options. Such amortization is allocated to operating expenses and cost of revenues based upon the individual employees’ functions. As of June
30, 2004, amortization is expected to be $5.1 million, $4.8 million, $2.2 million, and $0.6 million in 2004, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.
 

We have also granted stock options to non-employee consultants. These options are valued using the fair value method and the related
charge is classified in the statement of operations based on the nature of the services received. Based on the estimated fair value of our common
stock at June 30, 2004, approximately $0.5 million of future charges will be recorded over the vesting periods through 2007. Approximately $0.2
million of this amount would be charged to compensation expense in the remainder of 2004. The ultimate amount of this charge each year will vary
depending on changes in the fair market value of our common stock.
 

Income Taxes.    As of December 31, 2003, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of $7.5 million. These net operating loss
carryforwards will expire on various dates beginning in 2012. We also had research and development tax credit carryforwards of $0.7 million and
$0.6 million for federal and state income tax purposes, respectively. The federal research and development tax credit carryforwards will expire on
various dates beginning in 2012. The state research tax credit can be carried forward indefinitely. Valuation allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts expected to be realized. We currently anticipate that we will implement an international tax
structure pursuant to which our international sales would be conducted by an affiliate of ours outside the United States.
 

The following table sets forth our statements of operations data as a percentage of revenues for the periods indicated:
 

   

Year ended December 31,
  

Six months ended
June 30,

 

   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

Revenues   100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%
Cost of revenues   73.5  55.9  45.2  52.9  44.3 
       
Gross profit   26.5  44.1  54.8  47.1  55.7 
Operating expenses:                 

Research and development   32.1  36.5  22.7  34.8  18.4 
Sales and marketing   12.0  11.8  9.0  11.5  10.8 
General and administrative   10.2  8.2  7.2  9.7  6.8 
Patent litigation   11.8  13.1  17.9  31.1  8.2 
Stock-based compensation   2.2  1.4  11.3  6.4  31.8 

       
Total operating expenses   68.3  71.0  68.1  93.5  76.1 

       
Operating loss   (41.8)  (26.9)  (13.3)  (46.3)  (20.4)

Interest and other income   1.4  1.5  0.7  1.5  0.4 
Interest expense   (3.5)  (1.0)  —  0.0  (0.1)
       

Total other income (expense), net   (2.1)  0.5  0.7  1.5  0.3 
       
Net loss   (43.9)% (26.4)% (12.6)% (44.8)% (20.1)%
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Comparison of Six Months Ended June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003
 

Revenues.    Revenues were $18.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2004 and $7.9 million for the six months ended June 30,
2003, an increase of 129.1%. This increase was due to an increase in revenues from our DC to DC converter, CCFL backlight inverter, and LED
driver product families. The increase in revenues from our DC to DC converter product family was due to several new product releases for the
computer, consumer electronics, and wireless markets and increased demand for our existing products. This resulted in higher unit volumes which
were partially offset by a slight decrease in average selling prices. The increase in our CCFL backlight inverter product family was due to several
new product releases and increased demand for our existing products. The increase in unit volumes was partially offset by a slight decrease in
average selling prices. The increase in revenues from our LED driver product family was due to several new product releases.
 

The following table illustrates changes in our revenues by product family (amounts in thousands):
 

   

Six months ended June 30,
    

   

2003
  

2004
    

   

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  

Change
 

CCFL Inverters   $ 6,121  77.2% $ 8,840  49.0% 44.4%
DC to DC Converters    1,388  17.5   7,086  39.2  410.5 
LED Drivers    287  3.6   1,855  10.3  546.3 
Audio Amplifiers    136  1.7   278  1.5  104.4 
           

Total   $ 7,932  100.0% $ 18,059  100.0% 127.7%
           
 

Gross Profit.    Gross profit as a percentage of revenues, or gross margin, was 55.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2004, compared
to 47.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2003. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to lower per unit costs associated with volume
efficiencies attributable to a growth in unit shipments from our CCFL backlight inverter product family and the introduction of several new products
in our DC to DC converter product. In addition, we reduced assembly costs and improved yields.
 

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses were $3.3 million, or 18.4% of revenues, in the six months ended
June 30, 2004 and $2.8 million, or 34.8% of revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2003. This increase of $0.5 million was due to headcount
increases to support additional product development activities.
 

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses were $2.0 million, or 10.8% of revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2004,
and $0.9 million, or 11.5% of revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2003. The increase was due primarily to additional headcount to support
our growing revenue base and, secondarily, to commissions paid to our outside sales representatives due to an increase in revenues.
 

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses were $1.2 million, or 6.8% of revenues, in the six month ended June
30, 2004, and $0.8 million, or 9.7% of revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2003. The increase was primarily due to additional headcount
and higher professional services costs to support our growth.
 

Patent Litigation.    Patent litigation expenses were $1.5 million, or 8.2% of revenue, in the six months ended June 30, 2004, and $2.5
million, or 31.1% of revenue, in the six months ended June 30, 2003. The dollar decrease of 40.3% was due to the decrease in activities
associated with multiple lawsuits in the U.S. and Taiwan. For a more complete description of the O2 litigation, you must read
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our litigation Risk Factor on page 7 in “Risk Factors” as well as “Business—Legal Proceedings” on page 52.
 

Stock-Based Compensation.    Stock-based compensation expense was $5.8 million, or 31.8% of revenues, in the six months ended
June 30, 2004, and $0.5 million, or 6.4% of revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2003. The increase is due to the grants of options during
second half of 2003 with exercise prices below the deemed fair value of our common stock resulting in deferred stock compensation, which
resulted in the increase in amortization during 2004.
 

Interest and Other Income, Net.    Interest and other income, net, was $0.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 2004, and $0.1
million in the six months ended June 30, 2003.
 
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2003 to Year Ended December 31, 2002
 

Revenues.    Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $24.2 million compared to $12.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2002, an increase of 98.3%. This increase was due to an increase in revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter and DC to DC converter
product families. The increase in revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter product family was due to several new product releases and increased
demand for our existing products. This resulted in higher unit volumes which were partially offset by a decline in average selling prices. The
increase in revenues from our DC to DC converter product family was due to an increased number of new product offerings for the computer,
consumer electronics, and wireless markets. Volume sales began in the third quarter of 2003 for our DC to DC product family. Revenues from our
audio amplifier product family accounted for 1.3% and 13.9% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
respectively. Revenues for our audio amplifier product family for the year ended December 31, 2002 were primarily driven by a non-recurring order
by one customer.
 

The following table illustrates changes in our revenues by product family (amounts in thousands):
 

   

Years ended December 31,
  

Change
 

   

2002
  

2003
  

   

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  
CCFL Inverters   $ 9,694  79.4% $ 16,898  69.8% 74.3%
DC to DC Converters    388  3.2   5,549  22.9  1,330.2 
LED Drivers    421  3.4   1,442  6.0  242.5 
Audio Amplifiers    1,703  14.0   315  1.3  (81.5)
           

Total   $ 12,206  100.0% $ 24,204  100.0% 98.3%
           
 

Gross Profit.    Gross margin was 54.8% for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared with 44.1% for the year ended December 31,
2002. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to lower per unit costs associated with volume efficiencies attributable to a growth in unit
shipments from our CCFL backlight inverter product family and the introduction of several new products in our DC to DC converter product. In
addition, we reduced our manufacturing costs by converting to a lower cost foundry in the first half of 2003, reducing our assembly costs, and
improving our test yields.
 

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses increased to $5.5 million, or 22.7% of revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $4.5 million, or 36.5% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002. This dollar increase of 23.2% was primarily
due to higher compensation and related costs of $0.8 million driven by increases in our engineering headcount.
 

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses increased to $2.2 million, or 9.0% of revenues, for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $1.4 million, or 11.8% of revenues, for the year
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ended December 31, 2002. This dollar increase of 51.1% was due to higher compensation and related costs of $0.5 million driven by increases in
sales and marketing personnel.
 

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses increased to $1.7 million, or 7.2% of revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $1.0 million, or 8.2% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002. This dollar increase of 73.8% was due to
higher compensation and related costs of $0.3 million from increases in administrative personnel, higher insurance costs of $0.2 million, and higher
professional services costs of $0.1 million, such as general legal expenses and audit fees.
 

Patent Litigation.    Patent litigation expenses increased to $4.3 million or 17.9% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2003 from
$1.6 million or 13.1% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002. This dollar increase of 170.3% was due to increased activities
associated with multiple lawsuits in the U.S. and Taiwan with O2.
 

Stock-Based Compensation.    In 2002 and 2003, we recorded stock-based compensation expense for employee option grants where the
fair value of our stock determined for financial reporting purposes was greater than the fair value determined by our board of directors on the date
of such grants and also for non-employee option grants based on the estimated fair values of such options. In the year ended December 31, 2003,
stock-based compensation expense increased $2.8 million over 2002. This increase is due to $1.9 million of amortization of deferred stock
compensation related to current year employee stock option grants and to fair value charges for stock options granted to non-employees in 2003
and previous years. The non-employee options are measured using variable accounting, and the expenses accordingly fluctuate with changes in
the fair market value of our common stock.
 

Stock-based compensation allocated to general and administrative expenses increased from $0.1 million in 2002 to $1.2 million in 2003.
This increase is primarily due to grants of options to consultants and also due to current year option grants to administrative personnel and board
members. In addition, stock-based compensation of $0.2 million has been recorded as an offset to revenue in 2003 for stock options granted to a
non-employee in connection with a distribution arrangement.
 

Interest and Other Income.    Interest and other income was $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $0.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. Interest income is earned on our cash and short-term investments.
 

Interest and Other Expense.    For the year ended December 31, 2003, we did not have interest or other expense. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, we had $0.1 million in interest and other expense as a result of our notes payable and our credit line. The notes, along with all
related interest, were converted to preferred stock in 2002, and the credit line was repaid in 2002.
 
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2002 to Year Ended December 31, 2001
 

Revenues.    Revenues were $12.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $8.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2001, an increase of 50.6%. This increase was due to a 19.3% increase in revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter product family and to
initial shipments of our LED driver, DC to DC converter, and audio amplifier product families. The increase in revenues from the CCFL backlight
inverter product family was due to the growth in the notebook computer and flat panel display markets. Revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter
product family were 79.4% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to 100% for the year ended 2001. Revenues from
our audio product family were 13.9% for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to 0% for the year ended 2001, which were driven by the
introduction of new products and a new single non-recurring customer order.
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The following table illustrates changes in our revenues by product family (amounts in thousands):
 

   

2001
  

2002
    

   

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  

Amount
  

% of
Revenue

  

Change
 

CCFL Inverters   $ 8,130  100.0% $ 9,694  79.4% 19.2%
DC to DC converters    —  —   388  3.2  100.0 
LED Drivers    —  —   421  3.4  100.0 
Audio Amplifiers    —  —   1,703  14.0  100.0 
           

Total   $ 8,130  100.0% $ 12,206  100.0% 50.1%
           
 

Gross Profit.    Gross margin was 44.1% for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 26.5% for the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to sales of higher margin audio amplifier products.
 

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses increased to $4.5 million, or 36.5% of revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from $2.6 million, or 32.1% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. This dollar increase of 70.8% was primarily
due to higher compensation and related costs of $1.1 million from increases in our engineering headcount, as well as increases in mask process
development costs for new products of $0.3 million.
 

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses increased to $1.4 million, or 11.8% of revenues, for the year ended December 31,
2002 from $1.0 million, or 12.0% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. This dollar increase of 47.9% was due to higher
compensation and related costs of $0.4 million from increases in sales and marketing personnel.
 

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses increased to $1.0 million, or 8.2% of revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from $0.8 million, or 10.2% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. This dollar increase of 19.8% was due to
higher compensation and related costs of $0.1 million.
 

Patent Litigation.    Patent litigation expenses increased to $1.6 million or 13.1% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$1.0 million or 11.8% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. This dollar increase of 67.1% was due to an increase in costs related to
our lawsuits in the U.S. with O2.
 

Stock-Based Compensation.    Stock-based compensation expense remained relatively stable from 2001 to 2002 due to the continued
amortization of previously incurred deferred stock compensation charges and non-employee stock compensation charges. In both 2001 and 2002,
slightly more than half of stock-based compensation expense was allocated to sales and marketing expense.
 

Interest and Other Income.    Interest and other income was $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. This compares to $0.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Interest income is earned on our cash and cash equivalents.
 

Interest and Other Expense.    Interest and other expense was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $0.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease of $0.2 million was due to the reduction of debt obligations in 2002.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Information
 

The following table sets forth our unaudited quarterly consolidated statements of operations for each of the eight quarters in the period
ended December 31, 2003 and for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and our audited quarterly consolidated statements of operations for the quarter
ended March 31, 2004. You should read the following table in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained
elsewhere in this prospectus. We have prepared the unaudited information on the same basis as our audited financial statements. This table
includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of our financial
position and operating results for the quarters presented. Operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future
periods.
 

  

Three months ended 
 

  

Mar 31,
2002

  

June 30,
2002

  

Sept 30,
2002

  

Dec 31,
2002

  

Mar 31,
2003

  

June 30,
2003

  

Sept 30,
2003

  

Dec 31,
2003

  

Mar 31,
2004

  

June 30,
2004

 
  (in thousands, except per share data)  
Revenues  $ 1,879  $ 2,713  $ 3,373  $ 4,241  $ 3,256  $ 4,675  $ 8,110  $ 8,163  $ 6,795  $ 11,264 
Cost of revenues   1,186   1,602   1,910   2,133   1,866   2,330   3,544   3,189   3,273   4,729 

           
Gross profit   693   1,111   1,463   2,108   1,390   2,345   4,566   4,974   3,522   6,535 
Gross profit %   36.8%  40.9%  43.4%  49.7%  42.7%  50.2%  56.3%  60.9%  51.8%  58.0%
Operating expenses:                                         
Research and development

(excluding stock-based
compensation)   955   924   1,093   1,487   1,281   1,480   1,372   1,361   1,364   1,964 

Sales and marketing (excluding
stock-based compensation)   234   344   365   500   465   446   589   681   999   957 

General and administrative
(excluding stock-based
compensation)   156   181   298   363   350   417   388   578   532   697 

Patent litigation   266   343   622   371   1,097   1,372   1,278   585   601   874 
Stock-based compensation   41   42   42   42   148   356   779   1,458   2,950   2,801 

           
Total operating expenses   1,652   1,834   2,420   2,763   3,341   4,071   4,406   4,663   6,446   7,293 

           
Income (loss) from operations   (959)   (723)   (957)   (655)   (1,951)   (1,726)   160   311   (2,924)   (758)
Other income (expense), net   11   (4)   (19)   69   76   43   6   45   25   33 

           
Net Income (loss)   (948)   (727)   (976)   (586)   (1,875)   (1,683)   166   356   (2,899)   (725)
Accretion of redeemable preferred

stock   —   —   112   335   335   335   335   335   335   335 

           
Net income (loss) attributable to

common stockholders  $ (948)  $ (727)  $ (1,088)  $ (921)  $ (2,210)  $ (2,018)  $ (169)  $ 21  $ (3,234)  $ (1,060)

           
Basic income (loss) per common

share  $ (0.17)  $ (0.12)  $ (0.18)  $ (0.15)  $ (0.37)  $ (0.33)  $ (0.03)  $ 0.01  $ (0.50)  $ (0.16)

           
Diluted income (loss) per share  $ (0.17)  $ (0.12)  $ (0.18)  $ (0.15)  $ (0.37)  $ (0.33)  $ (0.03)  $ —  $ (0.50)  $ (0.16)

           
Shares used in basic income (loss)

per common share   5,709   5,861   5,905   5,977   6,018   6,051   6,147   6,358   6,482   6,706 

           
Shares used in diluted income

(loss) per common share   5,709   5,861   5,905   5,977   6,018   6,051   6,147   20,815   6,482   6,706 

           
 

Revenues.    Revenues increased each quarter from the first quarter of 2002 through the fourth quarter of 2002 as a result of the
introduction of new CCFL backlight inverter products as well as higher unit shipments of existing CCFL backlight inverter products. In the third and
fourth quarters of
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2002, revenues from our audio amplifier product family increased substantially, driven by one customer who placed a large order during this time
frame. A decline in revenues from the fourth quarter of 2002 to the first quarter of 2003 is attributable to the seasonality of demand for our CCFL
backlight inverter ICs, as well as a significant decrease in revenues from our audio amplifier product family. Revenues increased quarter over
quarter in 2003 as the demand for our CCFL backlight inverter ICs continually increased and also as a result of the introduction of new products in
our DC to DC converter product family in the third quarter of 2003. Revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2004 decreased 16.8% from
$8.2 million in the three months ended December 31, 2003, due to the seasonally lower demand in the computer and wireless markets. Revenues
for the three months ended June 30, 2004 increased 65.8% from $6.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2004, due to an increase in
demand in the computer and wireless markets.
 

Gross Profit.    Gross margins increased each quarter from the first quarter of 2002 through the fourth quarter of 2002. This increase was
primarily due to the introduction of new CCFL inverter products with higher average selling prices and the increase in unit shipments of our higher-
margin audio product family. The decline in our gross margin in the first quarter of 2003 was primarily due to a significant decrease in unit
shipments from our higher-margin audio amplifier product family and lower average selling prices of our CCFL backlight inverter products. Gross
margins increased in the second and third quarters of 2003 primarily due to the introduction of new products in our DC to DC converter product
family and the increase in unit shipments of our CCFL backlight inverter products resulting in lower per unit costs associated with volume
efficiencies. In addition, we reduced our manufacturing costs by converting to a lower cost foundry during the first two quarters of 2003, obtaining
lower per unit assembly costs, and improving yields. Gross margins increased in the fourth quarter of 2003 primarily due to improved
manufacturing yields. Gross margins for the three months ended March 31, 2004 decreased 9.1% from 60.9% in the three months ended
December 31, 2003. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in unit shipments, while manufacturing costs remained relatively stable. Gross
margins for the three months ended June 30, 2004 increased 6.2% from 51.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2004. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in unit shipments, while manufacturing costs remained relatively stable.
 

Research and Development.    Research and development expenses increased for three quarters in 2002 as we continued to invest in
new product development programs and increased our research and development personnel. The significant increase in the fourth quarter of 2002
was primarily the result of expenses related to taping out new products, purchasing new photolithographic mask sets for future products, and
transitioning existing products to a new foundry. Research and development expenses increased in the second quarter of 2003 due to expenses
related to taping out new products and purchasing new photolithographic mask sets. The increase in the second quarter of 2004 from the first
quarter of 2004 was primarily due to the purchase of new photolithographic mask sets and additional headcount to support our growth.
 

Sales and Marketing.    Sales and marketing expenses increased quarter over quarter in 2002 primarily as the result of an increase in
sales commissions due to an increase in revenues. Sales and marketing expenses increased in the first and second quarters of 2004 over the
fourth quarter of 2003 primarily due to increase in sales and marketing personnel in the United States, Taiwan, and China to support our increase in
customers and growth in revenues. The fluctuations in expenses quarter over quarter are driven largely by changes in sales commissions.
 

General and Administrative.    General and administrative expenses increased quarter over quarter in 2002. These increases were
primarily the result of increases in general and administrative personnel and an increase in professional fees such as legal, tax, and audit. General
and administrative expenses also increased in the second and fourth quarters in 2003. These increases were similarly the result of increases in
general and administrative personnel and an increase in professional fees, such as legal, tax, and audit. The increase in the three months ended
June 30, 2004
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compared to the three months ended March 31, 2004 was primarily due to an increase in headcount to support our growth and to help manage
additional responsibilities associated with becoming a public company.
 

Patent Litigation.    Patent litigation expenses increased in the first three quarters of fiscal year 2002 following O2’s initiation of a second
lawsuit against us in late 2001, then declined in the fourth quarter as there was a lull in the legal proceedings over the year-end holidays. During
2003, litigation expenses increased again as we prepared for a hearing on cross-motions for summary judgment in November 2003. Following the
hearing, activity and fees again declined. We are currently scheduled to begin the trial in the U.S. in February 2005. We expect that if the trial
proceeds as scheduled, we will again incur substantially higher litigation expenses at least through that trial.
 

Stock-Based Compensation.    Stock-based compensation expense in 2002 relates to the amortization of deferred stock compensation
incurred in 2000 and the fair value of options granted to non-employees. Expenses were relatively consistent in each quarter of 2002, as there
were no significant changes in the value of our common stock, which would drive an increase in the expense of non-employee options. In 2003,
stock-based compensation expense increased in each quarter. This increase is due to the granting of additional employee and non-employee
stock options where the fair value of our stock determined for financial reporting purposes was greater than the fair value determined by our board
of directors on the date of such grants.
 

Interest and Other Income.    The quarter over quarter fluctuations in 2002 and 2003 were primarily the result of our cash flow and the
level of funds that we held in interest bearing accounts. In the first quarter of 2003, we had $28,000 of other income that was primarily the result of
a tax credit we received in connection with our Taiwan branch office.
 

Interest and Other Expense.    Interest and other expense in 2002 was largely due to convertible notes that were converted into shares of
our Series D Preferred Stock in the third quarter of 2002. Subsequent to the third quarter of 2002, we had no debt, and accordingly, minimal
interest expense.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2004 were $12.1 million, and short-term investments were $0.5 million. As of December 31,
2003, we had $12.1 million in cash and cash equivalents and $1.0 million in short-term investments. We have financed our growth primarily with
proceeds from the issuance of preferred and common stock.
 

Net cash provided by operating activities was $39,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2004, compared to $3.2 million of cash used for
the six months ended June 30, 2003. The cash provided by operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2004 was due to a decrease in
accounts receivable of $0.9 million, increases in accrued liabilities of $0.8 million, accrued compensation of $1.2 million, and accounts payable of
$0.4 million. This was offset by a increase in prepaid and other expenses of $1.3 million and our payment of $5.3 million cash deposit to a court in
Taiwan related to our patent litigation with O2. In addition, we had a $6.3 million stock compensation expense, $0.5 million of depreciation, which
are each non-cash transactions, and our loss of $3.6 million. The decrease in accounts receivable was primarily the result of one of our largest
customers delaying payment in the second half of 2003 because it was in the process of being acquired by another company. Following the
acquisition, the customer paid $3.7 million in the first half of 2004, so its account is now current. The increase in prepaid and other expense was
primarily due to increased legal expenses related to our pending public offering. The use of cash in operating activities for the six months ended
June 30, 2003 was primarily due to our net loss of $3.6 million. We also paid $0.8 million as a deposit to a court in Taiwan relating to the O2 patent
litigation and decreased our accounts payable by $0.7 million, which was partially offset by a $0.4 million decrease in inventory.
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Our operating activities used cash in the amount of $2.4 million, $2.4 million, and $3.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2001,
2002, and 2003, respectively. The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily driven by our net losses and by increases in our
working capital requirements. In particular, in 2003 our accounts receivable increased by $3.3 million over 2002. This increase was the result of an
increase in revenues and the timing of payments from our customers. In the second half of 2003, one of our largest end customers announced that
it was being acquired, which caused a delay in its normal payment process. This contributed to the increase in our accounts receivable as the
delay impacted the timing of payments from a third party under a distribution arrangement. These amounts were substantially collected in February
2004, and we are now experiencing normal collection periods from this customer. In addition, we had an increase of $0.8 million in long-term
restricted assets for the year ended December 31, 2003, due to our deposit paid to a court in Taiwan related to our patent litigation with O2.
 

In addition, we have the following litigation-related contingencies that might also affect our liquidity and capital resources: cash bonds of
approximately $6.1 million posted with Taiwanese courts, potential penalties relating to our injunctions, and/or possible future legal fees and
indemnification obligations to be incurred in connection with our O2 and Linear litigation matters. Please refer to “Business—Legal Proceedings” on
page 52 for a more complete discussion of these contingencies.
 

Net cash used in investing activities was $0.3 million in the six months June 30, 2004 and $8.3 million in the six months ended June 30,
2003. In the six months ended June 30, 2004, we purchased $0.8 million of capital equipment, which was partially offset by the sale of $0.5 million
of short-term investments. In the six months ended June 30, 2003, we purchased $0.3 million of capital equipment and we purchased $8.0 million
of short-term investments, which are not accounted for as cash and cash equivalents.
 

Our investing activities used cash of $0.5 million, $1.1 million, and $2.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and
2003, respectively. In 2003, the increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily due to purchases of capital equipment to support our
growth and purchases of short-term investments.
 

Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2004 was $0.3 million, compared to $0.1 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2003. The cash provided by investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2004 was the result of the exercise of
stock options by employees. The cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2003 was the result of the exercise of
stock options by employees and payment of a note by a stockholder.
 

Our financing activities provided $7.2 million, $15.4 million, and $0.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003,
respectively. Financing activities in 2001 and 2002 primarily include proceeds from the issuance of convertible preferred stock and common stock.
Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $0.5 million, primarily due to exercises of stock options by
employees.
 

We believe our existing cash balances and short-term investments, as well as cash expected to be generated from operating activities, will
be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next 12 months. We have signed an agreement with a Chinese local authority to
establish a facility in China, initially for the testing of our ICs. Pursuant to the agreement, we have agreed to contribute capital (in the form of cash,
in-kind assets, and/or intellectual property) of at least $5 million to a wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary as the registered capital of the subsidiary.
From the date when the local authorities have both approved the establishment of our Chinese subsidiary and granted its business license, $0.8
million of the investment is to occur within three months and the remaining balance is to
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occur within three years. We currently anticipate that of the registered capital, approximately $0.5 million will consist of cash and $4.5 million will
consist of in-kind assets, such as testing equipment and office equipment, furniture, and supplies. Our long-term future capital requirements will
depend on many factors, including our level of revenues, the timing and extent of spending to support product development efforts, the expansion
of sales and marketing activities, the timing of introductions of new products, the costs to ensure access to adequate manufacturing capacity, and
the continuing market acceptance of our products. We could be required, or could elect, to seek additional funding through public or private equity
or debt financing and additional funds may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all.
 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 

As of June 30, 2004, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Regulation S-K.
 

Contractual Obligations
 

The following table describes our commitments to settle contractual obligations in cash as of December 31, 2003 (amounts in thousands):
 

   

Payments due by period

   

Total
  

Less than
1 year

  

1-3
years

  

4-5
years

  

After
5 years

Operating leases   $ 2,590  $ 465  $994  $ 1,041  $ 90
Purchase obligations    1,541   1,541   —   —   —
           

Total commitments   $ 4,131  $ 2,006  $994  $ 1,041  $ 90
           
 

Since December 31, 2003, we have signed an agreement to establish a facility in China, pursuant to which we have incurred additional
commitments to settle contractual obligations of up to $5 million, as described above.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis, including those related to uncollectible accounts receivable, inventories,
income taxes, warranty obligations and contingencies, and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Because these estimates can vary depending on the
situation, actual results may differ from the estimates.
 

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.
 

Revenue Recognition.    We recognize revenues in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements, as amended by SAB 101A and 101B
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(“SAB 101”) and SAB 104, Revenue Recognition (collectively referred to as SAB 104). SAB 104 requires that four basic criteria must be met
before revenue can be recognized: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; (3)
the fee is fixed and determinable; and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Determination of criteria (3) and (4) are based on management’s
judgment regarding the fixed nature of the fee charged for products delivered and the collectibility of those fees. The application of these criteria
has resulted in our recognizing revenue upon shipment (when title passes) to most customers, but in the case of one third party, who accounted
for 30% of our revenue in 2003, we have recognized revenue upon its sale of our products to its customers (sell through basis). We discontinued
using this third party in March 2004. Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria are not met for certain future
transactions, revenues recognized for any reporting period could be adversely impacted.
 

The majority of our sales are made through distribution arrangements with third parties. Although some of these arrangements include stock
rotation rights that permit the return of up to 5% of the previous six months’ purchases (no more than once every six months), we have not
experienced any significant returns pursuant to these provisions. Our normal payment terms with our distributors are 30 days from invoice date
and our arrangements with our largest distributors do not include price protection provisions. Although some of our arrangements with smaller
distributors include price protection provisions permitting them a credit for unsold inventory if we reduce our list prices, we have not experienced
any significant claims pursuant to these provisions. In addition, terms of our significant distribution agreements include the non-exclusive right to
sell, and the agreement to use best efforts to promote and develop a market for, our products in certain regions of the world and the ability to
terminate the agreement by either party with three months notice. We provide a standard 90-day warranty against defects in materials and
workmanship and will either repair the goods, provide replacements at no charge to the customer, or refund amounts to the customer for defective
products. Estimated sales returns and warranty costs, based on historical experience by product, are recorded at the time product revenue is
recognized. We formerly had one distribution arrangement with a third party with extended payment terms. These terms were the lesser of 60 days
or upon receipt of end customer payment by the third party. Revenue for this arrangement was recognized on a sell-through basis, when the goods
were shipped by the third party to the end customer. Under such distribution arrangement, the third party did not typically stock inventory of our
products.
 

Inventory Valuation.    We value our inventory at the lower of the actual costs of our inventory or its current estimated market value. We
write down inventory for obsolescence or unmarketable inventories based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.    Our stock-based employee compensation plans are described more fully in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. We account for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock issued to Employees, and related interpretations. We amortize deferred stock-based compensation
over the vesting periods of the related options, which are generally four years, in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28, Accounting for
Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans, an interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25.
 

We have recorded deferred stock-based compensation representing the difference between the deemed fair market value of our common
stock for accounting purposes and the option exercise price. We determined the fair market value of our common stock based upon several
factors, including trends in the broad market for technology stocks and the expected valuation we would obtain in an initial public offering. Had
different assumptions or criteria been used to determine the fair market value of our common stock, materially different amounts of stock-based
compensation could have been reported.
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Pro forma information regarding net loss attributable to common stockholders and net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
is required in order to show our net loss as if we had accounted for employee stock options under the fair value method of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, Transition and Disclosure. This information is contained in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
options issued pursuant to our option plan at the grant date were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
Transition and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also requires that disclosures of the pro forma effect of using the fair value
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation be displayed more prominently and in a tabular format. Additionally, SFAS No. 148
requires disclosure of the pro forma effect in interim financial statements. We have adopted the transition and annual disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 148, which were effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and have elected to continue to account for employee stock
options under APB Opinion No. 25. The adoption of this standard did not have an effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows.
 

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments that are settled in cash, including certain types of mandatorily redeemable
securities, be classified as liabilities rather than as equity or temporary equity. SFAS No. 150 becomes effective for financial instruments entered
into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
 

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue Recognition (SAB No. 104), which codifies, revises
and rescinds certain sections of SAB No. 101, Revenue Recognition, in order to make this interpretive guidance consistent with current
authoritative accounting and auditing guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB No. 104 did not have a material effect
on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (FIN 45). FIN 45 requires the guarantor to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. It also elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its
financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued and to be made in regard of product warranties. The adoption
of FIN 45 did not to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
 

In December 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. This Issue
addresses certain aspects of the accounting by a vendor for arrangements under which it will perform multiple revenue-generating activities. In
some arrangements, the different revenue-generating activities (deliverables) are sufficiently separable and there exists sufficient evidence of their
fair values to separately account for some or all of the deliveries (that is, there are separate units of accounting). In other arrangements, some or
all of the deliveries are not independently functional, or there is not sufficient evidence of their fair values to account for them
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separately. This Issue addresses when, and if so, how an arrangement involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of
accounting. This Issue does not change otherwise applicable revenue recognition criteria. The guidance in this Issue is effective for revenue
arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of EITF 00-21 did not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.
 

The FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, in January 2003, and a revised interpretation of
FIN 46 (FIN 46-R) in December 2003. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities (VIEs) to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the
entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for
the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective
immediately for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. Since January 31, 2003, we have not invested in any entities that we believe
are variable interest entities for which we are the primary beneficiary. For all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003, we are required to
continue to apply FIN 46 through the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2004. We are required to adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R for those
arrangements in the second quarter of fiscal 2004. For arrangements entered into prior to February 1, 2003, we are required to adopt the provisions
of FIN 46-R in the second quarter of fiscal 2004. We do not expect the adoption of FIN 46-R to have an impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
 
Disclosure About Market Risk
 

We do not use derivative financial instruments in our operations or investment portfolio. We do not have material exposure to market risk
associated with changes in interest rates, as we have no long-term debt obligations or long-term investments outstanding. Our investment portfolio
consists of short-term corporate debt instruments and Federal government agency debt instruments that are classified as available-for-sale. The
weighted average remaining maturity of our investment portfolio was less than 190 days at December 31, 2003 and less than 100 days at June 30,
2004. We held no investments in 2002. We do not expect to be subject to material interest rate risk with respect to our short-term investments. We
do not believe we have any other material exposure to market risk associated with interest rates.
 

Although we conduct business in foreign countries, our international operations consist primarily of sales offices and, in the future, a test
facility in China. Foreign currency translation gains and losses were not material to our results of operations for any period presented. Accordingly,
we do not expect to be subject to material foreign currency risk with respect to future costs or cash flows from our foreign operations. To date, we
have not entered into any foreign currency forward exchange contracts or other derivative financial instruments to hedge the effects of fluctuations
in foreign currency rates.
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 BUSINESS
 

Monolithic Power Systems is a high performance analog and mixed-signal semiconductor company. We design, develop, and market
proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal semiconductors for large and high growth markets. Our semiconductors, or integrated circuits (ICs),
are used in a variety of electronic products, such as notebook computers, flat panel displays, cellular handsets, digital cameras, wireless local
area network (LAN) access points, home entertainment systems, and personal digital assistants. Our ICs are used to perform functions such as
lighting electronic displays, converting or controlling voltages or current within systems, and amplifying sound. We differentiate our ICs by offering
solutions that are more highly-integrated, smaller in size, more energy efficient, more accurate with respect to performance specifications, and,
accordingly, more cost-effective than many competing solutions. Our ability to offer these benefits to customers is enabled by our three core
strengths: our deep system-level and applications knowledge, our strong analog and mixed-signal design expertise, and our proprietary process
technology for the design and manufacture of our ICs.
 
Industry Background
 

Industry Overview.    Semiconductors comprise the basic building blocks of electronic systems and equipment. With the proliferation of
electronic products and increasing semiconductor content in these products, according to the Semiconductor Industry Association (SIA), the
semiconductor industry has grown from an $18 billion industry in 1983 to a $166 billion industry in 2003, representing a compound annual growth
rate of 11.8%. According to the SIA, the industry is expected to continue to experience strong growth over the next three years, reaching an
estimated $247 billion in 2007.
 

Within the semiconductor industry, components can be classified as either discrete devices, such as individual transistors, or ICs, in which
a number of transistors and other elements are combined to form a more complicated electronic circuit. ICs can be further divided into three
primary categories: digital, analog, and mixed-signal. Digital ICs, such as memory devices and microprocessors, can store or perform arithmetic
functions on data that is represented by a series of ones and zeroes. Analog ICs, in contrast, handle real world signals such as temperature,
pressure, light, sound, or speed. In addition, analog ICs also perform power management functions, such as regulating or converting voltages, for
electronic devices. Mixed-signal ICs combine digital and analog functions onto a single chip and play an important role in bridging real world
phenomena to digital systems.
 

Analog and Mixed-Signal Markets.    We focus on the market for analog and mixed-signal ICs. According to the SIA, the market for
analog and mixed-signal ICs was $26.8 billion in 2003 and is projected to grow to $42.7 billion in 2007. There are several key factors that
distinguish the analog and mixed-signal IC market from digital IC markets. These factors include:
 

 

Ÿ Longer product life cycles.    Analog ICs generally have longer product life cycles than digital ICs because original equipment
manufacturers and original design manufacturers typically design the analog portions of their systems to span multiple generations of
their products. This enables manufacturers to avoid changing the analog portions of their systems, as changing analog components may
cause unexpected problems with their products’ other components. As a result, the typical life cycle for analog and mixed-signal ICs
often exceeds three years and spans over multiple product generations.

 
 Ÿ Relatively stable pricing environment.    There are a number of aspects of the analog and mixed-signal IC market that contribute to a

more stable pricing environment relative to the market for digital ICs:
 

 
Ÿ Market fragmentation.    Because of their various applications and functions, analog and mixed-signal ICs have a wide range of

operating specifications. Different customers have unique requirements for ICs with respect to resolution, speed, power capabilities,
and signal
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amplitudes. This differentiation results in a higher degree of market fragmentation and tends to limit the number of competitors
within a specific product category.

 

 
Ÿ Difficult-to-replicate technology.    Because each high performance analog and mixed-signal IC incorporates proprietary design

and process technology, it is relatively difficult for new market entrants to duplicate the functionality and performance
characteristics of a given analog or mixed-signal IC.

 

 
Ÿ Limited Asian competition.    Historically, most Japanese and other Asian manufacturers have concentrated their efforts on high

volume digital IC markets rather than on the high performance analog and mixed-signal market. Accordingly, these manufacturers
generally do not have strong competencies in high performance analog and mixed-signal design.

 

 

Ÿ Relative complexity of design.    The design of an analog IC generally involves greater variety and less repetition of circuit elements
than in a digital IC design. The interaction of analog circuit elements is complex, and their exact placement is critical to the accuracy
and performance of an analog IC. Similarly, the process technology used plays an important role in analog IC development. For mixed-
signal ICs, additional complexity is encountered, as these devices require the combination of high-speed digital circuits and sensitive
analog circuits. Accordingly, we believe that more years of experience are required for a designer to develop an aptitude for analog and
mixed-signal design versus digital IC design. Accordingly, engineers with these skills are in limited supply.

 

 

Ÿ Lower capital requirements.    Digital IC design attempts to minimize device size and maximize speed by increasing circuit densities.
The process technologies required for most digital ICs necessitate expensive wafer fabrication equipment, photolithographic masks, and
software development tools. In contrast, analog IC design focuses on the precise matching and placement of circuit elements and
typically utilizes relatively larger feature sizes, resulting in relatively lower circuit densities. For these reasons, equipment used in the
analog and mixed-signal IC manufacturing process does not need to be “leading edge;” older equipment, often previously used in digital
IC production, is generally sufficient. For analog and mixed-signal IC providers, this typically translates into lower manufacturing costs
relative to digital IC production. In addition, given the larger supply of non-leading edge equipment in the semiconductor industry broadly,
this results in an increased availability of manufacturing capacity.

 

 

Ÿ Diversity of end markets.    Analog and mixed-signal ICs are used in virtually every electronic system, such as computers, consumer
electronic devices, communications equipment, industrial equipment, and automotive electronics. Because of the varied uses for analog
and mixed-signal ICs, analog and mixed-signal IC suppliers often experience greater diversity in their mix of end markets and customers
relative to digital IC suppliers, which tends to result in a more stable business model.

 
Key Trends in the Analog and Mixed-Signal IC Market.    There are a number of trends currently impacting the analog and mixed-signal

IC markets, and, in particular, analog and mixed-signal IC companies focused on delivering products to the computing, consumer electronics, and
wireless markets. These trends include:
 

 

Ÿ Drive toward smaller, lighter, and more power efficient electronic devices.    As notebook computers, cellular handsets, personal
digital assistants, and other electronic devices continue to proliferate, equipment manufacturers are increasingly focused on delivering
products with smaller form factors. In addition, there is an increasing focus on power efficiency within electronic systems, as improved
power efficiency can result in reduced power consumption and extended battery run times for portable devices. Original equipment
manufacturers and original design manufacturers are looking for semiconductor products that facilitate these features, which are
typically achieved through higher degrees of IC integration, enhanced power device design, and a reduction in both the number and size
of additional components required for a system.
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Ÿ Focus on enhanced audio and visual experiences.    For electronic equipment vendors, a source of competitive differentiation lies in
their ability to provide an enhanced audio and visual experience to their customers while continually making their products more
affordable. Evidence of this trend can be seen in the growing adoption of color cellular handsets, liquid crystal display (LCD) monitors,
flat panels in automotive applications, and higher megapixel digital cameras, as well as in the emergence of the flat panel television
market. For example, according to IDC, the flat panel monitor market is expected to grow from 67 million units in 2004 to about 138
million units in 2008, representing a compound annual growth rate of almost 20%. Semiconductors that can, in a cost-effective manner,
improve a product’s audio and visual performance, such as by providing enhanced sound quality or by providing improved display
brightness and clarity, will be well positioned to capitalize on this industry trend.

 

 

Ÿ Continued growth in wireless connectivity.    With the proliferation of wireless networks, combined with an increasing demand for
network connectivity, the market for portable electronic devices, such as notebook computers, personal digital assistants, cellular
handsets, and global positioning systems is poised to experience strong growth. For example, according to IDC, the converged mobile
device market, which includes products that combine cellular handset and handheld device functionality, is expected to grow from 21
million units in 2004 to 99 million units in 2008, representing a compound annual growth rate of 47%. With the growth in the market for
portable electronic devices, electronic equipment manufacturers are faced with the challenge of delivering products that offer enhanced
features and performance, while simultaneously maintaining or lengthening battery run times.

 
Our Core Strengths
 

Our core strengths enable us to offer highly integrated, efficient, accurate, and cost-effective analog and mixed-signal solutions to our
customers. These strengths include:
 

Systems-level expertise and applications knowledge.    We have a deep base of systems-level and applications knowledge, particularly
in the computing, consumer electronics, and wireless markets. This knowledge is extremely important because it allows us to work very closely
with our customers during their design process to develop products quickly and to enhance their time to market. Close alignment with our
customers further benefits both our customers and us as we are better able to help our customers address their design challenges through new
products or features and by identifying potential areas for future integration. In addition, working closely with our customers helps us to recognize
areas in which to expand our design and development efforts in the future.
 

Analog and mixed-signal design expertise.    Analog and mixed-signal IC design is a complex process. It generally takes an analog
design engineer a longer period of time, relative to a digital engineer, to be considered productive, and analog design engineering talent is in limited
supply. We have assembled a strong team of analog and mixed-signal design engineers who average over 15 years of experience. Our expertise
includes, in particular, a strength in mixed-signal integration, through which we are able to combine onto a single IC many of the components of an
entire electronic system or sub-system. Through our analog and mixed-signal design capabilities, we have developed a portfolio of intellectual
property and know-how that we are able to leverage across our products and markets.
 

Proprietary process technology.    A key deficiency of conventional analog process technologies is that they generally cannot support
integration of power devices at high power levels without resulting in either unacceptably large semiconductors or in significant levels of power
loss. High levels of power loss result in significant heat dissipation, which then must be managed to avoid harm to a system. To avoid these
problems, many other analog semiconductor vendors design solutions comprised of multiple chips. Our process technology overcomes this
limitation, allowing us to deliver smaller, single-chip solutions with strong degrees of both efficiency and accuracy. In addition, we
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believe that having one process technology that is broadly applicable across a wide range of analog and mixed-signal application simplifies our
design process and results in higher design productivity. Through our process technology, we are able to simplify our manufacturing process,
improve our yields, and lower our manufacturing costs.
 

Strong Asia presence.    In recent years, original equipment manufacturers have migrated toward outsourcing the manufacture, and
increasingly the design, of their products to original design manufacturers and electronic manufacturing service providers in Asia, particularly in
Taiwan and China. In order to address this trend, we have established a strong presence in Asia, including sales representatives, customer
support personnel, and field application engineers. We view this as being extremely important to our business over the long-term in order to remain
close to our customers and to their product selection processes. Over time, we expect that our presence in the Asia region will continue to
expand, particularly as we seek opportunities to increase our applications and design resources in lower cost geographies.
 
Our Strategy
 

Our goal is to be a leading provider of proprietary, high performance analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits to large and high growth
markets. To accomplish our goal, we intend to pursue the following strategies:
 

Focus on large and high growth markets.    We are focused on delivering products to large and high growth markets and are currently
targeting the computing, consumer electronics, and wireless markets. Within these markets, we focus our efforts on applications that align well
with our core strengths. These include applications that are particularly sensitive to size, portability, and energy efficiency issues such as
notebook computers, flat panel displays, flat panel televisions, cellular handsets, digital cameras, wireless LAN access points, home
entertainment systems, and personal digital assistants. We seek to increase our market share in our target markets by continuing to offer
solutions that are more highly-integrated, more efficient, more accurate and, accordingly, more cost-effective than competing solutions.
 

Leverage our core strengths to expand our product portfolio.    We intend to leverage our core strengths, including systems-level and
applications knowledge, analog and mixed-signal design expertise, and our proprietary process technology, to expand our product portfolio. We are
seeking to expand our product portfolio in our existing markets, as well as into new markets and applications such as industrial equipment and
automotive electronics. For our existing markets, our primary focus is on increasing our semiconductor content within current applications. For new
markets and applications, our focus is on adapting our current products and technologies to address the unique requirements of these industries.
For example, we are currently expanding our DC to DC converter product family to offer products for the automotive, industrial, and medical device
markets. These new DC to DC converter ICs are based on our core DC to DC converter design that we developed for use in our computing,
consumer, and wireless markets. Through our efforts, we intend both to increase our addressable market opportunity and to further diversify our
revenues.
 

Continue to invest in research and development to extend our technology leadership position.    Continued investment in research
and development is critically important to maintain and to extend our technology leadership position. Through our investment in research and
development, we have developed a portfolio of intellectual property and know-how that we are able to apply to new products and markets. We are
continuing to invest in research and development to further expand our product portfolio, build on our applications expertise, improve our device
structures, and refine our process technologies. For example, we are currently investing in new product areas including operational amplifier ICs,
which are used in high definition televisions and flat panel displays, as well as various industrial and communications applications. We expect that
our investments in research and development will also result in growth in our patent and other intellectual property portfolio.
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Expand our sales and applications support organization globally.    We currently have sales offices in the United States, Taiwan,
Korea, and China, and we intend to continue to expand our sales and applications support organization to broaden our customer reach in both new
and existing regions. Given the continued globalization of our customers’ supply chains, particularly with respect to design and manufacturing,
having a global presence becomes increasingly important to securing new customers and design wins and to delivering our products. For example,
in 2004, we plan to expand our operations in both Japan and Europe. In addition, we are focused on developing closer relationships with our current
customers and seek to expand our product offerings both within their existing applications as well as within new application segments served by
these customers.
 
Products and Applications
 

We currently have four standard product families that address multiple applications within the computing, consumer, and wireless markets.
Our products are differentiated with respect to their high degree of integration and strong levels of accuracy and efficiency, making them cost-
effective relative to many competing solutions. These product families include:
 

Cold Cathode Fluorescent Lamp (CCFL) Backlight Inverter ICs.    CCFL backlight inverter ICs are used in systems that provide the light
source for LCD panels typically found in notebooks, flat panel monitors, car navigational systems, and, more recently, LCD televisions. These ICs
function by converting low voltage direct current (DC) or battery voltage to high voltage alternating current (AC). We believe our CCFL backlight
inverter ICs were the first to utilize a full bridge topology that allows for high efficiency, extended lifetimes for CCFL lamps, and lower signal
interference with adjacent components. The full bridge topology is now industry standard for these products. We also believe that our CCFL
backlight inverter ICs are the semiconductor industry’s only backlight inverter ICs with four fully-integrated power devices. This integration reduces
the overall size, total solution part count, and cost for our customers.
 

Direct Current (DC) to DC Converter ICs.    DC to DC converter ICs are used to convert and control voltages within a broad range of
electronic systems, such as portable electronic devices, wireless LAN access points, home appliances, automobiles, and medical equipment. We
believe that our DC to DC converters are differentiated particularly with respect to their high degree of integration and rapid switching speeds.
These features are important to our customers as they result in fewer components, smaller form factors, more accurate regulation of voltages,
and, ultimately, lower system costs through the elimination of discrete power devices.
 

Light Emitting Diode (LED) Driver ICs.    LED driver ICs are used in lighting displays and can be used in small, portable devices, such as
color cellular handsets, personal digital assistants, global positioning systems, and electronic gaming systems, as well as in emerging applications
such as traffic lights and automobile signal lights. We were one of the first companies to offer LED driver ICs with a protection feature that limits
damage to a system in the event of a poor connection. We believe that our LED driver ICs are differentiated in the market with respect to their
small size, power efficiency, and cost-effectiveness.
 

Audio Amplifier ICs.    Audio amplifier ICs are used to amplify sound produced by audio processors. We currently offer Class D audio
amplifiers, which are well-suited for applications that are particularly sensitive to both size and power efficiency, such as plasma televisions, LCD
televisions, and DVD players. With today’s systems becoming smaller and utilizing larger amounts of power, solution sizes and the management
of heat dissipation are becoming increasingly important to overall system design. The high degree of power efficiency and small form factor
provided by our Class D audio amplifiers allows system vendors to significantly reduce heat dissipation, eliminating the costly and sizable fans
and heat sinks traditionally required by audio amplifier ICs. These features enable our customers to achieve their objectives without sacrificing
sound quality.
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We currently target the computing, consumer electronics, and wireless markets. Of these three markets, the computing market represents
the largest portion of our revenues, accounting for a majority of revenues in 2003. As we continue to expand our product portfolio and addressable
markets, and as other end markets in which we participate continue to grow, we expect that our revenues from the computing market may decline
as a percentage of our total revenues over time. The following chart illustrates the applications for our products in several major market categories.
For each of these applications, we currently have either design wins or are shipping product:
 

  

Representative End Markets

Product Family
 

Computing
 

Consumer Electronics
 

Wireless
 

Other

CCFL Backlight
Inverter ICs

 

Ÿ Notebook computers
 Ÿ LCD monitors
 Ÿ Web tablets

 

Ÿ LCD televisions
 Ÿ Personal digital

assistants
 Ÿ Digital cameras  

 

 

Ÿ Automotive GPS
systems

 Ÿ Industrial LCD
displays

DC to DC
Converter ICs

 

Ÿ Notebook computers
 Ÿ Flat panel monitors
 Ÿ Network attached

storage

 

Ÿ LCD and plasma
televisions

 Ÿ DVD players
 Ÿ Electronic game

consoles
 Ÿ Digital audio amplifiers
 Ÿ Set top boxes
 Ÿ Personal digital

assistants  

Ÿ Wireless LAN access
points

 Ÿ Routers
 Ÿ Wireless LAN cards
 Ÿ Cellular handsets

 

Ÿ Automotive
entertainment
systems

 Ÿ Medical equipment
 Ÿ Customer Premises

Equipment (CPE)
modems

LED Driver ICs

 

 

 

Ÿ Digital cameras
 Ÿ Color personal digital

assistants
 Ÿ Portable DVD players
 Ÿ Portable GPS systems
 Ÿ Handheld electronic

games  

Ÿ Color cellular handsets
 Ÿ Flash lighting for

camera-enabled cellular
handsets

 

Ÿ Traffic lights
 Ÿ Automotive signal

lights
 Ÿ Medical equipment

Audio Amplifier ICs

 

Ÿ Flat panel monitors
 Ÿ Accessory speakers for

flat panel monitors

 

Ÿ DVD players
 Ÿ Digital audio amplifiers
 Ÿ Home entertainment

centers
 Ÿ LCD and plasma

televisions  

Ÿ Speaker phones

 

Ÿ Automotive
entertainment
systems

 Ÿ Automotive GPS
systems
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Customers, Sales, and Marketing
 

We market our products through distribution arrangements and through our direct sales and applications support organization to original
equipment manufacturers, original design manufacturers, and electronic manufacturing service providers. Original design manufacturers typically
design and manufacture electronic products on behalf of original equipment manufacturers, and electronic manufacturing service providers
typically provide manufacturing services for original equipment manufacturers and other electronic product suppliers. Our largest direct customers
in 2003 were CTP, Yosun, and Ambit/Unique Logistics, with whom we currently have or formerly had distribution arrangements, accounting for
30%, 16%, and 14% of revenues, respectively. We terminated our distribution arrangement with CTP in March 2004, and expanded our distribution
arrangements with Asian Information Technology, or AIT, and Uppertech. Our current distribution agreements with AIT and Uppertech provide that
each distributor shall each have the non-exclusive right to sell, and each agrees to use its best efforts to promote and develop a market for, our
products in China, Taiwan, and Hong Kong, that each agreement may be terminated by either us or the distributor on three months’ notice, and
that payment shall occur within 30 days from the end of the month in which we deliver the product. Neither agreement includes price protection
provisions. Original design manufacturers, electronic manufacturing service providers, and other third parties under distribution arrangements are
not end customers, but rather serve as a channel to many end users of our products, while other end users of our products purchase from us
directly. Our end users include Acer, Dell, Hewlett-Packard, and IBM, in the computing industry, LG Electronics, Samsung, and Sharp in the
consumer electronics industry, and Apple, Dell, LG Electronics, and Motorola in the wireless industry.
 

We have sales offices located in the United States, Taiwan, China, and Korea. Because our products typically require a highly technical
sales effort, we are planning to expand our base of sales and applications support personnel worldwide. For example, in 2004, we expect to open
additional sales offices in both Japan and Europe.
 

Because our sales are billed and payable in United States dollars, our sales are not directly subject to fluctuating currency exchange rates.
However, because 98.6% of our revenues in 2003 were attributable to direct or indirect sales to customers who manufacture their products in Asia,
changes in the relative value of the dollar may create pricing pressures for our products.
 

We generally warrant our products for 90 days from shipment and for longer periods in certain cases. Historical warranty expense as a
percentage of revenues has been 2%, 1%, and 1% in 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.
 

Our sales are made primarily pursuant to standard individual purchase orders. Our backlog consists of orders that we have received from
customers that have not yet shipped. Our backlog at June 30, 2004 was $8.9 million, and our backlog at June 30, 2003 was $3.0 million. As order
lead times may vary and as industry practice allows customers to reschedule or cancel orders on relatively short notice, we believe that backlog is
not necessarily a good indicator of future sales, and our quarterly revenues also depend on orders booked and shipped in that quarter. Because our
manufacturing lead times are generally 6 to 8 weeks, we often must build in advance of customer orders. This subjects us to certain risks, most
notably the possibility that expected sales will not materialize, leading to excess inventory. If we have excess inventory we would expect to either
sell it at a substantial discount or dispose of it altogether, either of which would negatively affect our profit margins.
 
Research and Development
 

We have assembled a qualified team of engineers with core competencies in analog and mixed-signal design expertise. Through our
research and development efforts, we have developed a
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collection of intellectual property and know-how that we are able to leverage across our products and markets. Examples of our intellectual
property and know-how include the development of high efficiency power devices, the design of precision analog circuits, and expertise in mixed-
signal integration.
 

Our research and development efforts are generally targeted at three areas: system architectures, circuit design and implementation, and
process technology. In the area of system architectures, we are exploring new ways of solving our customers’ system design challenges and are
investing in the development of systems expertise in new markets and applications that align well with our core capabilities. In the area of circuit
design and implementation, our initiatives include expanding our portfolio of products, developing more standard cells and libraries, improving our
device structures, and adding new features to our products. For example, we are currently working to expand our product portfolio into new
products areas such as operational amplifiers.
 

We have developed a proprietary process technology that is applicable across a wide range of analog and mixed-signal products. We intend
to continue to invest in our process technology to further refine this technology with respect to overall chip size and power handling capabilities. As
appropriate, in the future, we may also expand our base of process technologies, but only if these technologies are cost-effective and enable us to
further expand our product offerings beyond what is currently achievable.
 

Through our research and development efforts, we seek to continually expand our portfolio of patents and to enhance our intellectual
property position. As of June 30, 2004, we had 54 employees involved in research and development. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we
incurred $5.5 million in research and development costs, excluding stock-based compensation of $1.0 million.
 
Manufacturing
 

We utilize a fabless business model, working with third parties to manufacture and assemble our integrated circuits. This fabless approach
allows us to focus our engineering and design resources on our strengths and to reduce our fixed costs and capital expenditures. In contrast to
many fabless semiconductor companies which utilize standard process technologies and design rules established by their foundry partners, we
have developed our own proprietary process technology and collaborate with our foundry partners to install our technology on their equipment in
their facilities for use solely on our behalf. This close collaboration and control over the manufacturing process has historically resulted in favorable
yields for our integrated circuits.
 

We currently contract with ASMC to manufacture our wafers in foundries located in China. Once our silicon wafers have been produced,
they are shipped either to third party subcontractors or to our facilities in Los Gatos for wafer sort. Our semiconductor products are then
assembled and packaged by independent subcontractors in Malaysia, China, and Thailand. The assembled ICs are then forwarded for final testing,
primarily at our Los Gatos facilities, prior to shipping to our customers. We have signed an agreement with a Chinese local authority to establish a
facility in China, initially for the testing of our ICs. Pursuant to the agreement, we have agreed to contribute capital (in the form of cash, in-kind
assets, and/or intellectual property) of at least $5 million to a wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary as the registered capital of the subsidiary. From the
date when the local authorities have both approved the establishment of our Chinese subsidiary and granted its business license, $0.8 million of
the investment is to occur within three months and the remaining balance is to occur within three years. We currently anticipate that of the
registered capital, approximately $0.5 million will consist of cash and $4.5 million will consist of in-kind assets, such as testing equipment and
office equipment, furniture, and supplies.
 

Pursuant to the agreement, the local authorities have agreed to pay for, design, and build our plant and related infrastructure based on our
specifications. We have agreed to buy the plant five years
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after completion for the actual cost of construction, which is anticipated to be under $1 million. Prior to the plant purchase, we have agreed to
make quarterly lease payments, which will ultimately be applied against the construction costs due at the end of the five years. The local
authorities have agreed to ensure that we will obtain all necessary licenses for doing business, that we will obtain favorable tax treatment, similar
to other foreign technology companies, and that we will obtain our land use rights. Additionally, we will not require an export license and, upon
approval by the applicable authorities, will be exempt from certain import value-added taxes and custom duties. If, at the end of five years, we
elect not to purchase the plant, then the agreement will terminated and the local authorities can take back title to the plant, revoke our land use
rights, and will refund our land purchase price. However, the local authority will retain all lease payments.
 

We expect the facility to become operational around September 2005, at which point we hope to realize several improvements in our
business model. In the near term, we expect to experience an immediate reduction in testing and shipping costs, due to lower labor and facility
costs and significantly shorter transportation distances. In the intermediate to long term, we hope to expand our product testing capabilities in our
China facility and be positioned to be able to take advantage of the rich pool of local engineering talent to expand our manufacturing support
operations. In addition to improvements that may result from our China facility, we are currently in the process of further streamlining our
manufacturing process to both decrease our cycle times and to reduce our manufacturing costs.
 

Our agreement with ASMC has a four year term ending in August 2005 and includes no long-term capacity commitments by ASMC or us.
Under the terms of our agreement with ASMC, we are required to provide ASMC with purchase orders for wafers at least three months in advance.
If we cancel these orders after ASMC’s commencement of manufacturing, which generally occurs six to eight weeks before scheduled delivery of
the wafers, we must pay cancellation fees to ASMC. We cannot assure you that we will continue to work successfully with ASMC in the future,
that they will continue to provide us with sufficient capacity at their foundries to meet our needs, or that they will not seek an early termination of
their wafer supply agreement with us. Since we currently rely on ASMC to manufacture all of our semiconductor wafers, any disruption would harm
our business.
 
Competition
 

The analog and mixed-signal semiconductor industry is highly competitive, and we expect competitive pressures to continue. Our ability to
compete effectively and to expand our business will depend on our ability to continue to recruit both applications and design talent, our ability to
introduce new products, and our ability to maintain the rate at which we introduce these new products. Our industry is characterized by decreasing
unit selling prices over the life of a product. We compete with domestic and international semiconductor companies, many of which have
substantially greater financial and other resources with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing, marketing, and distribution of their products.
We are in direct and active competition, with respect to one or more of our product lines, with at least 10 manufacturers of such products, of
varying size and financial strength. The number of our competitors has grown due to expansion of the market segments in which we participate.
We consider our primary competitors to include Intersil Corporation, Linear Technology Corporation, Maxim Integrated Products, Micrel
Incorporated, Microsemi Corporation, National Semiconductor Corporation, O2 Micro International, Semtech Corporation, STMicroelectronics, and
Texas Instruments. We expect continued competition from existing competitors as well as competition from new entrants in the semiconductor
market. Our ability to compete successfully in the rapidly evolving area of integrated circuit technology depends on several factors, including:
 
 Ÿ Our success in designing and manufacturing new products that implement new technologies;
 
 Ÿ Our ability to recruit applications and design talent;
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 Ÿ Our protection of our processes, trade secrets, and know-how;
 
 Ÿ Our ability to maintain high product quality, reliability, and customer support;
 
 Ÿ The pricing policies of our competitors;
 
 Ÿ The performance of competitors’ products;
 
 Ÿ Our ability to deliver in large volume on a timely basis; and
 
 Ÿ Our manufacturing, distribution and marketing capability.
 

We believe that we are competitive with respect to these factors, particularly because our ICs typically are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, and achieve high performance specifications at lower price points than competitive products. However, we cannot assure you that our
products will continue to compete favorably or that we will be successful in the face of increasing competition from new products and
enhancements introduced by existing competitors or new companies entering this market.
 
Employees
 

As of June 30, 2004, we had 127 employees located in the United States, Taiwan, China, and Korea. Of these employees, approximately
42% were involved in research and development. Our success depends on the continued service of our key technical and senior management
personnel and on our ability to continue to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled analog and mixed-signal engineers.
 
Facilities
 

Our corporate headquarters, which serve as our principal administrative, sales, manufacturing, and research and development offices, are
located in two buildings in Los Gatos, California. We also complete the majority of our product testing at this location. Under a lease that expires in
February 2009, we occupy approximately 34,000 square feet in these two buildings, of which approximately 1,200 square feet are devoted to
production activities, which we are in the process of increasing to approximately 3,200 square feet. We have signed an agreement to establish a
facility in China, initially for the testing of our ICs. Upon completion of our China facility, we expect that testing activities at the Los Gatos facility
will decrease and that such activities would then be limited to the testing of new products not released to production. We also lease branch offices
in China and Taiwan. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our current operations. We believe that suitable replacement and
additional space will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms.
 
Intellectual Property Matters
 

We rely on our proprietary technologies, which include both our proprietary circuit designs for our products and our proprietary
manufacturing process technologies for manufacturing our products. Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to
obtain and maintain protection of our proprietary technologies. Our proprietary technologies include:
 
 Ÿ trade secret techniques for manufacturing ICs with a high level of integration of different types of semiconductor devices on a single

chip, enabling us to deliver ICs with more features and lower cost than competing solutions;
 
 Ÿ patented power transistor designs that are smaller, higher current, and more robust than competing transistor designs;
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 Ÿ patented architectures for Class D audio amplifiers that have higher sound quality and better power efficiency than competing
architectures; and

 
 Ÿ patented architectures for CCFL backlight inverters that are smaller and have longer lamp lifetimes and battery life than competing

architectures.
 

In general, we have elected to pursue patent protection for aspects of our circuit designs that we believe are patentable and to protect our
manufacturing process technologies by maintaining those process technologies as trade secrets. We have 12 issued United States patents and 52
United States and foreign applications on file. Our patents are material to our business, but we don’t rely on any one particular patent for our
success. Our issued U.S. patents are due to expire between 2018 and 2023. We also rely on a combination of nondisclosure agreements and
other contractual provisions, as well as our employees’ commitment to confidentiality and loyalty, to protect our technology, know-how, and
processes. We have entered into a patent license agreement with another integrated circuit company, pursuant to which we have granted this
company a license (with certain limited sublicense rights) under certain of our patents to make, use, and sell certain of this company’s own
integrated circuit products for a period of two years, and for which this company is obligated to pay us royalties based on sales of those products.
We also seek to register certain of our trademarks as we deem appropriate. We have not to date registered any of our copyrights and do not
believe registration of copyrights is material to our business. Despite precautions that we take, it may be possible for unauthorized third parties to
copy aspects of our current or future technology or products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. There can be no
assurance that the steps we take will be adequate to protect our proprietary rights, that our patent applications will lead to issued patents, that
others will not develop or patent similar or superior products or technologies, or that our patents will not be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented
by others. Furthermore, the laws of the countries in which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold may not protect our
products and intellectual property rights to the same extent as laws in the United States. Our failure to adequately protect our proprietary
technologies could harm our business.
 

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent claims of infringement and litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property
rights, such as our litigation with O2. Patent infringement is an ongoing risk, in part because other companies in our industry could have patent
rights that may not be identifiable when we initiate development efforts. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights, and
we may have to defend ourselves against infringement claims. Any such litigation could be very costly and may divert our management’s
resources. Further, we have agreed to indemnify our customers in some circumstances against liability from infringement by our products. In the
event any third party were to make an infringement claim against us or our customers, we could be enjoined from selling selected products or
could be required to indemnify our customers or pay royalties or other damages to third parties. If any of our products is found to infringe and we
are unable to obtain necessary licenses or other rights on acceptable terms, we would either have to change our product so that it does not infringe
or stop making the infringing product, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.
 
Legal Proceedings
 
O2 Micro
 

Overview
 

Since November 2000, we have been engaged in multiple legal proceedings against O2 Micro, Inc. (“O2 Micro”) and its parent corporation,
O2 Micro International Limited (“O2 International”). We refer to O2 Micro and O2 International together as “O2.” These proceedings involve various
claims and counterclaims in the United States and Taiwan by us and O2 alleging patent infringements and
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misappropriation of trade secrets, all of which relate to our CCFL backlight inverter product family. Although the Taiwanese injunction against us
specifically named only our MP 1011A and MP 1015 products within that product family, the underlying patent dispute involves issues that could
affect all of our CCFL backlight inverter products that are used in Taiwan. In 2003, revenues from our CCFL backlight inverter product family were
$16.9 million or 70% of total revenue, of which products used in Taiwan represented a significant portion of our total 2003 revenues. O2 has also
sued a number of other companies in the U.S. and Taiwan for patent infringement, including purchasers and/or users of certain of our products. All
of these legal proceedings are complex and pose various degrees of risk to us and our business.
 

Regardless of the extent to which these legal actions have been successful or not successful, the legal expenses associated with the
various actions in the U.S. and Taiwan have been very high and have had a significant impact on our financial position and results of operations.
Please read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” for more detail on the financial impact these
legal actions have had on us.
 

Patents at Issue
 

The various litigations arise from patents issued to O2 and us covering products that compete with each other.
 

Our Patents.    Our patents at issue are (i) U.S. Patent No. 6,114,814, issued to us on November 5, 2000 and relating to inverter ICs for
LCD display products (which include, for example, our CCFL backlight inverter product family) (“the ’814 patent”) and (ii) U.S. Patent No. 6,316,881
(“the ’881 patent”), a continuation of the ’814 patent that issued to us on November 13, 2001.
 

O2’s Patents.    The O2 patents at issue are (i) U.S. Patent No. 6,259,615 B1 issued to O2 International on July 10, 2001 and also relating
to inverter ICs for LCD display products (“the ’615 patent”), (ii) U.S. Patent No. 6,396,722 (“the ’722 patent”), a continuation of the ’615 patent that
issued to O2 on May 28, 2002, and (iii) Taiwan Patent No. 152318 issued to O2 International on March 1, 2002, which is a counterpart to the ’615
patent (“the ’318 patent”). O2’s original applications for its U.S. ’615 patent and its Taiwan ’318 patent were substantially similar, but some of O2’s
claims contained in the ’318 patent were rejected by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and accordingly the U.S. patent was narrowed
significantly before issuance. The Taiwan patent, however, was not similarly narrowed and was issued in the broader form originally requested.
 

U.S. Litigation
 

Various U.S. lawsuits between us and O2 have been consolidated in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. O2 has (i)
claimed that we interfered with O2’s prospective economic advantage and disrupted O2’s customer relationships by misrepresenting the scope of
our ’814 patent, (ii) asked the court to declare that O2 does not infringe our ’814 patent and that our ’814 patent is invalid, (iii) claimed that our
products infringe its ’615 patent, and (iv) claimed that we misappropriated its trade secrets. We have (i) claimed that O2’s products infringe our
’814 and ’881 patents and (ii) asked the court to declare that O2’s ’615 patent is invalid or not enforceable or that our products do not infringe O2’s
’615 patent. Each party denied the allegations in the other party’s complaints and sought damages and an injunction prohibiting the other party
from selling its products.
 

In February 2004 and May 2004, the court ruled on these matters as follows: (i) granting summary judgment for us that our products do not
infringe the ’615 patent, (ii) dismissing O2’s claim that we interfered with O2’s economic advantage, (iii) denying O2’s motion for summary
judgment that O2’s products do not infringe our ’814 and ’881 patents or that those patents are invalid, and (iv) denying both parties’ motions for
summary judgment on O2’s trade secret claims. We expect O2 to
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eventually appeal one or more of these rulings to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. O2 could wait to file any such appeal until
conclusion of the trial or could ask the trial judge to allow an earlier appeal prior to the trial.
 

The claims remaining after these rulings include (i) O2’s trade secret claims and (ii) our infringement claims for injunctive relief only and not
for damages. Trial on these matters is scheduled for February 2005. While we believe that our ’814 and ’881 patents are valid and that we have not
misappropriated any of O2’s trade secrets, a court could find differently. If the court finds that our ’814 and ’881 patents are invalid, our
competitive position would be severely harmed. If the court finds that we have misappropriated O2’s trade secrets, we could be liable for damages
to O2 and/or be enjoined from further misappropriation or use of the alleged trade secrets. Any award of damages could have a material adverse
effect on our financial position and operating results.
 

In addition, if O2 appeals the rulings in our favor, we will at a minimum continue to incur substantial legal expense contesting any such
appeal. If O2 were to be successful on any such appeals, O2’s claims would be remanded for trial. If the court in any such trial were to find that
our products infringe the ’615 patent, we could be liable to O2 for damages and could be enjoined from selling our products in the U.S. Any such
injunction would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations, at least for several quarters and possibly for a much
longer period of time, depending on the extent of any such damage award and the scope and applicability of any such injunction. If the court found
that we have interfered with O2’s economic advantage, we could be liable for damages to O2, which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial position and operating results.
 

In January 2003, O2 filed a lawsuit against Sumida Corp. and Taiwan Sumida Electronics Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas alleging that Sumida’s use of our products in Sumida’s products infringes the ’615 and ’722 patents based on Sumida’s use of our
products. We have agreed to assume the defense of Sumida pursuant to an indemnity agreement. That case has been set for trial for June 2005.
 

In response to O2’s action against Sumida, in May 2004, we filed a complaint against O2 in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District
of California seeking a declaratory judgment that we do not infringe O2’s ’722 patent. That case has been assigned to the same Judge presiding
over the litigation over the ’615, ’814, and ’881 patents described above.
 

Taiwan Litigation
 

Summary.    In addition to the U.S. litigation described above, O2 has brought legal proceedings against us in Taiwan based upon its ’318
patent. Unlike the U.S., where a party seeking a preliminary injunction must first file a lawsuit on the merits of the underlying claim, in Taiwan it is
possible for a party to be granted a preliminary injunction without first filing a lawsuit on the merits. In January 2003, upon O2’s request, the Shihlin
District Court in Taiwan issued a preliminary injunction prohibiting us from manufacturing, designing, displaying, importing or selling our MP 1011A
and MP 1015 products in Taiwan, either directly or through a third party acting at our request.
 

We believe that we have at all times conducted our business in compliance with the injunction. Nevertheless, O2 has taken various actions
in an attempt to persuade the Shihlin District Court that we have violated it. We have also taken several legal actions in an attempt to have the
injunction lifted and/or to have O2’s ’318 patent declared invalid. These actions include appealing the Shihlin District Court’s injunction, initiating
proceedings with the Taiwan Intellectual Property Office (TIPO) to invalidate O2’s ’318 patent and seeking counter-injunctions from the Taipei
District Court. Some of those actions have produced legal outcomes in our favor and others have not, but none has yet resulted in the lifting of the
injunction or the invalidation of O2’s patent. We intend to continue pursuing the available legal avenues to achieve these objectives.
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In June 2003, O2 filed a lawsuit against us in the Shihlin District Court for a resolution on the merits of O2’s claim that our products infringe
O2’s ’318 patent. That lawsuit was dismissed in April 2004, but O2 filed a similar lawsuit in Taipei District Court shortly thereafter. No date for the
trial has yet been set.
 

In August 2004, the TIPO issued a letter ordering O2 to amend its ‘318 patent. The TIPO letter indicated that two of the three independent
claims asserted by O2 lacked inventive steps and therefore should be amended or deleted by O2. As to the third independent claim, the TIPO
indicated that certain corrections should be made, but has not at this time indicated that the third independent claim should be amended or
deleted. If, following such correction, the third claim is upheld by the TIPO, such claim would be sufficient for O2 to continue its patent claims
against us. In July 2004, the Taiwan Supreme Court issued a ruling that remanded O2’s patent infringement case against us to the Taiwan High
Court. In that ruling, the Taiwan Supreme Court indicated that it must be demonstrated whether O2’s country of incorporation, the Cayman Islands,
offers similar, reciprocal protections to Taiwanese individuals and entities under its patent law. If the Taiwan High Court does not find that such
reciprocity exists, then the Court might rule that O2 is not entitled to sue for or seek injunctions relating to infringement of its patents under Taiwan
patent law. If the Court were to rule that O2 is not entitled to these legal protections, then the preliminary injunction and provisional seizure orders
granted to O2 and the lawsuit filed by O2 currently pending with the Taipei District Court would all be dismissed.
 

Details.    We have included below more detail on certain aspects of the Taiwan litigation.
 

O2’s Injunction Against Us.     Our Taiwan counsel, Chen and Lin, has advised us that so long as title to our products and physical
possession of our goods transfer outside Taiwan to a third party not commissioned by us and not acting at our request, and we do not otherwise
design, manufacture, or display the MP 1011A and MP 1015 in Taiwan, we can sell those products to any third party in the U.S. or outside Taiwan
and be in compliance with the injunction. Following the issuance of the injunction, we examined our distribution channels and altered our
distribution arrangements for our MP 1011A and MP 1015 products. Since the issuance of the injunction we have sold these products F.O.B. Los
Gatos, California, to third parties with whom we have distribution arrangements. Although we do not direct the parties with whom we have
distribution arrangements as to where they should resell the MP 1011A and MP 1015 products, they generally do not order these products until
they have received an order from a customer, who is often located in Taiwan. We believe, based on advice from Chen and Lin, that this course of
business does not violate the injunction. The abovementioned opinions of Chen and Lin are not binding on the court, which will reach its own
conclusions.
 

Despite our belief, O2 has attempted repeatedly to persuade the Shihlin District Court that we have violated the injunction. For example, O2
has on multiple occasions sought discovery in Taiwan and U.S. courts regarding the source of MP 1011A and MP 1015 products being used in
Taiwan. In May 2004, O2 further requested the Shihlin District Court to find us in violation of the injunction based on certain of our products. The
court has not yet issued a ruling on O2’s motion. Our products within each product family, including most of our CCFL backlight inverter products,
are produced using similar mask sets and processes. As is customary in the semiconductor industry, the products within each product family are
differentiated from one another principally by their electrical performance specifications, which we confirm through testing prior to labeling the
products. In 2003, we shipped products F.O.B. Los Gatos, California for approximately $360,000 to parties with whom we have distribution
arrangements for resale into Taiwan and China. While these products were manufactured using the same processes we use to produce our MP
1015 product, we labeled these products as MP 1010B products because they possessed the superior electrical performance specifications of our
MP 1010B product. Despite their electrical performance specifications, however, O2 contends that these products are equivalent to our MP 1015
product and are therefore subject to the injunction. We believe, based on the electrical performance specifications of these products, that they are
not
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equivalent to our MP 1015 product and are therefore not subject to the injunction. Following the manufacture of the products discussed above, in
our MP 1010B product we have used and continue to use mask sets and processes that are different from those used to produce the products
discussed above. Although most products in our CCFL backlight inverter family, including the MP 1010B, MP 1011A, and MP 1015 products,
continue to be produced using similar mask sets and processes, we view them as distinct products based upon their distinct electrical
performance specifications.
 

MP 1011A and MP 1015 products used in and/or shipped by our customers to Taiwan accounted for a significant portion of our revenue in
2003. MP 1010B products used in and/or shipped by our customers to Taiwan accounted for approximately $1.0 million (4.1%) of our revenue in
2003. We believe, based on communications with our customers, that a significant portion of these products are used by original design
manufacturers and electronic manufacturing services providers in China and other Asian countries. If O2 is able to persuade a Taiwanese court
that we have violated the injunction, the court could fine us up to NT$300,000 (approximately $9,000 at current exchange rates), either overall or
per shipment. The court could also broadly construe the injunction to cover other products such as the MP 1010B or to prohibit us from selling the
enjoined products indirectly through third parties with whom we have distribution arrangements for resale of products into Taiwan. For any or all of
these reasons, a finding of violation by the court could materially and adversely affect our results of operations for one or more quarters.
 

Our Counter-Injunctions Against O2.    We have obtained two defensive counter-injunctions from the Taipei District Court, the first of
which prohibits O2 from interfering with our or other parties’ use of our MP 1011A and MP 1015 products. The second injunction prohibits O2 from
interfering with the manufacture, sale, use or importation, by either us or a third party, of a number of our other products which are specifically
enumerated in the injunction, although the MP 1010B is not specifically addressed. We posted cash bonds of approximately $6.1 million (including
the $90,000 bond discussed below) with the Taipei District Court in connection with the two defensive preliminary injunctions. These bonds are
currently recorded as restricted assets on our balance sheet. If we do not prevail at trial, we might have to forfeit some or all of these bonds. Any
such forfeiture would be an expense in the quarter in which the outcome of the trial is probable and reasonably estimable. A forfeiture of any
substantial part of the bonds would materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial position for that quarter.
 

O2’s Other Actions Against Us.    In August 2003, November 2003, and March 2004, O2 filed for provisional seizures against us in the
Shihlin District Court and Taipei District Court, which would entitle O2 to seize up to approximately $1.9 million of our assets in Taiwan, including
but not limited to MP 1011A and MP 1015 parts. The court granted the provisional seizures. The execution of the first provisional seizure was
exempted because we posted a bond in the amount of approximately $90,000. We elected not to post a bond to exempt the second and third
provisional seizure orders, and the court seized property from our Taiwan office. We have appealed the second and third provisional seizures to
the Taiwan High Court. One of our appeals, involving the third seizure, has been denied but the other appeal regarding the second seizure is still
pending. The second and third provisional seizure orders have not yet been executed to the satisfaction of O2’s demand, and accordingly O2 may
continue to request that the court seize our property under these orders. It is also possible that a court may grant O2 court orders allowing O2 to
seize from our customers that have offices in Taiwan their accounts payable to us. The seized assets would be released to us upon the earlier to
occur of: (i) if and when the provisional seizure order were to be revoked by the court or upon O2’s application or (ii) if and when the lawsuit on the
merits filed by O2 were to be dismissed and such dismissal were final and conclusive. However, if O2 were to receive final judgment in its favor on
the merits, O2 would be able to file an application to sell the seized assets by auction. If such application were to be approved, the assets would
be sold by the court and the proceeds would be paid to O2 to cover any damages that the court determines O2 to have suffered. O2 also filed a
criminal complaint with the prosecutor’s office
 

56



Table of Contents

of the Shihlin District Court against two of our Taiwan employees accusing them of interfering with the enforcement of the Shihlin District Court’s
preliminary injunction against us. In March 2004, the Shihlin District Court Prosecutor’s Office dismissed that complaint.
 

O2’s Lawsuits Against Our Customers and Other Third Parties.    In addition to lawsuits between O2 and us in Taiwan and the U.S., O2
has also initiated numerous legal proceedings in Taiwan and the U.S. against other companies, including AsusTek, Hewlett-Packard, Clevo,
Samsung, and others who have been purchasers and/or users of our products. Although court filings are generally not publicly available in Taiwan,
we are aware that in some cases those companies have been enjoined from using MP 1011A and MP 1015 products imported into Taiwan. In at
least two cases, preliminary injunctions against AsusTek and Clevo were upheld by district courts in Taiwan. Injunctions against end-users of our
products necessarily reduce the demand for our products, potentially leading to reduced sales. Such injunctions could also damage our reputation
in the marketplace. We typically agree to indemnify customers upon request against patent infringement and, on that basis, are currently defending
a customer against one of O2’s lawsuits. Continued expenditure of our funds in defending customers against O2’s lawsuits could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition and operating results. We are aware that O2 has sued other large well-known original equipment
manufacturers in matters unrelated to our products. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that in the future O2 will not continue to sue more of our
customers or any of our suppliers or that we will not be called upon to indemnify such customers or suppliers.
 

Trial on the Merits in Taiwan.    We could lose at trial on the question of whether our products infringe O2’s ’318 patent. Although O2 has
named only our MP 1011A and MP 1015 products in its lawsuit, if the court were to conclude that those products infringe the ’318 patent, the court
could also conclude that many of our newer products, including the 1010B and other CCFL products that are physically similar to the MP 1011A
and/or the MP 1015, infringe O2’s ’318 patent. We do not believe that the ’318 patent is a valid patent or that any of our products infringe the ’318
patent, but a court may come to a different conclusion. O2’s original applications for its U.S. ’615 patent and its Taiwan ’318 patent were
substantially similar, but some of O2’s claims contained in the ’318 patent were rejected by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. Since the
claims in the ’318 patent are formulated more broadly than those of the ’615 patent, the summary judgment in the U.S. that our products do not
infringe the ’615 patent may not be as helpful to us in the ’318 case as it might be if the patents were identical.
 

If the court were to conclude that any of our products infringe the ’318 patent (and if the ’318 patent were valid), we could be liable to O2 for
damages based on past sales, and could further be permanently enjoined from selling those products (directly or through distribution
arrangements) for use in Taiwan. Although many system and module manufacturers who use our products have shifted, and are continuing to
shift, their manufacturing from Taiwan to China, a significant portion of our expected future revenue over the next several years is expected to
come from users of our CCFL backlight inverter product family in Taiwan. A final judgment awarded by a court prohibiting direct or indirect sales of
our MP 1011A or MP 1015 products into Taiwan would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations for at least several
quarters while we work to transition customers to alternative, non-infringing products. We cannot be sure that we could successfully effect such a
transition. If we are permanently enjoined from selling other, newer products into Taiwan, this would have an immediate, drastic, and adverse
effect on our ability to continue in our business as presently conducted.
 

Additional O2 Patents.    We are aware that on May 28, 2002, O2 was issued U.S. Patent No. 6,396,722 (“the ’722 patent”), a continuation
of O2’s ’615 patent. We are also aware that O2 has filed for related patents in other Asian countries. We are not aware that any foreign patents
have been issued in response to these patent applications and do not know when, if ever, any such patent will
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issue. Nevertheless, we expect O2 may pursue claims against us in the U.S. based on the ’722 patent and, if and when any additional foreign
patents issue, based on those patents. Depending on the scope and severity of those claims, any injunctions that may be issued against us, or
damages that may be awarded against us, could have a material and adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
 
Linear Technology Corporation
 

On May 3, 2004, Linear Technology Corporation (“Linear”) filed a complaint for misappropriation of trade secrets, unfair business practices,
California common law unfair competition, breach of agreement, and breach of the duty of good faith and fair dealing against us and Timothy Cox,
a former Linear employee who currently works for us, in the Superior Court of the State of California, Santa Clara County. In its complaint, Linear
alleges that we hired several former Linear employees who purportedly disclosed Linear’s trade secrets to us, that we relied on these trade secrets
to contact Linear’s customers and solicit Linear’s employees, and that we otherwise used this information in a manner that has harmed Linear. In
this complaint, Linear has requested unspecified actual and punitive damages, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees. No trial date has yet been set
in this lawsuit, and the parties are in the initial discovery phase in the litigation. We believe that we have meritorious defenses to Linear’s claims,
and we intend to defend vigorously against these claims.
 

On July 16, 2004, a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission (ITC) under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 on
behalf of Linear. The investigation is now captioned: In the Matter of Certain Voltage Regulator Circuits, Components Thereof and Products
Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-521. A letter supplementing the complaint was filed on August 10, 2004. In its complaint, Linear alleges that
two products, the MP 1556 and the EV 0063 (products within our DC to DC converter product family), infringe their U.S. Patent Nos. 5,481,178 and
6,580,258 at this time. Therefore, Linear alleges that we violated section 337 because we imported these and other allegedly infringing products
into the United States, sold them for importation in the United States, and/or sold them within the United States after importing them. The
complaint requests that the ITC institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue an exclusion order and a cease and desist order
prohibiting specific unfair acts found to be illegal in the investigation. On August 11, 2004, the ITC ordered that an investigation be instituted to
determine whether there has been a violation of section 337, as alleged in the complaint. The matter is in its preliminary stages, and we believe we
have meritorious defenses to the claims and intend to defend vigorously against them. If Linear is successful in securing an exclusion order
against the MP 1556, EV 0063, and potentially other products that Linear may allege are infringing, such an exclusion order would prevent such
products from being shipped into the United States and would have a material adverse effect on our business.
 
Microsemi Corporation
 

We are aware that on October 6, 2004, Microsemi Corporation issued a press release stating that it filed a patent infringement lawsuit
against us in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, alleging that we willfully infringe four Microsemi patents, U.S.
Patent Nos. 5,615,093; 5,923,129; 5,930,121; and 6,198,234. The Microsemi press release states that Microsemi requests that we should stop
using Microsemi’s patented technology and should provide monetary relief for unauthorized use of its intellectual property.
 

58



Table of Contents

 MANAGEMENT
 
Executive Officers and Directors
 

Set forth below is information concerning our current directors and executive officers as of June 30, 2004.
 
Executive Officers and Directors
 
Name

  

Age
  

Positions

Michael R. Hsing   45  President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
Tim Christoffersen   62  Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
Jim C. Moyer   61  Chief Design Engineer and Director
Deming Xiao   41  Vice President of Operations
Herbert Chang(2)(3)   42  Director
Alan Earhart(1)   60  Director
Jim Jones(1)(2)(3)   37  Director
Umesh Padval(1)(2)(3)   46  Director

(1) Member of the audit committee.
(2) Member of the compensation committee.
(3) Member of the nominating committee.
 

Michael R. Hsing has served on our board of directors and has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since founding
Monolithic Power Systems in August 1997. Before founding our company, Mr. Hsing held senior technical positions at companies such as
Supertex, Inc. and Micrel, Incorporated. Mr. Hsing is an inventor on numerous patents related to the process development of bipolar mixed-signal
semiconductor manufacturing. Mr. Hsing holds a B.S.E.E. from the University of Florida.
 

Tim Christoffersen has served as our Chief Financial Officer since June 2004, served on our board of directors from March 2004 to July
2004, and served as chairman of our audit committee from March 2004 through June 2004. Since January 1999, Mr. Christoffersen has been a
financial consultant to technology companies. Prior to that, Mr. Christoffersen served as Chief Financial Officer of NeoParadigm Labs, Inc. from
1998 to 1999 and as Chief Financial Officer of Chips & Technologies, Inc. from 1994 until its sale to Intel Corporation in 1998. Mr. Christoffersen
serves on the board of Genesis Microchip Incorporated. Mr. Christoffersen is a Phi Beta Kappa graduate of Stanford University where he earned a
B.A. in Economics, and he also holds a Masters in Divinity from Union Theological Seminary in New York City.
 

Jim C. Moyer has served on our board of directors since October 1998 and has served as our Chief Design Engineer since September
1997. Before joining our company, from June 1990 to September 1997, Mr. Moyer held a senior technical position at Micrel, Incorporated. Prior to
that, Mr. Moyer held senior design engineering positions at Hytek Microsystems Incorporated, National Semiconductor Corporation, and Texas
Instruments Incorporated. Mr. Moyer holds a B.S.E.E. from Rice University.
 

Deming Xiao has served as our Vice President of Operations since October 2003. Mr. Xiao joined us in May 2001 and served as Foundry
Manager until he was appointed Director of Operations in January 2002. Before joining us, from June 2000 to May 2001, Mr. Xiao was Engineering
Account Manager at Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing, Inc. Prior to that, Mr. Xiao spent 6 years as the Manager of Process Integration
Engineering at Fairchild Imaging Sensors, a company that manufactures and sells silicon based products for the medical, scientific, professional,
industrial, and military imaging applications. Mr. Xiao holds a B.S. in Semiconductor Physics from Sichuan University, Chengdu, China and a
M.S.E.E. from Wayne State University.
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Herbert Chang has served on our board of directors since September 1999. Mr. Chang has been the President of InveStar Capital, Inc.
since April 1996, the Chief Executive Officer of C Squared Management Corporation since April 2004, and a Managing Member of Forefront
Associates, LLC since February 1998. Each of these companies serves as either the management company or general partner of privately-held
venture funds that focus on investing in early-stage companies in the semiconductor, telecommunications and networking, software, and/or
Internet industries. Mr. Chang serves on the board of directors of Marvell Technology Group Ltd., Oplink Communications, Inc., Vialta, Inc. and a
number of private companies. Mr. Chang received a B.S. in geology from National Taiwan University and an M.B.A. from National Chiao Tung
University in Taiwan.
 

Alan L. Earhart has served as a member of our board of directors and chairman of our audit committee since September 2004. Mr. Earhart
is currently an independent consultant and has been a retired partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP since 2001. From 1970 to 2001, Mr. Earhart
held a variety of positions with Coopers & Lybrand and its successor entity, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an accounting and consulting firm,
including most recently the position of Managing Partner for PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Silicon Valley office. Mr. Earhart also serves on the boards
of directors and as chairman of the audit committees of Foundry Networks and Quantum Corporation. Mr. Earhart holds a B.S. in accounting from
the University of Oregon.
 

Jim Jones has served on our board of directors since August 2002. Since September 2000, Mr. Jones has been a Director with BA Venture
Partners, a technology venture capital partnership. Prior to joining BA Venture Partners, Mr. Jones served in senior product management, product
marketing, and business development positions in the Business Communications Group at 3Com Corporation from April 1994 to September 2000.
Prior to 3Com, Mr. Jones spent 5 years in IC development and marketing with National Semiconductor Corporation, focusing on analog
semiconductors and communications controller and transceiver solutions. Mr. Jones holds a B.S.E.E. from the University of California, Davis.
 

Umesh Padval has served on our board of directors since April 2003. Mr. Padval is currently Executive Vice President of the Consumer
Products Group at LSI Logic Corporation, a producer of communications, consumer, and storage semiconductors. Prior to that, Mr. Padval served
as Senior Vice President of the Broadband Entertainment Division at LSI from June 2001 to August 2004. Before that, Mr. Padval served as the
President of C-Cube Microsystems’ Semiconductor Division from October 1998 to May 2000 and served as Chief Executive Officer and Director of
C-Cube Microsystems Incorporated from May 2000 until June 2001, when C-Cube was sold to LSI. Prior to joining C-Cube, Mr. Padval held senior
management positions at VLSI Technology, Inc. and Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. Mr. Padval holds a Bachelor of Technology from the Indian
Institute of Technology, Bombay, and a Masters in Engineering from Stanford University.
 

Each officer serves at the discretion of our board of directors and holds office until his or her successor is elected and qualified or until his
or her earlier resignation or removal. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.
 
Board Composition
 

Our board of directors is currently composed of six (6) members, including four (4) directors who are not employees and who, upon
completion of this offering, will be independent for purposes of NASD Rule 4200 (Messrs. Chang, Earhart, Jones, and Padval), three (3) of whom
will be independent for the purposes of service on the audit committee pursuant to Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and rules thereunder (Messrs. Earhart, Jones, and Padval). Certain of our current directors were elected pursuant to a voting agreement
that we entered into with certain holders of our common stock and holders of our preferred stock. Such voting agreement will
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terminate upon completion of this offering, and the directors elected thereunder will remain on our board of directors until their successors are duly
elected by the holders of our common stock.
 

Following this offering, the directors will be divided into three classes, each serving staggered three-year terms. Jim Jones and Umesh
Padval will be designated Class I directors whose terms will expire at the 2005 annual meeting of stockholders. Alan Earhart and Jim Moyer will be
designated Class II directors whose terms will expire at the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders. Herbert Chang and Michael Hsing will be
designated Class III directors whose terms will expire at the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders. This classification of our board of directors may
delay or prevent a change in control of our company or in our management.
 
Board Committees
 

Audit committee.    The audit committee of our board of directors is composed of Alan Earhart (Chairman), Jim Jones, and Umesh
Padval. The audit committee oversees and monitors our management and independent auditors and their activities with respect to our financial
reporting process and reports to and advises our board of directors on financial matters. The audit committee is responsible for the appointment,
compensation, retention, and oversight of our independent auditors.
 

Compensation committee.    The compensation committee of our board of directors is composed of Herbert Chang, Jim Jones, and
Umesh Padval. The compensation committee is responsible for designing, reviewing, and recommending compensation arrangements for our
directors, executive officers, and employees, and for administering various incentive compensation and benefit plans.
 

Nominating committee.    The nominating committee of our board of directors is composed of Herbert Chang, Jim Jones, and Umesh
Padval. The nominating committee identifies prospective board candidates, recommends nominees for election to our board of directors, develops
and recommends board member selection criteria, considers committee member qualification, and provides oversight in the evaluation of our board
of directors and each committee.
 

Our board of directors may establish other committees to facilitate the management of our business.
 
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
 

During the 2003 fiscal year, our compensation committee consisted of Herbert Chang and Jim Jones until July of 2003, at which point Mr.
Chang was replaced as a committee member on the committee by Ron Verdoorn. Mr. Verdoorn was a non-employee member of our board of
directors who resigned in March 2004. In February 2004, Umesh Padval and Mr. Chang were appointed to the compensation committee.
Compensation for our executive officers was determined by the entire board of directors. All members of our board of directors, including Michael
Hsing and Jim Moyer, who served as executive officers in fiscal year 2003, participated in deliberations concerning executive officer compensation
during fiscal year 2003. No interlocking relationship exists, or has existed in the past, between our board of directors and the board of directors or
compensation committee of any other company.
 
Director Compensation
 

Except for compensation to Alan Earhart, we do not currently compensate our directors in cash for their service as members of our board
of directors. For his services on the board and as chairman of the audit committee, we pay Mr. Earhart an annual retainer of $40,000 and have
granted him an
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option to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock subject to vesting over a term of two years and otherwise pursuant to the terms of our 1998
Stock Plan. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, pursuant to our 1998 Stock Plan, we granted an option to purchase 86,000 shares of
our common stock to Mr. Padval for his services as a director. This option has an exercise price of $1.20 per share and vests over three years.
As discussed below, we granted options during this time period to certain other directors; however, such options were granted to these individuals
solely in their capacity as executive officers.
 

Our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan will also provide for the automatic and nondiscretionary grant of options to our non-employee directors.
After the completion of this offering, each new non-employee director will receive an initial option to purchase 30,000 shares upon appointment to
the board, except for those directors who become non-employee directors by ceasing to be employee directors. In addition, beginning in 2005, non-
employee directors who have been directors for at least six months will receive an option to purchase 15,000 shares following each annual meeting
of our stockholders. All options granted under the automatic grant provisions will have a term of ten years and an exercise price equal to fair
market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Each initial option becomes exercisable as to 50% of the shares subject to the option on
each anniversary of the date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains a director on such dates. Each subsequent option becomes
exercisable as to 100% of the shares subject to the option on the first anniversary of the date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains
a director on such date.
 
Executive Compensation
 

The following summary compensation table indicates the cash and non-cash compensation earned during the fiscal year ended December
31, 2003 by our Chief Executive Officer and the other most highly compensated executive officers whose total compensation exceeded $100,000
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. These individuals are referred to elsewhere in this prospectus as the “named executive officers.”
 

Summary Compensation Table
 

   

Annual Compensation
  

Long-term
Compensation

Name and Principal Position
  

Salary
  

Bonus
  

Securities
Underlying

Options

Michael R. Hsing
President and Chief Executive Officer   

$ 163,077
  

$ 30,000
  

60,000

Brian McDonald
Former Vice President of Administration,
Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary   

 150,000

  

 30,000

  

40,000

Jim C. Moyer
Chief Design Engineer   

 123,500
  

 13,276
  

20,000

Deming Xiao
Vice President of Operations   

 117,548
  

 30,000
  

80,000

 
Option grants in last fiscal year
 

The following table sets forth information regarding options granted to our named executive officers during the fiscal year ended December
31, 2003. The percentage of total options granted is based on an aggregate of 1,647,100 options granted by us to our employees during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2003. We have never granted any stock appreciation rights.
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All options were granted pursuant to the 1998 Stock Plan, as amended. These options vest as to 25% of the total granted shares 12
months after the vesting commencement date and as to 1/48 of the total granted shares at the end of each successive month of employment
thereafter. Options were granted with an exercise price per share equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant, as
determined by our board of directors.
 

The amounts shown in the table as potential realizable value represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options
if exercised at the end of the option term. The 5% and 10% assumed annual rates of compounded stock price appreciation are mandated by rules
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and do not represent our estimate or projection of our future common stock prices. These amounts
represent assumed rates of appreciation in the value of our common stock from the fair market value on the date of grant as determined at that
time by the Company’s Board of Directors. Actual gains, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent on the future performance of our common
stock, overall stock market conditions, and the option holders’ continued service with us.
 

   

Individual Grants
      

Name
  

Number of
Shares of
Common

Stock
Underlying

Options
Granted

  

Percent of
Total

Options
Granted to

Employees in
Fiscal Year

 

 
Exercise

Price
(per share)

  Expiration
Date

  

Potential Realizable
Value at Assumed

Annual Rates of Stock
Price Appreciation for

Option Term

         

5%
  

10%

Michael R. Hsing   60,000  3.64% $ 1.20  9/11/2013  $ 45,280  $ 114,749
Brian McDonald*   40,000  2.43%  1.20  —   —   —
Jim C. Moyer   20,000  1.21%  1.20  9/11/2013   15,093   38,250
Deming Xiao   80,000  4.86%  1.20  9/11/2013   60,374   152,999

* Mr. McDonald’s option to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock was terminated in connection with his separation agreement and release described on page 68.
 
Aggregate option exercises during fiscal year 2003 and values at December 31, 2003
 

The following table sets forth the number and value of unexercised options held by our named executive officers at fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003. The value realized reflects the fair market value of our common stock underlying the option on the date of exercise, as
determined by our board of directors, minus the exercise price of the option. The value of the unexercised in-the-money options at fiscal year end
is based on the difference between an assumed initial public offering price of $             per share and the exercise price payable per share.
 

Name
  

Shares
Acquired on

Exercise
  Value

Realized
  

Number of Shares of Common
Stock Underlying Unexercised
Options at December 31, 2003

  

Value of Unexercised
In-The-Money Options at

December 31, 2003

      

Exercisable
  

Unexercisable
  

Exercisable
  

Unexercisable

Michael R. Hsing   —  $ —  141,667  318,333      
Brian McDonald*   —   —  133,333  306,667      
Jim C. Moyer   270,000   0  —  —      
Deming Xiao   —   —  84,833  177,167      

* Pursuant to the terms of his separation agreement and release described on page 68, as of October 1, 2004, Mr. McDonald had 183,333 exercisable, and no unexercisable,
shares of common stock underlying unexercised options.
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Benefit Plans
 
1998 Stock Plan
 

Our 1998 Stock Plan was adopted by our board of directors and approved by our stockholders on October 2, 1998 and was most recently
amended on June 22, 2004. Our 1998 Stock Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code, to our employees, and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options and stock purchase rights to our employees, directors,
and consultants and our parent and subsidiary corporations’ employees and consultants. As of June 30, 2004, options to purchase 7,023,300
shares of common stock were outstanding, and 2,483,733 shares were available for future grant under this plan. Our 1998 Stock Plan provides
that in the event of our merger with or into another corporation or a sale of substantially all of our assets, the successor corporation will assume or
substitute each award. If the outstanding awards are not assumed or substituted, the administrator will provide notice to the optionee that he or
she has the right to exercise the award as to all of the shares subject to the award, including shares that would not otherwise be exercisable, for a
period of 15 days from the date of notice. Any outstanding award will terminate upon the expiration of the 15-day period. We will not grant any
additional awards under our 1998 Stock Option Plan following this offering. Instead we will grant options under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.
 
2004 Equity Incentive Plan
 

Our board of directors adopted our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan in March 2004, subject to stockholder approval. Our 2004 Equity Incentive
Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, to our employees and our
parent and subsidiary corporations’ employees, and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights,
performance units and performance shares to our employees, directors and consultants and our parent and subsidiary corporations’ employees
and consultants.
 

Number of Shares of Common Stock Available under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.    We have reserved a total of 800,000 shares
of our common stock for issuance pursuant to the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan plus (a) any shares which have been reserved but not issued under
our 1998 Stock Plan as of the effective date of this offering and (b) any shares returned to our 1998 Stock Plan on or after the effective date of
this offering as a result of termination of options or the repurchase of unvested shares issued under the 1998 Stock Plan. In addition, our 2004
Equity Incentive Plan provides for annual increases in the number of shares available for issuance thereunder on the first day of each fiscal year,
beginning with our fiscal year 2005, equal to the least of:
 
 Ÿ 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock on the first day of the fiscal year;
 
 Ÿ 2,400,000 shares; and
 
 Ÿ such other amount as our board of directors may determine.
 

In the event of certain changes in our capitalization (for instance, a stock split) and other corporate transactions affecting our securities, the
administrator in its discretion may adjust the number and class of securities that may be delivered under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, the
number, class, and price of shares covered by each outstanding award, the numerical share limits relating to the number of shares that may be
added to the plan as well as the number of shares that may be subject to an award.
 

Administration of our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.    Our board of directors or a committee of our board administers our 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan. In the case of options intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code, the committee will consist of two or more “outside directors” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. The
administrator has the power to determine the terms of the awards,
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including, but not limited to, the exercise price, the number of shares subject to each such award, the exercisability of the awards and the form of
consideration, if any, payable upon exercise of an Award. The administrator also has the authority to institute an exchange program by which
outstanding awards may be surrendered in exchange for awards with different terms, including, without limitation, a lower exercise price.
 

Options.    The administrator determines the exercise price of options granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, but with respect to
nonstatutory stock options intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and all
incentive stock options, the exercise price must at least be equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The term of
an incentive stock option may not exceed ten years, except that with respect to any participant who owns more than 10% of the voting power of all
classes of our outstanding stock, the term must not exceed five years and the exercise price must equal at least 110% of the fair market value on
the grant date. The administrator determines the term of all other options.
 

No optionee may be granted an option to purchase more than 750,000 shares in any fiscal year. However, in connection with his or her
initial service, an optionee may be granted an additional option to purchase up to 1,250,000 shares.
 

After termination of an employee, director or consultant, he or she may exercise his or her option for the period of time stated in the option
agreement. Generally, if termination is due to death or disability, the option will remain exercisable for 12 months. In all other cases, the option will
generally remain exercisable for three months. However, an option generally may not be exercised later than the expiration of its term.
 

Stock Appreciation Rights.    Stock appreciation rights may be granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. Stock appreciation rights
allow the recipient to receive the appreciation in the fair market value of our common stock between the exercise date and the date of grant. The
administrator determines the terms of stock appreciation rights, including when such rights become exercisable and whether to pay the increased
appreciation in cash or with shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof.
 

Restricted Stock.    Restricted stock may be granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. Restricted stock awards are shares of our
common stock, subject to terms and conditions established by the administrator. The administrator will determine the number of shares granted
pursuant to an award of restricted stock and may impose whatever conditions to vesting it determines to be appropriate. For example, the
administrator may set restrictions based on the achievement of specific performance goals. Shares of restricted stock that do not vest are subject
to our right of repurchase or forfeiture and any such repurchased or forfeited shares will be available for future grants under the plan.
 

Performance Units; Performance Shares.    Performance units and performance shares may be granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive
Plan. Performance units and performance shares are awards that will result in a payment to a participant only if performance goals established by
the administrator are achieved or the awards otherwise vest. The administrator will establish organizational or individual performance goals in its
discretion, which, depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine the number and/or the value of performance units and performance
shares to be paid to participants. After the grant of a performance unit or performance share, the administrator, in its sole discretion, may reduce
or waive any performance objectives or other vesting provisions for such performance unit or performance share. Performance units shall have an
initial dollar value established by the administrator on or before the grant date. Performance shares shall have an initial value equal to the fair
market value of our common stock on the grant date.
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Automatic Option Grants to Outside Directors.    Our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan also provides for the automatic grant of options to our
non-employee directors. Each non-employee director appointed to the board after the completion of this offering will receive an initial option to
purchase 30,000 shares upon such appointment except for those directors who become non-employee directors by ceasing to be employee
directors. In addition, beginning in 2005, non-employee directors who have been directors for at least six months will receive a subsequent option
to purchase 15,000 shares immediately following each annual meeting of our stockholders.
 

All options granted under the automatic grant provisions have a term of ten years and an exercise price equal to fair market value on the
date of grant. Each option to purchase 30,000 shares becomes exercisable as to 50% of the shares subject to the option on each anniversary of
its date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains a director on such dates. Each option to purchase 15,000 shares becomes
exercisable as to 100% of the shares subject to the option on the first anniversary of its date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains
a director on such date. The administrator has the discretion to change the number of shares subject to the 30,000 and 15,000 share grant.
 

Transferability of Awards.    Our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan generally does not allow for the transfer of awards and only the recipient of
an award may exercise an award during his or her lifetime.
 

Adjustments upon Change in Control.    Our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan provides that in the event of our “change in control,” the
successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary will assume or substitute an equivalent award for each outstanding award. If there is no
assumption or substitution of outstanding awards, the outstanding awards will immediately vest and the administrator will provide notice to the
recipient that he or she has the right to exercise the option and stock appreciation right as to all of the shares subject to such award, all
restrictions on restricted stock will lapse, and all performance goals or other vesting requirements for performance shares and units will be deemed
achieved. The award will terminate upon the expiration of the period of time the administrator provides in the notice. With respect to awards that
are assumed or substituted for, in the event the service of an outside director is terminated on or following the date of the assumption or
substitution, other than pursuant to a voluntary resignation, his or her options will fully vest and become immediately exercisable, all restrictions on
restricted stock will lapse, and all performance goals or other vesting requirements for performance shares and units will be deemed achieved.
 

Amendment and Termination of our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.    Our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan will automatically terminate in 2014,
unless we terminate it sooner. In addition, our board of directors has the authority to amend, suspend or terminate the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan
provided such action does not impair the rights of any participant.
 
2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
 

Concurrently with this offering, we intend to establish the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
 

Number of Shares of Common Stock Available under the Plan.    A total of 200,000 shares of our common stock will initially be made
available for sale under our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In addition, our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for annual
increases in the number of shares available for issuance thereunder on the first day of each fiscal year, beginning with our fiscal year 2005, equal
to the least of:
 
 Ÿ 2% of the outstanding shares of our common stock on the first day of the fiscal year;
 
 Ÿ 1,000,000 shares; and
 
 Ÿ such other amount as may be determined by our board of directors.
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In the event of certain changes in our capitalization (for instance, a stock split) and other corporate transactions affecting our common
stock, the administrator in its discretion will adjust the number and class of common stock that may be delivered under our 2004 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, the purchase price per share and the number of shares of our common stock covered by each outstanding award, as well as the
numerical limits relating to the maximum number of shares that may be added to the Plan each year and the maximum number of shares a
participant may purchase during an offering period.
 

Administration of the Plan.    Our board of directors or a committee of our board administers the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Our board of directors or its committee has full and exclusive authority to interpret the terms of our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and
determine eligibility.
 

Eligibility to Participate.    All of our employees are eligible to participate if they are customarily employed by us or any participating
subsidiary for at least 20 hours per week and more than 5 months in any calendar year. However, an employee may not be granted an option to
purchase stock if such employee:
 
 Ÿ immediately after grant owns stock possessing 5% or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of our capital

stock or the capital stock of our parent or subsidiary corporations or
 
 Ÿ whose rights to purchase stock under all of our employee stock purchase plans accrues at a rate that exceeds $25,000 worth of stock

for each calendar year in which such option is outstanding at any time.
 

Offering Periods and Contributions.    Our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code and provides for consecutive 6-month offering periods. The offering periods generally start on the first trading day on or after
February 15 and August 15 of each year, except for the first such offering period which will commence on the first trading day on or after the
effective date of this offering and will end on the first trading day on or after February 15, 2005. The administrator has the authority to adjust the
timing and duration of future offering periods.
 

Our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan permits participants to purchase common stock through payroll deductions of up to 15% of their
eligible compensation which includes a participant’s base straight time gross earnings, commissions (to the extent such commissions are an
integral, recurring part of compensation), overtime, and shift premium, but exclusive of payments for incentive compensation, bonuses, and other
compensation, bonuses and other compensation remuneration paid directly to the employee. A participant may purchase a maximum of 2,000
shares during an offering period. The administrator may adjust this limit prior to the commencement of subsequent offering periods.
 

Purchase of Shares.    Amounts deducted and accumulated by the participant are used to purchase shares of our common stock at the
end of each six-month offering period. The price is 85% of the lower of the fair market value of our common stock at the beginning of an offering
period or end of such offering period. Participants may end their participation at any time during an offering period, and will be paid their payroll
deductions to date. Participation ends automatically upon termination of employment with us.
 

Transferability of Rights.    A participant may not transfer rights granted under our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan other than by
will, the laws of descent and distribution or as otherwise provided under our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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Adjustments upon Change in Control.    In the event of our “change of control,” a successor corporation will assume or substitute each
outstanding option. If the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the outstanding options, the offering period then in progress
will be shortened, and a new exercise date will be set.
 

Amendment and Termination of the Plan.    Our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan will automatically terminate in 2024, unless we
terminate it sooner. Our board of directors has the authority to amend or terminate our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, except that, subject
to certain exceptions described in our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, no such action may adversely affect any outstanding rights to
purchase stock under our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
 
Employment and Change of Control Arrangements
 

Under employment agreements with Michael Hsing and Jim Moyer, dated August 23, 2002 and September 12, 2002, respectively, if either
executive’s employment is terminated without “cause,” or if either executive leaves his employment for “good reason” (each as defined in the
agreements), we are required to pay his base salary and benefits for a period of 6 months, and the vesting of the unvested shares pursuant to
each executive’s initial stock option grant will accelerate in an amount equal to the number of options that would have vested had the executive
remained an employee for 12 months following the termination of employment. In addition, if such termination occurs within one year following a
change of control, the executive will receive his base salary and benefits for a period of 12 months and 50% of the executive’s unvested options
pursuant to each executive’s initial stock option grant will vest and become exercisable. Change of control means a merger or consolidation after
which our shareholders do not hold a majority of our outstanding voting securities, any transaction involving the transfer of greater than 50% of our
voting power or a sale of substantially all our assets.
 

Under an employment agreement entered into with Tim Christoffersen effective as of June 22, 2004, if Mr. Christoffersen’s employment is
terminated for reasons other than “cause,” death, or disability or if he resigns from his employment for “good reason” (each as defined in his
agreement), the vesting of all unvested shares subject to all outstanding to stock options and all unvested shares of restricted stock will
accelerate in an amount equal to 12 months of service. In addition, upon a change of control, all of Mr. Christoffersen’s outstanding stock options
and all unvested shares of restricted stock will accelerate as to 100% of all unvested shares. Upon Mr. Christoffersen’s termination of employment
for other than cause, death or disability or his voluntary resignation for good reason, in addition to the accelerated vesting described above, Mr.
Christoffersen will receive a lump-sum payment equal to 6 months of his base salary. In the event of Mr. Christoffersen’s termination of
employment for any reason, he will have 6 months following such termination to exercise all outstanding options. Change of control means a
merger or consolidation after which our shareholders do not hold a majority of our outstanding voting securities, any transaction involving the
transfer of greater than 50% of our voting power or a sale of substantially all our assets.
 

Under a separation agreement and release we entered into with Brian McDonald effective as of June 22, 2004, we agreed to pay Mr.
McDonald an amount equal to two weeks of his base salary. We also entered into a consulting agreement with Mr. McDonald effective as of June
22, 2004, under which we retained Mr. McDonald as a paid consultant for a period of three months, which agreement was amended on September
24, 2004 to extend Mr. McDonald’s consultancy for an additional three months.
 

We intend to enter into a change of control agreement with Deming Xiao that provides that if his employment is terminated without cause,
or if he leaves his employment for good reason within one year following a change of control, he will receive acceleration of the vesting of his
stock options as to 50% of the unvested shares covered by the employment agreement. Change of control means a
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merger or consolidation after which our shareholders do not hold a majority of our outstanding voting securities, any transaction involving the
transfer of greater than 50% of our voting power or a sale of substantially all our assets.
 
401(k) Plan
 

We sponsor a 401(k) savings and profit-sharing plan for all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. Participants may contribute
up to the amount allowable for federal income tax purposes. We are not required to contribute and did not contribute to our 401(k) plan for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 

Other than compensation, employment and change in control agreements and other arrangements, which are described above in
“Management,” and the transactions described below, since January 1, 2001, there has not been, nor is there currently proposed, any transaction
or series of similar transactions to which we were or will be a party: in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed $60,000; and in which
any director, executive officer, holder of 5% or more of any class of our voting stock, or any member of their immediate family had or will have a
direct or indirect material interest.
 
Registration Rights Agreement
 

We have entered into an agreement with the holders of our preferred stock, including entities with which certain of our directors are
affiliated, including BAVP, L.P. and certain funds affiliated with InveStar Capital, Inc., that provides the holders of the preferred stock certain rights
relating to the registration of their shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferred stock. These rights will survive this offering
and will terminate as to any holder, at such time as such holder is able to sell all the securities held by such holder within a three month period
pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act and if such holder owns less than 1% of our outstanding capital stock, but in any event no later than the
fifth anniversary of the closing of this offering. Please refer to “Description of Capital Stock” on page 69 for a more thorough description of these
registration rights.
 
Indemnification Agreements
 

We expect to enter into an indemnification agreement with each of our directors and officers prior to completing this offering. The
indemnification agreements and our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws that will be in effect after completion of this
offering will require us to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law.
 
Recent Option and Restricted Stock Grants
 

Since January 1, 2001, we have granted stock options to the following executive officers and directors:
 

Name
  

Date of Grant
  

Shares
Underlying

Options
  

Exercise
Price

  

Term of
Option

Deming Xiao   6/5/01   72,000  $ 0.80  10 years
Deming Xiao   1/16/02   30,000  $ 0.80  10 years
Michael R. Hsing   7/17/02   400,000  $ 1.32  5 years
Jim C. Moyer   7/17/02   250,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Deming Xiao   10/15/02   80,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Umesh Padval   4/24/03   86,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Michael R. Hsing   9/11/03   60,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Jim C. Moyer   9/11/03   20,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Deming Xiao   9/11/03   80,000  $ 1.20  10 years
Michael Hsing   1/13/04   500,000*  $ 5.00  10 years
Jim C. Moyer   1/13/04   350,000*  $ 5.00  10 years
Deming Xiao   1/28/04   50,000  $ 5.00  10 years
Tim Christoffersen   3/25/04   30,000  $ 10.00  10 years
Tim Christoffersen   7/6/04   250,000  $ 10.00  10 years
Alan Earhart   9/17/04   30,000  $ 7.50  10 years

* Messrs. Hsing and Moyer each voluntarily and mutually agreed with us to reduce the amount of each executive’s option grant to 350,000 shares and 200,000 shares,
respectively.
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Options for executive officers vest over four years with 25% of the total granted shares vesting one year after the vesting commencement
date and  1/48 of the total granted shares vesting at the end of each successive month thereafter, subject to the optionee continuing to be a service
provider on such dates.
 

The option granted to Umesh Padval vests over three years with 33 1/3% of the total granted shares vesting one year after the vesting
commencement date and  1/36 of the total granted shares vesting at the end of each successive month thereafter, subject to him continuing to be a
director on such dates.
 

The option granted to Tim Christoffersen on March 25, 2004 vested monthly over two years. The option vested as to 3,750 shares, and the
remainder of the option was terminated in connection with the commencement of his employment with us. The option granted to Mr. Christoffersen
on July 6, 2004 vested as to 70,000 shares as of June 22, 2004 with the remaining shares vesting as to  1/36 following each successive month
thereafter, subject to him continuing to be a service provider on such dates. On September 17, 2004, our Board of Directors approved the grant of
25,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $0.001 per share (valued at the time at $7.50) to Mr. Christoffersen, vesting over four years with
25% of the total granted shares vesting on each anniversary of the date of grant.
 

The option granted to Alan Earhart vests over two years with 50% of the total granted shares vesting on each anniversary of the vesting
commencement date, subject to him continuing to be a director on such dates.
 
Private Placement Financings
 

The following table summarizes the shares of preferred stock purchased by our directors and 5% stockholders and persons and entities
associated with them in private placement transactions. Such purchases were made on the same or substantially similar terms as unrelated
investors that participated in the private placement transactions. Each share of preferred stock converts into one share of common stock upon the
closing of this offering. The shares of Series C preferred stock were sold on May 16, 2001 and June 20, 2001 at $2.25 per share, and the shares of
Series D preferred stock were sold on August 23, 2002 at $3.291 per share.
 

5% Stockholders and Entities Affiliated with Directors
  

Series C
Preferred

  

Series D
Preferred

Funds affiliated with InveStar Capital, Inc.   1,462,488(1) 654,775
Funds affiliated with Acer Technology Ventures   444,444  304,858
BAVP, L.P.      2,798,185
C Squared Investment Corp.      30,386

(1) Assumes the exercise of warrants to purchase 120,000 shares at an exercise price of $2.25 per share.
 
Other Transactions
 

It is our policy that all transactions between us and our officers, directors, 5% stockholders, and their affiliates will be entered into only if
these transactions are approved by a majority of the disinterested directors, are on terms no less favorable to us than could be obtained from
unaffiliated parties, and are reasonably expected to benefit us.
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PRINCIPAL AND SELLING STOCKHOLDERS
 

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of June 30, 2004, as adjusted to
reflect the sale of                      additional shares of our common stock in this offering and the automatic conversion of all shares of our preferred
stock to shares of our common stock prior to the completion of this offering, for each of the following persons:
 
 Ÿ all named executive officers;
 
 Ÿ all directors;
 
 Ÿ each person who is known by us to own beneficially five percent or more of our common stock assuming conversion of our preferred

stock prior to this offering; and
 
 Ÿ each selling stockholder.
 

Unless otherwise indicated below, to our knowledge, all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to
their shares of common stock, except to the extent authority is shared by spouses under community property laws. Each stockholder’s
percentage ownership in the following table is based upon 22,445,018 shares of common stock outstanding (on a pro forma basis, assuming the
conversion of preferred stock outstanding into common stock) as of June 30, 2004 and              shares of common stock outstanding immediately
after this offering, in each case assuming conversion of all outstanding shares of preferred stock into common stock, but no exercise of the
underwriters’ over-allotment option.
 

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is Monolithic Power Systems, Inc., 983 University Avenue,
Building A, Los Gatos, CA 95032.
 

   

Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned(1)

  

Number
of

Shares
Being

Offered

  

Percentage of Shares
Beneficially Owned(1)

   

Before
Offering

  

After
Offering

    

Before
Offering

  

After
Offering

Named Executive Officers and Directors                
Michael R. Hsing(2)   1,795,477  1,795,477     7.9%   
Brian McDonald(3)   183,333  123,333  60,000  *  *
Deming Xiao(4)   115,167  115,167     *  *
Herbert Chang(5)(6)   4,748,613  4,748,613     21.0%   
Alan Earhart   —  —     —  —
Jim Jones(7)   —  —     —  —
Jim C. Moyer(8)   1,861,068  1,861,068     8.3%   
Umesh Padval(9)   38,222  38,222     *  *

Other 5% Stockholders                
Funds affiliated with InveStar

Capital, Inc.(5)
3600 Pruneridge Avenue,
Suite 300
Santa Clara, CA 95051   

 

4,638,227

  

 

4,638,227

  

 

  

 

20.6

 

%

 

 

BAVP, L.P.(10)
950 Tower Lane, Suite 700
Foster City, CA 94404   

2,798,185

  

2,798,185

  

 

  

12.5%

 

 

Funds affiliated with Acer Technology Ventures(11)
5201 Great America Parkway, Suite 270
Santa Clara, CA 95054   

 

1,999,302  

 

1,999,302  

 

  

 

8.9

 

%  
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Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned(1)

  

Number
of

Shares
Being

Offered

  

Percentage of Shares
Beneficially Owned(1)

   

Before
Offering

  

After
Offering

    

Before
Offering

  

After
Offering

Cheow Seng Lee
Flat 10, Unit 8
8 Broadcast Drive
Kowloon, Hong Kong   

1,368,012

  

1,368,012

  

 

  

6.1%

 

 

All current directors and executive officers as a group
(7 persons)(12)

  

 

8,647,019  

 

8,647,019  

 

  

 

37.6

 

%  

 

Selling Stockholders                

Yi You Chang
10450 Phar Lap Drive
Cupertino, CA 95014   

28,570

  

18,570

  

10,000

  

* 

 

*

Digital CT Investment Ltd.(13)
8F-2, No. 99, Fushing N. Rd.
Taipei 105, Taiwan R.O.C.   

779,217

  

629,991

  

149,226

  

3.5%

 

 

Hsi-Yuan Hsu.
5F, No. 6, Lane 336
Nei Hu Road, Section 2
Taipei, Taiwan R.O.C.   

20,000

  

16,170

  

3,830

  

* 

 

*

Jaw-Sheng Kong
19903 Rodrigues Avenue
Cupertino, CA 95014   

71,428

  

57,814

  

13,614

  

* 

 

*

Fonglu D. & Wang H. Lin 1994 Irrevocable Trust(14)
19737 Versailles Way
Saratoga, CA 95070   

142,856

  

120,000

  

22,856

  

* 

 

*

Ping-Ping Lai
4F, #2 Chu Tsun 5th Road
Hsin-Chu
Taiwan R.O.C.   

142,856

  

71,428

  

71,428

  

* 

 

*

Microtek Inc.(15)
2-7-5 Izumi, Suginami-ku
Tokyo, 168-0096, Japan   

80,000

  

40,000

  

40,000

  

* 

 

*

John Shannon(16)
10 Glenridge Avenue
Los Gatos, CA 95030   

402,000

  

391,084

  

10,916

  

1.8%

 

 

Hideto Takagishi
1347 Arbor Park Court
San Jose, CA 95126   

228,506

  

218,047

  

10,459

  

1.0%

 

*

Top Fortune Direct Investment Ltd.(17)
8-F, No. 99, Fushing N. Rd.
Taipei 105, Taiwan R.O.C.   

133,333

  

107,799

  

25,534

  

* 

 

*

Z.C. Tseng
No. 6, Ally 38, Lane 492
Tu-Cheng Road
Taichung County
Taiwan, R.O.C.   

85,714

  

80,714

  

5,000

  

* 

 

*

* Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1%.
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(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In computing the number of
shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage of ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to options held by
that person that are currently exercisable or become exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004 are considered to be outstanding and
beneficially owned by such person. Those shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of any other person.

(2) Includes (i) 765,000 shares held of record by Michael Hsing and Sharon Z. Hsing, husband and wife, as joint tenants, (ii) 382,500 shares
held of record by Michael Hsing and Sharon Hsing, Co-Trustees of the Michael Hsing 2004 Trust, (iii) 382,500 shares held of record by
Michael Hsing and Sharon Hsing, Co-Trustees of the Sharon Hsing 2004 Trust, (iv) 57,144 shares held of record by Delaware Charter
Guarantee Trust Company TTEE FBO Michael Hsing IRA, and (v) 208,333 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable
within 60 days of June 30, 2004.

(3) Includes 183,333 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004.
(4) Includes 28,834 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004.
(5) Includes (i) 2,520,964 shares held of record by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund Inc., (ii) 804,489 shares and 60,000 shares

issuable upon exercise of outstanding warrants held of record by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund Inc. (II) LDC, (iii) 632,671
shares held of record by InveStar Burgeon Venture Capital Inc. and 45,000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding warrants, (iv)
298,193 shares held of record by InveStar Excelsus Venture Capital Inc. and 15,000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding
warrants, (v) 130,955 shares held of record by Forefront Venture Partners, L.P., and (vi) 130,955 shares held of record by InveStar
Dayspring Venture Capital, Inc. For each of these entities, the voting and/or dispositive power is held by Mr. Chang. Mr. Chang disclaims
beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest in such shares.

(6) Includes (i) 80,000 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004 and (ii) 30,386 shares
held of record by C Squared Investment Corp. Mr. Chang disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of his
pecuniary interest in such shares.

(7) Excludes 2,798,185 shares beneficially owned by BAVP, L.P. The voting and disposition of these shares held by BAVP, L.P. is determined
by BA Venture Partners VI, LLC, the ultimate general partner of BAVP, L.P. Such decisions by BA Venture Partners VI, LLC are, in turn,
determined by a majority-in-interest of its five managing members, Kate Mitchell, Lou Bock, Mark Brooks, John Dougery, and Rory
O’Driscoll. Jim Jones is one of the members of BA Venture Partners VI, LLC and as such has a pecuniary interest in a portion of the
2,798,185 shares, but has no voting or investment power with respect to such shares. Mr. Jones disclaims beneficial ownership of these
shares, except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein.

(8) Includes (i) 520,000 shares held of record by Jim C. Moyer and Frances K. Moyer, husband and wife, as joint tenants, (ii) 250,000 shares
held of record by James C. Moyer and Frances K. Moyer, Co-Trustees of the James C. Moyer 2004 Trust, (iii) 250,000 shares held of
record by James C. Moyer and Frances K. Moyer, Co-Trustees of the Frances K. Moyer 2004 Trust, (iv) 143,000 shares held of record by
First National Bank of Onaga FBO Frances K. Moyer, (v) 143,000 shares held of record by First National Bank of Onaga FBO Jim C.
Moyer, and (vi) 119,792 shares subject to repurchase by us at original purchase price in the event of termination of Mr. Moyer’s
employment with us, which right lapses over time. For each of these entities, the voting and/or dispositive power is held or shared by Jim
Moyer and/or Frances Moyer.

(9) Includes 38,222 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004.
(10) Represents 2,798,185 shares beneficially owned by BAVP, L.P. The voting and disposition of these shares held by BAVP, L.P. is

determined by BA Venture Partners VI, LLC, the ultimate
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general partner of BAVP, L.P. Such decisions by BA Venture Partners VI, LLC are, in turn, determined by a majority-in-interest of its five
managing members, Kate Mitchell, Lou Bock, Mark Brooks, John Dougery, and Rory O’Driscoll. Jim Jones is one of the members of BA
Venture Partners VI, LLC and as such has a pecuniary interest in a portion of the 2,798,185 shares, but has no voting or investment power
with respect to such shares. Mr. Jones disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares, except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary
interest therein.

(11) Includes (i) 1,250,000 shares held of record by Acer Technology Venture Fund L.P., the voting and/or dispositive power of which is shared
by Ronald Chwang and James C. Lu, and (ii) 749,302 shares held of record by IP Fund One, L.P., the voting and/or dispositive power of
which is shared by Ronald Chwang, Roger Liao, James C. Lu, and Pyramyth Liu.

(12) Includes (i) 560,111 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2004, (ii) 3,750 shares of
our common stock issuable under options exercisable by Tim Christoffersen within 60 days of June 30, 2004, and (iii) warrants to purchase
120,000 shares of common stock exercisable at any time until March 30, 2006 at an exercise price of $2.25 per share. Excludes (i)
183,333 shares of our common stock issuable under options exercisable by Mr. McDonald within 60 days of June 30, 2004 and (ii)
2,798,185 shares of preferred stock beneficially owned by BAVP, L.P.

(13) Voting and/or dispositive power with respect to such shares is held or shared by Sheng-Chun Yu, Cheng-Lung Hsu, and Wen-Long Lin.
(14) Voting and/or dispositive power with respect to such shares is held or shared by Fonglu D. Lin and Wang H. Lin.
(15) Voting and/or dispositive power with respect to such shares is held or shared by Toshiki Onishi.
(16) 345,000 shares held of record by John R. Shannon and Sheila E. Quinlan, husband and wife, as joint tenants.
(17) Voting and/or dispositive power with respect to such shares is held or shared by Wen-Long Lin, Ching-Yuan Lin, and I-Yuan Yu.
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 DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
 

Upon completion of this offering and assuming the filing of an amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our authorized capital
stock will consist of 150,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. As of
June 30, 2004, there were 22,445,018 shares of our common stock outstanding, as adjusted to reflect the conversion of all outstanding shares of
our preferred stock into common stock on the closing of this offering, that were held of record by approximately 103 stockholders, and options to
purchase 7,023,300 shares of common stock were outstanding. We will have a total of              shares of common stock outstanding following this
offering.
 

The following description assumes the filing of an amended and restated certificate of incorporation upon the closing of this offering. This
description is only a summary. You should also refer to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, both of which have been
filed with the SEC as exhibits to our registration statement, of which this prospectus forms a part.
 
Common Stock
 

Subject to preferences that may apply to shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of outstanding shares of common
stock are entitled to receive dividends out of assets legally available therefor at the times and in the amounts as our board of directors may from
time to time determine. All dividends are non-cumulative. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company, the holders of
common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to the prior distribution rights of preferred
stock, if any, then outstanding. Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders. Cumulative voting for the election of directors is not provided for in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which
means that the holders of a majority of the shares voted can elect all of the directors then standing for election. Our board of directors is divided
into three classes, with each director serving a three-year term and one class being elected at each year’s annual meeting of stockholders. The
common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights and is not subject to conversion or redemption. There are no sinking fund provisions applicable
to our common stock. Each outstanding share of common stock is, and all shares of common stock to be outstanding upon completion of this
offering will be, fully paid and nonassessable. There are two outstanding warrants to purchase 33,718 and 60,000 shares of our common stock at
exercise prices of $1.20 per share and $0.80 per share, respectively, expiring on August 13, 2009 and December 28, 2005, respectively.
 
Preferred Stock
 

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by the
stockholders, to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the designations, powers, preferences, privileges,
and relative participating, optional or special rights as well as the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of the preferred stock, including dividend
rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, and liquidation preferences, any or all of which may be greater than the rights of the
common stock. Our board of directors, without stockholder approval, can issue preferred stock with voting, conversion, or other rights that could
adversely affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of common stock. Preferred stock could thus be issued quickly with terms
calculated to delay or prevent a change in control or make removal of management more difficult. Additionally, the issuance of preferred stock
may have the effect of decreasing the market price of the common stock and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of
common stock. At present, we have no plans to issue any preferred stock following this offering.
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Registration Rights
 

Upon the closing of this offering, holders of 17,768,164 shares of our common stock are entitled to certain rights with respect to the
registration of their shares under the Securities Act. Specifically, at any time six months after the earlier of the closing of this offering or December
31, 2004, the holders of at least 50% of the shares having registration rights can demand that we file a registration statement for those shares so
long as the demand covers at least 33 1/3% of the registrable securities. We are required to effect the registration as requested, unless the
underwriters decide to limit the number of shares that may be included in the registration due to marketing factors. We are only obligated to satisfy
two demand registrations, and we may defer a registration by up to 90 days under specified circumstances once per 12-month period. Furthermore,
at any time that we plan to register our securities, these holders have a right to require that we include their registrable securities in the registration
at our expense, subject to specified limitations. Furthermore, to the extent that we are qualified under applicable SEC rules to register our shares
for public resale on Form S-3 or a similar short form registration, if holders of at least 25% of the registrable securities request that their securities
be registered, and provided that that the value of the securities requested to be registered is at least $500,000, we have agreed to use our best
efforts to register such securities on Form S-3, subject to specified limitations. Generally, all fees, costs and expenses of the registrations
mentioned above will be borne by us and all selling expenses, including underwriting discounts, selling commissions and stock transfer taxes, will
be borne by the holders of the securities being registered. These registration rights terminate as to any holder, at such time as such holder is able
to sell all the securities held by such holder within a three month period pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act and if such holder owns less
than 1% of the outstanding capital stock of the company, but in any event no later than the fifth anniversary of the closing of this offering. We
have agreed to indemnify the selling stockholders, and the selling stockholders have agreed to indemnify us, against certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to the registration rights agreement.
 
Delaware Anti-Takeover Law and Charter and Bylaw Provisions
 

Delaware Statute.    Upon consummation of our anticipated reincorporation into Delaware, we will be subject to the provisions of Section
203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. In general, this statute prohibits a publicly-held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business
combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years after the date that the person became an interested stockholder unless
(with certain exceptions):
 
 Ÿ Prior to such date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in

the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;
 

 

Ÿ Upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder
owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of
determining the voting stock outstanding (but not the outstanding voting stock owned by the interested stockholder), those shares
owned (1) by persons who are directors and also officers and (2) by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have
the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

 

 
Ÿ On or after such date, the business combination is approved by the board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of

stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned
by the interested stockholder.
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Generally, a “business combination” includes a merger, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested
stockholder, and an “interested stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns (or within three years prior, did own)
15% or more of the corporation’s voting stock. These provisions may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us
without further action by our stockholders.
 

Charter Provisions.    Following the completion of this offering, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws will
contain provisions that could have the effect of discouraging potential acquisition proposals or making a tender offer or delaying or preventing a
change in control of our company, including changes a stockholder might consider favorable. These could have the effect of decreasing the
market price of our common stock. In particular, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as applicable, among other
things, will:
 
 Ÿ divide our board of directors into three separate classes serving staggered three-year terms;
 

 
Ÿ provide that special meetings of stockholders can only be called by our board of directors, chairman of the board, chief executive officer

or president (in the absence of a chief executive officer). In addition, the business permitted to be conducted at any special meeting of
stockholders is limited to the business specified in the notice of such meeting to the stockholders;

 
 Ÿ provide for an advance notice procedure with regard to business to be brought before a meeting of stockholders;
 
 Ÿ eliminate the right of stockholders to act by written consent;
 
 Ÿ provide that directors may only be removed for cause;
 
 Ÿ provide that vacancies on our board of directors may be filled by a majority of directors in office, although less than a quorum; and
 

 
Ÿ allow our board of directors to issue shares of preferred stock with rights senior to those of the common stock and that otherwise could

adversely affect the rights and powers, including voting rights, of the holders of common stock, without any further vote or action by the
stockholders.

 
These provisions may have the effect of discouraging a third party from acquiring us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our

stockholders. These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of continuity and stability in the composition of our board of directors and in
the policies formulated by them, and to discourage some types of transactions that may involve an actual or threatened change in control of our
company. These provisions are designed to reduce our vulnerability to an unsolicited acquisition proposal and to discourage some tactics that may
be used in proxy fights. We believe that the benefits of increased protection of our potential ability to negotiate with the proponent of an unfriendly
or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure our company outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging such proposals because, among other
things, negotiation of such proposals could result in an improvement of the proposed terms. However, these provisions could have the effect of
discouraging others from making tender offers for our shares that could result from actual or rumored takeover attempts. These provisions also
may have the effect of preventing changes in our management.
 
Transfer Agent and Registrar
 

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Mellon Investor Services.
 
Nasdaq National Market Quotation
 

We have applied to have our common stock approved for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “MPWR.”
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE
 

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for our common stock. Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the
public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices.
 

Upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding              shares of our common stock. Of these shares, the              shares sold
by us and the selling stockholders in the offering (plus any shares issued upon exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be freely
tradable without restriction under the Securities Act, unless purchased by our “affiliates” as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities
Act (generally, our officers, directors and 10% stockholders). Shares purchased by affiliates may generally only be sold pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act or in compliance with limitations of Rule 144 as described below.
 

The remaining 21,877,155 shares outstanding are “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act. Restricted
securities may be sold in the public market only if registered or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under Rules 144, 144(k), or 701
promulgated under the Securities Act, which are summarized below. All of these shares are subject to lock-up agreements pursuant to which the
stockholder has agreed not to offer, sell, contract to sell, grant any option to purchase, or otherwise dispose of our common stock or any
securities exercisable for or convertible into our common stock owned by them for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus without
the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. and/or us. As a result of these contractual restrictions, notwithstanding possible earlier
eligibility for sale under the provisions of Rules 144, 144(k), and 701, shares subject to lock-up agreements may not be sold until such agreements
expire or are waived by the designated underwriters’ representative. Taking into account the lock-up agreements, and assuming we and Goldman,
Sachs & Co. do not release stockholders from these agreements, the following shares will be eligible for sale in the public market at the following
times:
 
 Ÿ beginning on the effective date of the offering, only the shares sold in this offering will be immediately available for sale in the public

market;
 
 Ÿ an additional 21,781,322 shares will become eligible for sale pursuant to Rule 144 beginning on             , 2005. Shares eligible to be sold

by affiliates pursuant to Rule 144 are subject to volume restrictions as described below; and
 
 Ÿ an additional 95,833 shares will become eligible for sale in the public market pursuant to Rule 144 at various dates in the future.
 

Immediately after the completion of this offering, we intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act to register
all of the shares of common stock issued or reserved for future issuance under our stock option plans and our stock purchase plan. Based upon
the number of shares subject to outstanding options as of June 30, 2004 and currently reserved for issuance under our stock plans, this
registration statement would cover approximately 10,507,033 shares in addition to annual increases in the number of shares available under the
stock option plans and stock purchase plan pursuant to the terms of such plans. Shares registered under this registration statement will generally
be available for sale in the open market immediately after the 180-day lock-up agreements expire or earlier if we and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
release the stockholders from the lock-up agreements.
 

Also beginning six months after the date of this offering, holders of 17,768,164 shares of our common stock will be entitled to rights with
respect to registration of these shares for sale in the public market. For more information, see “Description of Capital Stock—Registration Rights.”
Registration of these shares under the Securities Act would result in these shares becoming freely tradable without restriction under the Securities
Act immediately upon effectiveness of the registration.
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Rule 144.    In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, and beginning after the expiration of the lock-up agreements, a person (or
persons whose shares are aggregated) who has beneficially owned restricted shares for at least one year would be entitled to sell within any three-
month period a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of: one percent of the number of shares of common stock then outstanding
(which will equal approximately              shares immediately after the offering) or the average weekly trading volume of the common stock during
the four calendar weeks preceding the sale. Sales under Rule 144 are also subject to manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the
availability of current public information about us. Under Rule 144(k), a person who is not deemed to have been an affiliate of us at any time during
the three months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially owned the shares proposed to be sold for at least two years, is entitled to sell shares
without complying with the manner of sale, public information, volume limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144.
 

Rule 701.    In general, beginning 90 days after the effective date, each of our directors, officers, employees, consultants, or advisors who
purchased shares pursuant to a written compensatory plan or contract prior to this offering may be entitled to rely on the resale provisions of Rule
701. Rule 701 permits affiliates to sell their Rule 701 shares under Rule 144 without complying with the holding period requirements of Rule 144.
Rule 701 further provides that non-affiliates may sell such shares in reliance on Rule 144 without having to comply with the holding period, public
information, volume limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144.
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 UNDERWRITING
 

The company, the selling stockholders, and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement with respect to the
shares being offered. Subject to certain conditions, each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase the number of shares indicated in the
following table. Goldman, Sachs & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and Piper Jaffray &
Co. are the representatives of the underwriters.
 

Underwriters

  

Number of Shares

Goldman, Sachs & Co.    
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith

Incorporated    
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.    
Piper Jaffray & Co.    

   
Total    

   
 

The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the shares being offered, if any are taken, other than the shares covered by the
option described below unless and until this option is exercised.
 

If the underwriters sell more shares than the total number set forth in the table above, the underwriters have an option to buy up to an
additional              shares from the company to cover such sales. They may exercise that option for 30 days. If any shares are purchased
pursuant to this option, the underwriters will severally purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as set forth in the table above.
 

The following tables show the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions to be paid to the underwriters by the company
and the selling stockholders. Such amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase
             additional shares.
 

Paid by the Company

  

No Exercise

  

Full Exercise

Per Share   $              $             
Total   $    $  

 
Paid by Selling Stockholder

  

No Exercise

  

Full Exercise

Per Share   $              $             
Total   $    $  

 
Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this

prospectus. Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount of up to $             per share from the initial public
offering price. Any such securities dealers may resell any shares purchased from the underwriters to certain other brokers or dealers at a discount
of up to $             per share from the initial public offering price. If all the shares are not sold at the initial public offering price, the underwriters
may change the offering price and the other selling terms.
 

The company, its directors, officers, and certain employees, stockholders and optionholders have agreed with the underwriters not to
dispose of or hedge any of their common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock during the period from
the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior
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written consent of the underwriters. This restriction does not apply to any issuances by us under our existing employee benefit plans. See “Shares
Available for Future Sale” for a discussion of certain transfer restrictions.
 

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the shares. The initial public offering price has been negotiated among the
company and the underwriters. Among the factors to be considered in determining the initial public offering price of the shares, in addition to
prevailing market conditions, will be the company’s historical performance, estimates of the business potential and earnings prospects of the
company, an assessment of the company’s management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market valuation of companies
in related businesses.
 

An application has been made for quotation of the common stock on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “MPWR.”
 

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares of common stock in the open market. These transactions
may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Shorts sales involve the sale by the
underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase in the offering. “Covered” short sales are sales made in an amount
not greater than the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares from the company in the offering. The underwriters may close out any
covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the
source of shares to close out the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for
purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase additional shares pursuant to the option granted to them.
“Naked” short sales are any sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the
open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the
price of the common stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering. Stabilizing
transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of common stock made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the completion of the
offering.
 

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the
underwriting discount received by it because the underwriters have repurchased shares sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing
or short covering transactions.
 

Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price
of the company’s stock, and together with the imposition of the penalty bid, may stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the market price of the
common stock. As a result, the price of the common stock may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these
activities are commenced, they may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on Nasdaq National Market or in the over-
the-counter market or otherwise.
 

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that: (i) it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of a period of six months
from the closing date, will not offer or sell any shares to persons in the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them
in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in
circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of
Securities Regulations 1995; (ii) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 (“FSMA”)) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of
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any shares in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer; and (iii) it has complied and will comply with all
applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the shares in, from, or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
 

The shares may not be offered or sold, transferred or delivered, as part of their initial distribution or at any time thereafter, directly or
indirectly, to any individual or legal entity in the Netherlands other than to individuals or legal entities who or which trade or invest in securities in
the conduct of their profession or trade, which includes banks, securities intermediaries, insurance companies, pension funds, other institutional
investors, and commercial enterprises which, as an ancillary activity, regularly trade or invest in securities.
 

The shares may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than to persons whose ordinary business is to buy or sell shares or
debentures, whether as principal or agent, or in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong, and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Shares may be issued, whether in Hong Kong or
elsewhere, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so
under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to Shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside
Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules
made thereunder.
 

The prospectus has not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, each
syndicate member acknowledges that the Shares may not be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase,
nor may the Offering Circular and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of
the Shares be circulated or distributed, whether directly or indirectly, to the public or any member of the public in Singapore other than (i) to an
institutional investor or other person specified in Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “Securities and
Futures Act”), (ii) to a sophisticated investor, and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the Securities and Futures Act, or
(iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the Securities and Futures Act.
 

Each underwriter has acknowledged and agreed that the securities have not been registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of
Japan and are not being offered or sold and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the account of any resident of
Japan, except (i) pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan and (ii) in compliance
with any other applicable requirements of Japanese law.
 

The underwriters do not expect sales to discretionary accounts to exceed five percent of the total number of shares offered.
 

The company and the selling stockholders estimate that their shares of the total expenses of the offering, excluding underwriting discounts
and commissions, will be approximately $             and $            , respectively.
 

The company and the selling stockholders have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities
under the Securities Act of 1933.
 

None of the underwriters or their respective affiliates provided any investment banking, financial advisory, and/or consulting services for the
company, other than in connection with this offering, during the 180-day period immediately preceding the initial filing of this registration statement.
Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates may in the future perform such services for the company, for which they would receive
customary fees and expenses.
 

83



Table of Contents

VALIDITY OF SECURITIES
 

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C., Palo Alto, California, will pass for us on the validity of the common stock offered hereby. Jones
Day, Menlo Park, California, is acting as counsel for the underwriters in connection with selected legal matters relating to the shares of common
stock offered by this prospectus. As of June 30, 2004, persons and entities affiliated with Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. beneficially
owned the right to purchase 33,718 shares of our common stock.
 

 EXPERTS
 

The consolidated financial statements of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 and for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, included in this prospectus have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing herein (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph
relating to lawsuits related to alleged patent infringement and alleged misappropriation of assets), and have been so included in reliance upon the
reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
 

The statements in this prospectus set forth under the captions “Risk Factors—If we are unsuccessful in our current lawsuits with O2 Micro
International Limited in either the U.S. or in Taiwan, we could be enjoined from selling many of our products and/or be required to pay substantial
damages or fines. Any unfavorable outcome would cause our revenues to decline significantly and severely harm our business and operating
results,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Overview—O2 Litigation,” and “Business—
Legal Proceedings—O2 Micro—Overview,” “—Patents at Issue,” and “—Taiwan Litigation,” have been reviewed and approved by Chen and Lin, our
Taiwanese counsel. Insofar as such statements constitute descriptions of Taiwan laws, legal documents or legal proceedings, including possible
outcomes thereof, or the application of Taiwan laws to facts, they represent the legal opinion of and have been included on the authority of Chen
and Lin as experts on such matters.
 

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION
 

We filed a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with the SEC to register the shares of our common stock offered by
this prospectus. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits to the registration
statement. You should refer to the registration statement and the exhibits to the registration statement for more information about us and our
common stock. Our statements in this prospectus concerning the contents of any document, though summarizing the material terms of such
documents, are not necessarily complete, and in each instance, we refer you to the copy of the document filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement for all of the information that may be important to you. Each statement about those documents is qualified in its entirety by this
reference.
 

Following the offering, we will become subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In accordance with
that law, we will be required to file reports and other information with the SEC. The registration statement and exhibits, as well as those reports and
other information when we file them, may be inspected without charge at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 450 Fifth Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference facilities.
Copies of all or any part of the registration statement may be obtained from the SEC’s offices upon payment of fees prescribed by the SEC. The
SEC maintains a World Wide Web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding registrants that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of the site is http://www.sec.gov.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2002 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
 

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Monolithic Power
Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 

As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company is involved in lawsuits related to alleged patent
infringement and alleged misappropriation of trade secrets.
 
/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP
 
San Jose, California
March 31, 2004 (August 19, 2004 as to Note 16 and October 6, 2004 as to Note 11)
 

F-2



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
 

   

December 31,
  

June 30,
2004

 

 

Unaudited
Pro Forma
June 30,

2004
    

2002
  

2003
   

         (unaudited)   (Note 1)  
ASSETS                  

Current assets:                  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 17,223,494  $ 12,135,409  $ 12,094,287     
Short-term investments    —   1,007,190   500,000     
Accounts receivable, net of allowances $50,000 in 2002, $45,000 in 2003 and

$45,000 in 2004    1,315,033   4,566,106   3,641,496     
Inventories    1,267,092   1,598,754   1,699,832     
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    263,858   330,013   559,995     

         
Total current assets    20,069,477   19,637,472   18,495,610     

Property and equipment, net    1,467,936   2,148,891   2,419,478     
Other assets    76,834   29,876   1,124,281     
Restricted assets    —   787,022   6,020,520     

         
Total assets   $ 21,614,247  $ 22,603,261  $ 28,059,889     

         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY                  

Current liabilities:                  
Accounts payable   $ 1,590,906  $ 1,792,410  $ 2,172,058     
Accrued compensation and related benefits    395,351   514,635   1,770,001     
Accrued liabilities    515,469   587,269   1,397,034     

         
Total current liabilities    2,501,726   2,894,314   5,339,093     

         
Deferred rent    59,314   64,703   139,064     
Redeemable convertible preferred stock—no par value: 5,300,000 shares authorized in

2002, 2003 and 2004 (aggregate redemption value and aggregate liquidation value of
$17,190,344 at December 31, 2002, $18,529,851 at December 31, 2003 and
$19,199,605 at June 30, 2004)—Series D shares issued and outstanding: 5,087,767 in
2002, 2003 and 2004 (none pro forma)    17,073,737   18,413,244   19,082,998  $ — 

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 11)                  

Stockholders’ equity:                  
Convertible preferred stock—no par value; 10,548,260 shares authorized in 2002,

2003 and 2004 (aggregate liquidation value of $11,331,604 in 2002, 2003 and
2004):                  

Series A shares issued and outstanding: 3,061,846 in 2002, 2003 and 2004
(none pro forma)    1,058,625   1,058,625   1,058,625   — 

Series B shares issued and outstanding: 4,261,706 in 2002, 2003 and 2004
(none pro forma)    3,320,653   3,320,653   3,320,653   — 

Series C shares issued and outstanding: 3,044,708 in 2002, 2003 and 2004
(none pro forma)    6,783,363   6,783,363   6,783,363   — 

Common stock, no par value; shares authorized: 35,800,000 actual and pro
forma; shares issued and outstanding: 5,879,875, 6,527,728 and
6,988,991 in 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and 22,445,018 pro
forma    2,092,256   13,532,922   24,859,140   55,104,779 

Deferred stock compensation    (175,232)   (8,013,344)   (12,725,182)   (12,725,182)
Notes receivable from stockholders    (420,600)   (397,600)   (397,600)   (397,600)
Accumulated other comprehensive income    —   1,693   (51,203)   (51,203)
Accumulated deficit    (10,679,595)   (15,055,312)   (19,349,062)   (19,349,062)

      
Total stockholders’ equity    1,979,470   1,231,000   3,498,734   22,581,732 

      
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 21,614,247  $ 22,603,261  $ 28,059,889  $ 28,059,889 

      
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
 

   

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months Ended
June 30, 

 

   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

            (unaudited)   (unaudited)  
Revenues   $ 8,130,355  $12,205,601  $24,204,331  $ 7,931,771  $18,058,946 
Cost of revenues:                      

Product cost    5,968,623   6,824,895   10,749,636   4,190,085   7,574,331 
Stock-based compensation    6,175   6,175   180,299   5,681   427,883 

       
Total cost of revenues    5,974,798   6,831,070   10,929,935   4,195,766   8,002,214 

       
Gross profit    2,155,557   5,374,531   13,274,396   3,736,005   10,056,732 
Operating expenses:                      

Research and development (excluding
stock-based compensation)    2,610,048   4,459,264   5,493,747   2,760,232   3,327,794 

Sales and marketing (excluding stock-
based compensation)    975,850   1,443,261   2,180,962   910,407   1,955,863 

General and administrative (excluding
stock-based compensation)    831,973   997,250   1,732,792   766,414   1,228,901 

Patent litigation    958,540   1,602,416   4,331,861   2,469,143   1,474,520 
Stock-based compensation*    179,921   167,019   2,741,136   503,850   5,751,495 

       
Total operating expenses    5,556,332   8,669,210   16,480,498   7,410,046   13,738,573 

       
Loss from operations    (3,400,775)   (3,294,679)   (3,206,102)   (3,674,041)   (3,681,841)
Other income (expense):                      

Interest and other income    111,231   178,609   169,892   119,088   71,807 
Interest and other expense    (283,059)   (121,458)   —   —   (13,962)

       
Total other income (expense), net    (171,828)   57,151   169,892   119,088   57,845 

       
Net loss    (3,572,603)   (3,237,528)   (3,036,210)   (3,554,953)   (3,623,996)
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred

stock    —   446,502   1,339,507   669,754   669,754 
       
Net loss attributable to common stockholders   $(3,572,603)  $ (3,684,030)  $ (4,375,717)  $ (4,224,707)  $ (4,293,750)
       
Basic and diluted net loss per common share   $ (0.63)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.71)  $ (0.70)  $ (0.65)
       
Shares used in basic and diluted net loss per

common share    5,681,787   5,862,814   6,143,463   6,034,449   6,602,747 
       
Unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss

per common share (Note 1)           $ (0.20)  $ (0.20)  $ (0.19)
             
Shares used in unaudited pro forma basic and

diluted net loss per common share (Note 1)            21,599,490   21,490,476   22,058,774 
             

*      Stock-based compensation has been excluded from the
following line items:                      
Research and development   $ 8,099  $ 6,928  $ 983,356  $ 100,319  $ 2,390,460 
Sales and marketing    96,355   90,061   561,839   120,847   1,508,190 
General and administrative    75,467   70,030   1,195,941   282,684   1,852,845 

       
Total   $ 179,921  $ 167,019  $ 2,741,136  $ 503,850  $ 5,751,495 

       
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
 

  

Convertible Preferred Stock
  Deferred

Stock
Compen-

sation
 

 
Notes

Receivable
from

Share-
holders

 

 

Accumulated
Deficit

 

 
Other

Compre-
hensive
Income/
(Loss)

 
Total

Stock-
holder
Equity

(Deficit)
 

  

Series A
 

Series B
 

Series C
 

Common Stock
      

  

Shares
 

Amount
 

Shares
 

Amount
 

Shares
 

Amount
 

Shares
  

Amount
      

Balances, January
1, 2001  3,061,846 $ 1,058,625 4,261,706 $ 3,320,653 — $ — 5,662,500  $ 1,477,776  $ (434,295) $ (303,000) $ (3,422,962) $ — $ 1,696,797 

Issuance of Series
C convertible
preferred stock
(net of
issuance costs
of $67,230)  —  — —  — 2,146,664  4,762,763 —   —   —   —   —   —  4,762,763 

Conversion of
bridge loan to
Series C
convertible
preferred stock —  — —  — 898,044  2,020,600 —   —   —   —   —   —  2,020,600 

Issuance of Series
C convertible
preferred stock
warrants for
services  —  — —  — —  — —   279,379   —   —   —   —  279,379 

Issuance of
common stock
for note
receivable  —  — —  — —  — 497,000   397,600   —   (397,600)  —   —  — 

Cancellation and
collection of
note
receivable from
stockholder  —  — —  — —  — (760,000)  (263,000)  —   280,000   —   —  17,000 

Exercise of stock
options  —  — —  — —  — 412,000   291,351   —   —   —   —  291,351 

Repurchases of
common stock  —  — —  — —  — (184,000)  (147,200)  —   —   —   —  (147,200)

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation,
net of
forfeitures  —  — —  — —  — —   (42,967)  135,188   —   —   —  92,221 

Compensation
expense for
nonemployee
stock options
granted  —  — —  — —  — —   1,008   —   —   —   —  1,008 

Net loss  —  — —  — —  — —   —   —   —   (3,572,603)  —  (3,572,603)

              
Balances,

December 31,
2001  3,061,846  1,058,625 4,261,706  3,320,653 3,044,708  6,783,363 5,627,500   1,993,947   (299,107)  (420,600)  (6,995,565)  —  5,441,316 

Exercise of stock
options  —  — —  — —  — 252,375   48,990   —   —   —   —  48,990 

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation,
net of
forfeitures  —  — —  — —  — —   —   123,875   —   —   —  123,875 

Compensation
expense for
non- employee
stock options

 —  — —  — —  — —   49,319   —   —   —   —  49,319 
Accretion of

redemption
value of Series
D preferred
stock  —  — —  — —  — —   —   —   —   (446,502)  —  (446,502)

Net loss and
comprehensive
loss  —  — —  — —  — —   —   —   —   (3,237,528)  —  (3,237,528)

              
Balances,

December 31,
2002  3,061,846 $ 1,058,625 4,261,706 $ 3,320,653 3,044,708 $ 6,783,363 5,879,875  $ 2,092,256  $ (175,232) $ (420,600) $ (10,679,595) $ — $ 1,979,470 
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
 

  
Convertible Preferred Stock

  Deferred
Stock

Compen-
sation

 

 
Notes

Receivable
from

Share-
holders

 

 

Accumulated
Deficit

 

 
Other

Compre-
hensive
Income/
(Loss)

 

 
Total

Stock-
holder
Equity

(Deficit)
 

  
Series A

 
Series B

 
Series C

 
Common Stock

      

  
Shares

 
Amount

 
Shares

 
Amount

 
Shares

 
Amount

 
Shares

 
Amount

      
Balances, December

31, 2002  3,061,846 $1,058,625 4,261,706 $3,320,653 3,044,708 $6,783,363 5,879,875 $ 2,092,256  $ (175,232) $ (420,600) $ (10,679,595) $ —  $ 1,979,470 
Components of

comprehensive
loss:                                          
Net loss  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   (3,036,210)  —   (3,036,210)
Unrealized loss on

investments  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   —   (6,090)  (6,090)
Foreign exchange

gain  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   —   7,783   7,783 
                                       

Total
comprehensive
loss                                        (3,034,517)

Exercise of stock
options  —  — —  — —  — 647,853  481,584   —   —   —   —   481,584 

Issuance of stock
options to
employees at less
than fair market
value  —  — —  — —  — —  9,886,560   (9,886,560)  —   —   —   — 

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation, net
of forfeitures  —  — —  — —  — —  —   2,048,448   —   —       2,048,448 

Compensation
expense for non-
employee stock
options  —  — —  — —  — —  1,072,522   —   —   —   —   1,072,522 

Accretion of
redemption value
of Series D
preferred stock  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   (1,339,507)  —   (1,339,507)

Repayment of
stockholder note
receivable  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   23,000   —   —   23,000 

              
Balances, December

31, 2003  3,061,846  1,058,625 4,261,706  3,320,653 3,044,708  6,783,363 6,527,728  13,532,922   (8,013,344)  (397,600)  (15,055,312)  1,693   1,231,000 
Components of

comprehensive
loss:                                          
Net loss*  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   (3,623,996)  —   (3,623,996)
Unrealized loss on

investments*  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   —   (4,375)  (4,375)
Foreign exchange

gain*  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   —   (48,521)  (48,521)
Total

comprehensive
loss*                                        (3,676,892)

Exercise of stock
options*  —  — —  — —  — 461,263  269,266   —   —   —   —   269,266 

Issuance of stock
options to
employees at less
than fair market
value*  —  — —  — —  — —  10,899,827   (10,899,827)  —   —   —   — 

Amortization of
deferred stock
compensation, net
of forfeitures*  —  — —  — —  — —  —   5,842,433   —   —   —   5,842,433 

Compensation
expense for non-
employee stock
options*  —  — —  — —  — —  673,437   —   —   —   —   673,437 

Accretion of
redemption value
of Series D
preferred stock*  —  — —  — —  — —  —   —   —   (669,754)  —   (669,754)



Compensation
expense from
acceleration of
option vesting*  —  — —  — —  — —  (516,312)  345,556   —   —   —   (170,756)

              
Balances, June 30,

2004*  3,061,846 $1,058,625 4,261,706 $3,320,653 3,044,708 $6,783,363 6,988,991 $24,859,140  $(12,725,182) $ (397,600) $ (19,349,062) $(51,203) $ 3,498,734 

              

* Unaudited
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 

  

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months Ended
June 30,

 

  

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

           (unaudited)   (unaudited)  
Cash flows from operating activities:                     

Net loss  $ (3,572,603)  $ (3,237,528)  $ (3,036,210)  $ (3,554,953)  $ (3,623,996)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities:                     
Depreciation   316,755   636,240   953,401   443,650   513,280 
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment   —   4,365   —   —   518 
Amortization of deferred stock compensation and other stock based

expense   186,096   172,865   3,120,970   509,533   6,344,465 
Amortization of warrants for interest on borrowings   210,760   —   —   —   — 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                     

Accounts receivable   (129,002)   (242,547)   (3,251,073)   (320,259)   924,610 
Inventories   999,990   (700,505)   (331,662)   351,111   (101,078)
Prepaid expenses and other   (36,394)   (199,669)   (19,197)   (69,701)   (1,322,187)
Restricted cash assets   —   —   (787,022)   (689,371)   (5,215,824)
Accounts payable   (577,138)   833,677   201,504   (728,337)   379,648 
Accrued liabilities   238,078   132,836   71,800   637,832   809,770 
Accrued compensation and related benefits   8,159   188,097   119,284   188,245   1,255,366 
Deferred rent   —   59,314   5,389   1,013   74,361 

      
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   (2,355,299)   (2,352,855)   (2,952,816)   (3,231,237)   38,933 

      
Cash flows from investing activities:                     

Property and equipment purchases   (492,212)   (1,074,536)   (1,634,348)   (298,299)   (804,264)
Purchase of investments   —   —   (3,503,930)   (8,027,278)   — 
Proceeds from sale of investments, net of realized gains   —   —   2,490,642   —   501,100 

      
Net cash used in investing activities   (492,212)   (1,074,536)   (2,647,636)   (8,325,577)   (303,164)

      
Cash flows from financing activities:                     

Proceeds from issuance of Series C preferred stock, net   4,762,763   —   —   —   — 
Proceeds from issuance of Series D preferred stock, net   —   16,627,235   —   —   — 
Proceeds (repayment) of notes payable, net   651,368   (651,368)   —   —   — 
Proceeds from exercises of stock options   291,351   48,990   481,584   32,000   269,915 
Repurchases of common stock   (147,200)   —   —   —   — 
Proceeds from (repayment of) bank line of credit, net   (350,838)   (638,000)   —   —   — 
Proceeds from issuance of bridge loan   2,000,000   —   —   —   — 
Proceeds from stockholder notes receivable   —   —   23,000   23,000   — 

      
Net cash provided by financing activities   7,207,444   15,386,857   504,584   55,000   269,915 

      
Cumulative effect of change in exchange rates   —   —   7,783   (2,544)   (46,806)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents   4,359,933   11,959,466   (5,088,085)   (11,504,358)   (41,122)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   904,095   5,264,028   17,223,494   17,223,494   12,135,409 

      
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 5,264,028  $ 17,223,494  $ 12,135,409  $ 5,719,136  $ 12,094,287 

      
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:                     

Cash paid for interest  $ 115,785  $ 105,139  $ —  $ —  $ — 

      
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:                     

Deferred stock compensation, net of forfeitures  $ —  $ —  $ 9,886,560  $ 1,762,321  $ 10,899,827 

      
Forgiveness of note receivable and/or interest from stockholders

 $ 17,000  $ —  $ 23,458  $ 23,458  $ — 

      
Issuance of common stock in exchange for note receivable  $ 397,600  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 

      
Repurchase of common stock and reduction of note receivable  $ 263,000  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 

      
Conversion of bridge loan to Series C preferred stock  $ 2,020,600  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 

      
Unrealized gain (loss) on short-term investments  $ —  $ —  $ (6,090)  $ —  $ 6,090 

      
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 
1.    Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 

Business—Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the State of California on August 22, 1997. Monolithic
Power Systems is a high performance analog and mixed-signal semiconductor company. The Company designs, develops, and markets
proprietary, advanced analog and mixed-signal semiconductors for large and high growth markets. Its semiconductors, or integrated circuits (ICs),
are used in a variety of electronic products, such as notebook computers, flat panel displays, cellular handsets, digital cameras, wireless local
area network (LAN) access points, home entertainment systems, and personal digital assistants. The Company’s integrated circuits are used to
perform functions such as lighting electronic displays, converting or controlling voltages or current within systems, and amplifying sound. The
Company differentiates its integrated circuits by offering solutions that are more highly-integrated, smaller in size, more energy efficient, more
accurate with respect to performance specifications, and, accordingly, more cost-effective than many competing solutions.
 

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties—Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, and accounts receivable. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents consist of checking and
savings accounts. The Company generally does not require its customers to provide collateral or other security to support accounts receivable. To
manage credit risk, management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and analyzes the allowance for
uncollectible accounts.
 

The Company participates in the dynamic high technology industry and believes that changes in any of the following areas could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s future financial position, results of operations or cash flows: ability to obtain future financing; advances
and trends in new technologies and industry standards; competitive pressures in the form of new products or price reductions on current products;
changes in product mix; changes in the overall demand for products offered by the Company; changes in third-party manufacturers; changes in
key suppliers; changes in certain strategic relationships or customer relationships; litigation or claims against the Company based on intellectual
property, patent, product, regulatory or other factors; fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; risk associated with changes in domestic and
international economic and/or political regulations; availability of necessary components or subassemblies; availability of foundry capacity; and the
Company’s ability to attract and retain employees necessary to support its growth.
 

The Company is also a party to litigation with a competitor (see Note 11).
 

Cash Equivalents—The Company classifies all investments in highly liquid debt instruments with maturities at the date of purchase of
three months or less as cash equivalents.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 

Investments—The Company has classified all of its investment portfolio as “available-for-sale securities.” Investments that are classified
as “available-for-sale securities” are reported at market value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. Net realized investment gains or losses are recognized based upon the specific identification of investments
sold. Gross realized gains and (gross realized losses) on those sales were $9,350 and $(0) and $0 and $(0), respectively, for fiscal 2003 and for
the six months ended June 30, 2004. The Company had no investments in 2002.
 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Company’s financial instruments include cash equivalents and short-term investments. Cash
equivalents are stated at cost which approximates fair market value based on quoted market prices. Short-term investments are stated at their fair
market value. (see Note 2)
 

Inventories—The Company values its inventory at the lower of the actual costs of its inventory (first-in, first-out method) or its current
estimated market value. The Company writes down inventory for obsolescence or unmarketable inventories based upon assumptions about future
demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-
downs may be required.
 

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Software is depreciated over one to three years, depending on the nature of the
software.
 

Long-Lived Assets—The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future net
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such impairment loss would
be measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value based on the present value of estimated future cash
flows.
 

Other Assets—Other assets consist primarily of deferred offering costs that will be reclassified to equity upon completion of the
Company’s initial public offering, and long-term lease deposits.
 

Restricted Assets—Restricted assets consist of cash placed in certificate of deposit accounts with, and assets seized by, a Court in
Taiwan in conjunction with the current patent litigation (see Note 11).
 

Revenue Recognition—The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. Generally, this occurs at the time of
shipment when risk of loss and title has passed to the customer. The majority of the Company’s sales are made through distribution arrangements
with third parties. Although some of these arrangements include stock rotation rights that permit the return of up to 5% of the previous six months’
purchases (no more than once every six months), the Company has not experienced any significant returns pursuant to these provisions. The
Company’s normal payment terms with its distributors are 30 days from invoice date and the Company’s arrangements with its largest distributors
do not include price protection
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 
provisions. Although some of the Company’s arrangements with smaller distributors include price protection provisions permitting them a credit for
unsold inventory if the Company reduces its list prices, the Company has not experienced any significant claims pursuant to these provisions. The
Company provides a standard 90-day warranty against defects in materials and workmanship and will either repair the goods, provide replacements
at no charge to the customer, or refund amounts to the customer for defective goods. Estimated sales returns and warranty costs, based on
historical experience by product, are recorded at the time product revenue is recognized in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 48, Revenue Recognition When Right of Return Exists, and SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, respectively. On
occasion the Company permits the return of defective products outside the normal warranty period. In such cases, the Company accrues for the
related costs at the time the decision to permit the return is made. The Company had one third party with whom it had a distribution arrangement
with extended payment terms; however, the Company discontinued using this third party in March 2004. Revenue for this third party with whom it
had a distribution arrangement was recognized on a sell-through basis, when the goods were shipped F.O.B. our facilities Los Gatos, California to
the end customer. This third party did not typically stock an inventory of the Company’s products.
 

Consideration Given to Customers—The Company has granted 100,000 stock options to a non-employee in connection with a
distribution arrangement in 2003. The fair value of the options is being recorded as a non-cash reduction of revenue in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products),
over the term of the four-year contract term. Contra-revenue was none, none, $200,407 and $165,087 in 2001, 2002, 2003, and the six month
period ended June 30, 2004, respectively. The option holder became an employee in June 2004 and, based on his job function, deferred stock
compensation of $495,000 at June 30, 2004 will be amortized to selling and marketing expense over the remaining vesting period through 2007.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 

Stock-Based Compensation—The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its interpretations. The
Company accounts for stock-based compensation related to equity instruments issued to nonemployees in accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling
Goods or Services and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. The Company
amortizes deferred stock compensation using the multiple option award method. Had the Company accounted for employee stock-based
compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123 using the fair value method, results would have been as follows:
 

  

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months Ended June 30,
 

  

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

2003
  

2004
 

Net loss, as reported  $(3,572,603)  $(3,237,528)  $(3,036,210)  $(3,554,953)  $(3,623,996)
Add stock-based compensation included in

reported net loss   135,188   123,875   2,048,448   509,531   6,344,465 
Less stock-based compensation expense

determined under the fair value method for all
awards   (178,735)   (212,251)   (2,151,551)   (457,806)   (8,844,004)

      
Pro forma net loss  $(3,616,150)  $(3,325,904)  $(3,139,313)  $(3,503,228)  $(6,123,535)
      
Basic and diluted loss per share:                     

As reported  $ (0.63)  $ (0.63)  $ (0.71)  $ (0.70)  $ (0.65)
      

Pro forma  $ (0.63)  $ (0.64)  $ (0.73)  $ (0.69)  $ (1.03)
      
 

Research and Development—Costs incurred in research and development are charged to operations as incurred.
 

Income Taxes—The Company accounts for income taxes under an asset and liability approach. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax
effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for income tax purposes, and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards measured by applying currently enacted tax laws. Valuation allowances
are provided when necessary to reduce net deferred tax assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized.
 

Patent Litigation Costs—Costs incurred in registering and defending the Company’s patents and other proprietary rights are charged to
operations as incurred.
 

Foreign Currency—The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Transaction and remeasurement
gains and losses were not significant for any of the periods presented.
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MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 

Loss per Common Share—Basic loss per common share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing loss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per common share reflects the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. Common
share equivalents are excluded from the computation in loss periods as their effect would be antidilutive.
 

Unaudited Pro Forma Information—The pro forma balance sheet information assumes the conversion upon the closing of an initial public
offering of each share of preferred stock to one share of common stock had actually occurred at June 30, 2004. Estimated proceeds from the
common shares to be issued as a result of such initial public offering are excluded.
 

Pro Forma Net Loss per Common Share—Pro forma basic and diluted loss per common share is computed by dividing loss attributable
to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period and the weighted average number of common
shares resulting from the assumed conversion of outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock at the beginning of 2003.
 

Comprehensive Loss—SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, requires an enterprise to report, by major components and as a
single total, the change in its net assets during the period from nonowner sources. Comprehensive loss includes unrealized losses on investments
and foreign exchange gains (losses) for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004. Comprehensive loss was the
same as net loss for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002.
 

New Accounting Standards—In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (FIN 45). FIN 45 requires the guarantor to recognize, at the
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. It also elaborates on the disclosures to
be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued and to be made in regard of
product warranties. The adoption of FIN 45 did not to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements (see Note 10).
 

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure. This
statement amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition to SFAS No. 123’s fair
value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. This statement also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 123 and
APB No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the effects of an entity’s
accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported net income and earnings per share in annual and interim
financial statements. The Company has elected to continue accounting for employee stock option plans according to APB No. 25 and has adopted
the disclosure requirements under SFAS No. 148 commencing on December 31, 2002.
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In December 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. This Issue
addresses certain aspects of the accounting by a vendor for arrangements under which it will perform multiple revenue-generating activities. In
some arrangements, the different revenue-generating activities (deliverables) are sufficiently separable and there exists sufficient evidence of their
fair values to separately account for some or all of the deliveries (that is, there are separate units of accounting). In other arrangements, some or
all of the deliveries are not independently functional, or there is not sufficient evidence of their fair values to account for them separately. This
Issue addresses when, and if so, how an arrangement involving multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting. This
Issue does not change otherwise applicable revenue recognition criteria. The guidance in this Issue is effective for revenue arrangements entered
into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of EITF 00-21 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, in
January 2003, and a revised interpretation of FIN 46 (FIN 46-R) in December 2003. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities (VIEs) to be
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other
parties. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. Since January 31, 2003, the
Company has not invested in any entities it believes are variable interest entities for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. For all
arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003, the Company is required to continue to apply FIN 46 through the end of the first quarter of fiscal
2004. The Company is required to adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R for those arrangements in the second quarter of fiscal 2004. For arrangements
entered into prior to February 1, 2003, the Company is required to adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R in the second quarter of fiscal 2004. The
Company does not expect the adoption of FIN 46-R to have an impact on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the
Company.
 

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity. SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. SFAS 150 is to be implemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change
in an accounting principle for financial instruments created before the issuance date of the statement and still existing at the beginning of the
interim period of adoption. The adoption of SFAS 150 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (SAB 104), Revenue Recognition. SAB 104 updates portions of
existing interpretative guidance in order to make this guidance consistent with current authoritative accounting and auditing guidance and SEC
rules and regulations. The adoption of SAB 104 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.    Investments
 

Investments, carried in the accompanying balance sheets at estimated market value, consist of the following:
 

   

December 31, 2003

   

Cost or
Amortized

Cost
  

Unrealized
Gains

  

Unrealized
Losses

  

Estimated
Market Value

U.S. government and agency obligations   $ 1,013,280  $ 315  $ (6,405)  $ 1,007,190
        

Total debt securities    1,013,280   315   (6,405)   1,007,190
Equity securities    —   —   —   —
        
Total investments   $ 1,013,280  $ 315  $ (6,405)  $ 1,007,190
        

 

  

 June 30, 2004

   

Cost or
Amortized

cost
  

Unrealized
Gains

  

Unrealized
Losses

  

Estimated
Market Value

U.S. government and agency obligations   $ 500,000  $ —  $ —  $ 500,000
        

Total debt securities    500,000           500,000
Equity securities    —   —   —   —
        
Total investments   $ 500,000  $ —  $ —  $ 500,000
        

 
The amortized cost and estimated market value of investments, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Actual maturities may differ

from contractual maturities.
 

   

December 31, 2003
  

June 30, 2004

   

Amortized
Cost

  

Estimated
Market Value

  

Amortized
Cost

  

Estimated
Market Value

Due in 1 year or less   $ 1,013,280  $ 1,007,190  $ 500,000  $ 500,000
         
Total   $ 1,013,280  $ 1,007,190  $ 500,000  $ 500,000
         

 
Gross realized gains and (losses) on sales of fixed maturity securities in 2003 were $9,350 and $(0), respectively. There was a $13,280

realized loss in the six months ended June 30, 2004. The Company held no short-term investments at December 31, 2002.
 

At December 31, 2003, a short-term investment in a corporate bond was temporarily impaired by $6,405. The impairment was caused by
fluctuations in the market price of the instrument. The Company held the bond until its maturity in May 2004, at which time it was redeemed at its
par value.
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3.    Inventories
 

Inventories consist of the following:
 

   

December 31,
  June 30,

2004
   

2002
  

2003
  

Raw materials   $ 70,417  $ —  $ —
Work in progress    1,011,164   1,025,947   652,720
Finished goods    185,511   572,807   1,047,112
       
Total inventories   $ 1,267,092  $ 1,598,754  $ 1,699,832
       

 
4.    Property and Equipment
 

Property and equipment consist of the following:
 

   

December 31,
  June 30,

2004
    

2002
  

2003
  

Computers, software and equipment   $ 2,547,867  $ 4,240,362  $ 4,991,991 
Furniture and fixtures    81,069   98,475   111,674 
     
Total    2,628,936   4,338,837   5,103,665 
Less accumulated depreciation    (1,161,000)   (2,189,946)   (2,684,187)
     
Property and equipment, net   $ 1,467,936  $ 2,148,891  $ 2,419,478 
     

 
5.    Accrued Liabilities
 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
 

   

December 31,
  June 30,

2004
   

2002
  

2003
  

Warranty reserves (see Note 10)   $ 176,275  $ 120,000  $ 162,934
Legal fees    162,891   161,027   811,408
Other    176,303   306,242   342,865
       
Total accrued liabilities   $ 515,469  $ 587,269  $ 1,317,207
       

 
6.    Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
 

In August 2002, the Company issued 5,087,767 shares of Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock for cash proceeds of
$16,627,235, net of issuance costs of $116,606.
 

Significant terms of the Series D preferred stock are:
 

 

Ÿ In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of Series D preferred stock shall be entitled to receive
prior and in preference to any distributions to holders of Series A, B, or C preferred stock and common stock, $3.291 per share, plus
$0.26328 per share, divided by twelve months, multiplied by the number of months elapsed since the original
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issue date, plus any declared but unpaid dividends. The liquidation preference is subject to adjustment depending on the aggregate
amount of a liquidation event. Following distribution of stated liquidation preference to the holders of Series A, B, and C convertible
preferred stock, any remaining distributable assets of the Company would be distributed among the holders of Series A, B, C, and D
convertible preferred and common stockholders on a pro rata basis.

 

 

Ÿ Commencing five years from the date of original issuance, upon written request by a majority of the holders of the then outstanding
Series D shares, Series D preferred stock shall be redeemed in accordance with certain provisions over a period not to exceed 26
months. The redemption value of Series D preferred stock is equal to $3.291 per share, plus $0.26328 per share, divided by 12 months,
multiplied by the number of months elapsed since original issuance, plus any declared and unpaid dividends. Redemption value is being
accreted over the redemption period.

 

 

Ÿ The holders of the redeemable convertible preferred stock have voting rights equivalent to the number of shares of common stock into
which they are convertible. The holders of redeemable convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive in preference to any distribution
of dividends to the common stockholders, dividends only upon declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors at the rate of $0.263 per
annum per share. As of June 30, 2004, no dividends on preferred or common stock have been declared by the Board of Directors.

 

 

Ÿ Each share of redeemable convertible preferred stock is convertible at any time into one share of common stock at the option of the
holder, subject to adjustment to protect against dilution. The Company can be required to convert the redeemable convertible preferred
stock into common stock at the consent of at least 75% of the outstanding convertible preferred stockholders, voting together as a
single class. Each share of convertible preferred stock automatically converts into common stock upon the closing of the sale of the
Company’s common stock in a public offering with an aggregate offering price of not less than $25,000,000.

 
Changes in Series D preferred stock are as follows:

 

   

Series D

Issuance of Series D in 2002   $ 16,627,235
Accretion of redemption value    446,502
   
Balance, December 31, 2002    17,073,737
Accretion of redemption value    1,339,507
   
Balance, December 31, 2003    18,413,244
    669,754
   
    19,082,998

 
7.    Stockholders’ Equity
 
Convertible Preferred Stock
 

During 1997, the Company issued 2,225,702 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock for $765,975, net of issuance costs of $13,021.
In December 1998, 836,144 warrants to purchase Series A convertible preferred stock at $0.35 per share for $292,650 were exercised.
 

F-16



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 

During 1999, the Company issued 4,261,706 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock for $3,320,653, net of issuance costs of
$32,682. In August 2000, the Company issued warrants in connection with obtaining a revolving line of credit to purchase 60,000 shares of Series
B convertible preferred stock at $0.80 per share. The warrant expires on August 2, 2005. The fair value of the warrant at the date of issuance was
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: risk free rate of return 4.9%; contractual life of five years;
and expected volatility of 75%. The value was deemed to be $31,000 and was amortized to interest expense over the term of the revolving line of
credit. The warrants are outstanding as of June 30, 2004.
 

In March 2001, in connection with a bridge loan, the Company issued warrants to purchase 120,000 shares of the Company’s Series C
convertible preferred stock for $2.25 per share for a five year term. The fair value of the warrants of $172,077 was determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model over the contractual term of the warrants using the following assumptions: stock volatility, 75%; risk free interest
rate, 4.0% and no dividends during the contractual term. The fair value of the warrants was amortized to income over the term of the bridge loan.
The bridge loan and associated accrued interest were converted on May 16, 2001 into 898,044 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock at a
price of $2.25 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $2,000,000 and $20,600 representing principal and interest, respectively.
 

In May 2001, the Company issued 2,146,664 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock for $4,762,763, net of issuance costs of
$67,230.
 

In December 2001, the Company authorized a warrant to purchase 33,718 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock at $2.25 per share
in connection with legal services. The fair value of the warrant at the date of issuance was $107,302, determined based on the fair value of the
services received, and has been amortized to expense over the agreement period. In August 2002, the Company issued a warrant to purchase
33,718 shares of common stock at $1.20 per share that effectively replaced the warrant authorized by the Board of Directors in 2001. The
Company has determined that the original value recorded in 2001 represents the fair value of consideration received and no additional expense
was recorded in 2002. The warrants were fully vested upon issuance, expire in 2009 and are outstanding as of June 30, 2004.
 

At December 31, 2003, the rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of convertible preferred stock are as follows:
 

 

Ÿ The holders of the convertible preferred stock have voting rights equivalent to the number of shares of common stock into which they
are convertible. The holders of convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive in preference to any distribution of dividends to the
common stockholders, dividends only upon declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors at the rate of $0.03, $0.08, $0.225 and
$0.263 per annum per share for Series A, B, C, and D convertible preferred stock, respectively. As of June 30, 2004, no dividends on
preferred or common stock have been declared by the Board of Directors.

 

 
Ÿ Each share of convertible preferred stock is convertible at any time into one share of common stock at the option of the holder, subject

to adjustment to protect against dilution. The Company can be required to convert the convertible preferred stock into common stock at
the consent of at least 75% of the outstanding convertible preferred stockholders, voting together as a single
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class. Each share of convertible preferred stock automatically converts into common stock upon the closing of the sale of the
Company’s common stock in a public offering with an aggregate offering price of not less than $25,000,000.

 

 

Ÿ Upon completion of distributions to holders of Series D preferred stock, the holders of Series A, B and C convertible preferred stock are
entitled to receive $0.35, $0.80 and $2.25 per share, respectively, as well as any declared but unpaid dividends on each share, prior to
distribution to the holders of common stock. Any remaining distributable assets of the Company would be distributed among the holders
of Series A, B, C and D convertible preferred and common stockholders on a pro rata basis.

 
Common Stock
 

A portion of the Company’s shares of common stock were issued under restricted stock purchase agreements. Under these agreements, in
the event of termination of the employees, the Company has the right to repurchase the common stock at the original issuance price. The
repurchase right expires over a 48 month period. At December 31, 2002, 2003 and June 30, 2004, there were 203,292, 243,083 and 178,750
shares, respectively, subject to repurchase.
 

In 2000 and 2001, the Company sold shares of common stock to certain employees and investors and accepted as payment a note
receivable from the individuals due in four years from the date of issuance. The notes are guaranteed by the individuals, bear interest at 5.9% per
year compounded annually, and are classified as stockholder notes receivable in the stockholders’ equity section of the balance sheets. During
2001, certain of these shares were repurchased by the Company and the related receivable was cancelled. In addition, during 2001 the Company
forgave the note receivable from one of its investors and recorded the cancellation of the note as stock-based compensation in the amount of
$17,000. The remaining note of $397,600 as of June 30, 2004 is due March 14, 2006.
 
Stock Option Plan
 

Under the Company’s 1998 Stock Option Plan (the Plan), the Company may grant options to purchase up to 11,807,024 shares of common
stock to employees, directors and consultants. The Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options at a per share price of not less than
100% of the fair market value of the underlying stock at the grant date. Nonstatutory stock options may be granted at a per share price of not less
than 85% of the fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant. However, if incentive stock options or nonstatutory stock options are
granted to an employee, director or consultant who, at the time of grant, owns stock representing more than 10% of the voting power of all classes
of stock, the exercise price per share shall be no less than 110% of the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
 

Options granted to employees generally vest over one to four years and expire ten years after the grant date, subject to the employee’s
continuous employment status. Options may be exercised at any time as to shares which have not yet vested, with unvested shares subject to
repurchase rights by the Company.
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A summary of activity under the Plan is as follows:
 

   

Outstanding Options

   

Number of
Shares

  

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Balances, January 1, 2001 (173,124 shares vested at $0.40 per share)   1,816,000  $ 0.40
Granted (weighted average fair value of $0.10 per share)   1,226,500   0.80
Canceled   (308,000)   0.80
Exercised   (909,000)   0.80
      
Balances, December 31, 2001 (594,163 shares vested at $0.29 per share)   1,825,500   0.43
Granted (weighted average fair value of $0.15 per share)   2,615,500   1.13
Canceled   (117,000)   0.93
Exercised   (252,375)   0.19
      
Balances, December 31, 2002 (882,964 shares vested at $0.45 per share)   4,071,625   0.88
Granted (weighted average fair value of $5.81 per share)   1,988,100   1.20
Canceled   (346,022)   0.98
Exercised   (647,853)   0.74
      
Balances, December 31, 2003 (1,666,369 shares vested at $0.73 per share)   5,065,850  $ 1.01
Granted (weighted average fair value of $8.79 per share)   3,039,700  $ 7.58
Canceled   (620,987)  $ 1.50
Exercised   (461,263)  $ 0.58
      
Balances, June 30, 2004   7,023,300  $ 3.76
      
 

At June 30, 2004, 2,483,733 shares were available for future grant.
 

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2003 concerning outstanding and vested options:
 

Options Outstanding
 

Options Vested

Range of
Exercise Prices

 

Number
Outstanding

 

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Life
(Years)

 

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

 

Number
Vested

 

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$0.05  25,000 5.37 $ 0.05 25,000 $ 0.05
  0.08  501,250 6.45  0.08 463,437  0.08
  0.80  1,010,000 7.54  0.80 611,765  0.80
  1.20  3,129,600 8.69  1.20 424,501  1.20
  1.32  400,000 8.55  1.32 141,666  1.32

           
$0.05-$1.32  5,065,850 8.22 $ 1.02 1,666,369 $ 0.73
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Additional Stock Plan Information
 

As discussed in Note 1, the Company accounts for its stock-based awards using the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its related interpretations.
 

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, requires the disclosure of pro forma net loss had the Company adopted the fair
value method. Under SFAS 123, the fair value of stock-based awards to employees is calculated through the use of option pricing models, even
though such models were developed to estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which
significantly differ from the Company’s stock option awards. These models also require subjective assumptions, including future stock price
volatility and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values.
 

The Company’s fair value calculations on stock-based awards under the 1998 Stock Plan were made using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: expected life, four years from date of grant in 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004; stock
volatility 0% in 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004; average risk free interest rate of 3.5% in 2001 and 3.5% in 2002 and 2.6% in 2003 and 4.6% in 2004;
and no dividends during the expected term. The Company’s calculations are based on a multiple award option valuation approach and forfeitures
are recognized as they occur (see Note 1).
 

At June 30, 2004, the Company had reserved shares of common stock for issuance as follows:
 

   

Dec. 31,
2003

  

June 30,
2004

Conversion of outstanding preferred stock   15,456,027  15,456,027
Issuance under stock option plan   6,528,296  9,507,033
Exercise of warrants   213,718  213,718
     
Total   22,198,041  25,176,778
     

 
In February 2004, the Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholder approval, the reincorporation of the Company in the State of

Delaware and the following:
 
 Ÿ Adoption of the Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2004 Plan) and 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP)
 
 Ÿ Modification of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to authorize 5,000,000 and 150,000,000 shares of preferred and common stock,

respectively, for issuance.
 

These events will become effective in connection with the Company’s initial public offering.
 

Future options and other equity awards will be granted under the 2004 Plan and no further awards will be granted under the 1998 Stock
Plan. A total of 800,000 shares have been reserved for issuance under the 2004 Plan, in addition to shares reserved but not issued under the 1998
Plan as of the effective date of the initial public offering and any shares returned to the 1998 Plan after the effective date of the offering as the
result of termination of options or the repurchase of unvested
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shares issued thereunder. The 2004 Plan also provides for annual increases in the number of shares available for issuance beginning on January
1, 2005 equal to the least of 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock on the first day of the year, 2,400,000 shares, or a number of shares
determined by the Board of Directors.
 

The ESPP becomes effective upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering. Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase
common stock through payroll deductions. Participants may not purchase more than 2,000 shares in a six-month offering period or stock having a
value greater than $25,000 in any calendar year as measured at the beginning of the offering period in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code
and applicable Treasury Regulations. A total of 200,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance under the ESPP plus an automatic
annual increase beginning on January 1, 2005 by an amount equal to the least of 1,000,000 shares, 2% of the outstanding shares of common
stock on the first day of the year or a number of shares determined by the Board of Directors.
 
Deferred Stock Compensation
 

As discussed in Note 1, the Company accounts for its stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance
with APB No. 25. Accordingly, the Company records deferred stock compensation equal to the difference between the grant price and deemed fair
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The deferred stock compensation is reduced by forfeitures of unvested common
stock options. Such net deferred stock compensation was none, none, $9,886,560 and $10,899,827 in 2001, 2002, 2003 and the six months ended
June 30, 2004, respectively, and is being amortized to expense over the vesting period of the options, generally four years, using the multiple
option award method. Amortization of deferred stock compensation is presented net of forfeitures of unvested previously amortized stock
compensation. Amortization of deferred stock compensation, net of forfeitures was $135,188, $123,875, $2,048,448 and $5,671,027 in 2001, 2002,
2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004, respectively.
 

During 2001, 2002, 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004, the Company issued nonstatutory options to nonemployees for the
purchase of 6,000, 90,000, 169,000 and 37,000 shares of common stock at weighted average exercise prices of $0.80, $1.07, $1.20 and $5.68 per
share, respectively. Such options were issued for services provided by nonemployees and have vesting terms ranging from 4 months to 4 years.
Accordingly, the Company recorded $1,008, $49,319, $1,072,522 and $673,437 respectively, as stock-based compensation for the fair values of
the awards (using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: expected life, ten years from date of
grant; stock volatility 75%, 100%, 65% and 65% in 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively; risk free interest rate, 5.2% in 2001, 5.3% in 2002,
4.4% in 2003 and 4.5% in 2004; and no dividends during the term).
 
8.    Net Loss Per Share
 

For the years ended December 31, 2001, and 2002 and 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004, the Company had securities
outstanding which could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, but were excluded in the computation of diluted net loss per share
in the periods
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presented, as their effect would have been antidilutive. Such outstanding securities consist of the following:
 

   

December 31,
  June 30,

2004
   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

Convertible preferred stock   10,368,260  10,368,260  10,368,260  10,368,260
Redeemable convertible preferred stock   —  5,087,767  5,087,767  5,087,787
Stock options   1,825,500  4,071,625  5,065,850  7,049,550
Warrants   213,718  213,718  213,718  213,718
         
Total   12,407,478  19,741,370  20,735,595  22,719,315
         

 
9.    Income Taxes
 

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 consisted solely of minimum state income or franchise taxes.
 

The components of deferred income taxes are as follows:
 

   

December 31,
 

   

2002
  

2003
 

Net operating loss carryforwards   $ 2,972,000  $ 2,703,000 
Research and business tax credits    674,000   1,093,000 
Other costs not currently deductible    546,000   998,000 
    
    4,192,000   4,794,000 
Valuation allowance    (4,192,000)   (4,794,000)
    
Net deferred tax assets   $ —  $ — 
    

 
The effective tax rate differs from the applicable U.S. statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

 

   

December 31,
 

   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
 

U.S. statutory federal tax rate   (35.0)% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State taxes, net of federal benefit   (9.5)  (0.2)  (1.4)
Research and development credits   (2.2)  (6.3)  (5.4)
Deferred compensation   —  —  23.7 
Other   (0.3)  11.2  (1.7)
Change in valuation allowance   47  30.3  19.8 
     
Effective tax rate   0 % 0 % 0 %
     

 
The net change in the total allowance for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $602,000. The increase in the valuation allowance was

primarily a result of increased tax credit carryforwards generated in 2003 against which the Company provided a full valuation allowance based on
the
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Company’s evaluation that the realization of future tax benefits resulting from the deferred tax assets was not reasonably assured.
 

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had available for carryforward net operating losses for federal and state income tax purposes of
approximately $7.5 million and $1.1 million, respectively. Federal net operating loss carryforwards will begin expiring if not utilized by 2012. State
net operating loss carryforwards begin expiring if not utilized by 2005.
 

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had available for carryforward research and business tax credits for federal and state income tax
purposes of approximately $680,000 and $560,000, respectively. Federal research and experimentation tax credit carryforwards begin expiring if
not utilized by 2012. The Company also had $80,000 in California manufacturer’s investment credits which begin expiring if not utilized by 2010.
 

Current federal and California tax laws include substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating losses and tax credits in the event
of an “ownership change” of a corporation. Accordingly, the Company’s ability to utilize net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be
limited as a result of such “ownership change” as defined. Such a limitation could result in the expiration of carryforwards before they are utilized.
 
10.    Commitments
 
Lease Obligations
 

The Company leases its headquarters and sales offices under noncancelable operating leases which expire at various dates through 2009.
Certain of the Company’s facility leases provide for periodic rent increases. In October 2003, the Company amended its existing facility lease to
move to an adjacent facility and extend the lease term from 2007 to 2009. The Company moved to the new facility in February 2004 with lease
payments under the new terms beginning in March 2004. Total obligations under the revised lease are included below. Rent expense for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and for the six months ended June 30, 2004 was $217,127, $370,515, $432,216 and $255,099,
respectively. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Company entered into a second lease amendment to increase the space available under its
facility lease. Payments under the new agreement are included in the table below.
 

The following is a schedule by year and in the aggregate of future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases having
initial or remaining terms in excess of one year at December 31, 2004:
 

All of 2004   $ 540,628
2005    674,408
2006    574,905
2007    608,352
2008    640,660
Thereafter    107,674
   
Total   $ 3,146,627
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Warranty and Indemnification Provisions
 

The Company provides a standard 90-day warranty against defects in materials and workmanship and will either repair the goods, provide
replacements at no charge to the customer, or refund amounts for defective units. On occasion the Company permits the return of defective
products outside the normal warranty period. In such cases, the Company accrues for the related costs at the time the decision to permit the
return is made.
 

The Company has standard indemnification provisions which it commonly provides to its vendors, customers, parties with whom it has
distribution arrangements and contractors. The indemnification provision provides that the Company’s products and technologies do not infringe on
any third parties’ intellectual property rights. The Company agrees to reimburse these related parties for any damages, costs and expenses
incurred by them as a result of legal actions taken against them by third parties for infringing upon their intellectual property rights as a result of
using the Company’s products and technologies. Such costs were $ none, $ none, $ none, and $450,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2002, and 2003 and for the six months ended June 30, 2004. These costs are charged to operations as incurred (also see Note 11). The Company
also provides for indemnification of its directors and officers.
 

The changes in warranty and indemnification reserves during 2002, 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004 are as follows:
 

   

2002
  

2003
  

June 30,
2004

 
Balance at beginning of year   $ 165,254  $ 176,275  $ 120,000 
Warranty and indemnification payments made    (116,398)   (312,249)   (471,270)
Product warranty and indemnification provisions    127,419   255,974   514,204 
     
Balance at end of year   $ 176,275  $ 120,000  $ 162,934 
     

 
Purchase Commitment
 

The Company has outsourced the production of wafers to a third party foundry. The agreement with the foundry provides for three-month
production forecasts. The Company is committed to purchase any wafers under a three-month production forecast, once production has begun. As
of December 31, 2003 and June 30, 2004 these purchase commitments were $1,541,189 and $1,905,014, respectively.
 
11.    Litigation
 Legal Proceedings
 

O2 Micro
 

Overview.    Since November 2000 the Company has been engaged in multiple legal proceedings against O2 Micro, Inc. (“O2 Micro”) and
its parent corporation, O2 Micro International
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Limited (“O2 International”). O2 Micro and O2 International are referred to together as “O2.” These proceedings involve various claims and
counterclaims in the United States and Taiwan by the Company and O2 alleging patent infringements and misappropriation of trade secrets. O2
has also sued a number of other companies in the U.S. and Taiwan for patent infringement, including purchasers and/or users of certain of the
Company’s products. All of these legal proceedings are complex and pose various degrees of risk to the Company and its business.
 

Regardless of the extent to which these legal actions have been successful or not successful, the legal expenses associated with the
various actions in the U.S. and Taiwan have been very high and have had a significant impact on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.
 

Patents at Issue.    The various litigations arise from patents issued to O2 and the Company covering products that compete with each
other.
 

The Company’s Patents.    The Company’s patents at issue are (i) U.S. Patent No. 6,114,814, issued to the Company on November 5,
2000 and relating to inverter ICs for LCD display products (which include, for example, the Company’s CCFL backlight inverter product family) (“the
‘814 patent”) and (ii) U.S. Patent No. 6,316,881 (“the ‘881 patent”), a continuation of the ‘814 patent that issued to the Company on November 13,
2001.
 

O2’s Patents.    The O2 patents at issue are (i) U.S. Patent No. 6,259,615 B1 issued to O2 International on July 10, 2001 and also relating
to inverter ICs for LCD display products (“the ‘615 patent”), (ii) U.S. Patent No. 6,396,722 (“the ‘722 patent”), a continuation of the ‘615 patent that
issued to O2 on May 28, 2002, and (iii) Taiwan Patent No. 152318 issued to O2 International on March 1, 2002, which is a counterpart to the ‘615
patent (“the ‘318 patent”). O2’s original applications for its U.S. ‘615 patent and its Taiwan ‘318 patent were substantially similar, but some of 02’s
claims contained in the ‘318 patent were rejected by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and accordingly the U.S. patent was narrowed
significantly before issuance. The Taiwan patent, however, was not similarly narrowed and was issued in the broader form originally requested.
 

U.S. Litigation.    Various U.S. lawsuits between the Company and O2 have been consolidated in the U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of California. O2 has (i) claimed that the Company interfered with O2’s prospective economic advantage and disrupted O2’s customer
relationships by misrepresenting the scope of the Company’s ‘814 patent, (ii) asked the court to declare that O2 does not infringe the Company’s
‘814 patent and that the Company’s ‘814 patent is invalid, (iii) claimed that the Company’s products infringe its ‘615 patent, and (iv) claimed that
the Company misappropriated its trade secrets. The Company has (i) claimed that O2’s products infringe the Company’s ‘814 and ‘881 patents and
(ii) asked the court to declare that O2’s ‘615 patent is invalid or not enforceable or that the Company’s products do not infringe O2’s ‘615 patent.
Each party denied the allegations in the other party’s complaints and sought damages and an injunction prohibiting the other party from selling its
products.
 

In February 2004 and May 2004, the court ruled on these matters as follows: (i) granting summary judgment for the Company that its
products do not infringe the ‘615 patent, (ii) dismissing O2’s claim that the Company interfered with O2’s economic advantage, (iii) denying O2’s
motion for
 

F-25



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 
summary judgment that O2’s products do not infringe the Company’s ‘814 and ‘881 patents or that those patents are invalid, and (iv) denying both
parties’ motions for summary judgment on O2’s trade secret claims. The Company expects O2 to eventually appeal one or more of these rulings
to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. O2 could wait to file any such appeal until conclusion of the trial or could ask the trial judge to
allow an earlier appeal prior to the trial.
 

The claims remaining after these rulings include (i) O2’s trade secret claims and (ii) the Company’s infringement claims for injunctive relief
only and not for damages. Trial on these matters is scheduled for February 2005. While the Company believes that its ‘814 and ‘881 patents are
valid and that it has not misappropriated any of O2’s trade secrets, a court could find differently. If the court finds that the Company’s ‘814 and
‘881 patents are invalid, the Company’s competitive position would be severely harmed. If the court finds that the Company has misappropriated
O2’s trade secrets, it could be liable for damages to O2 and/or be enjoined from further misappropriation or use of the alleged trade secrets. Any
award of damages could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and operating results.
 

In addition, if O2 appeals the rulings in the Company’s favor, the Company will at a minimum continue to incur substantial legal expense
contesting any such appeal. If O2 were to be successful on any such appeals, O2’s claims would be remanded for trial. If the court in any such
trial were to find that the Company’s products infringe the ‘615 patent, the Company could be liable to O2 for damages and could be enjoined from
selling its products in the U.S. Any such injunction would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations, at
least for several quarters and possibly for a much longer period of time, depending on the extent of any such damage award and the scope and
applicability of any such injunction. If the court found that the Company has interfered with O2’s economic advantage, the Company could be liable
for damages to O2, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and operating results.
 

In January 2003, O2 filed a lawsuit against Sumida Corp. and Taiwan Sumida Electronics Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas alleging that Sumida’s use of the Company’s products in Sumida’s products infringes the ‘615 and ‘722 patents. The Company
has agreed to assume the defense of Sumida pursuant to an indemnity agreement. That case has been set for trial for June 2005.
 

In response to O2’s action against Sumida, in May 2004, the Company filed a complaint against O2 in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California seeking a declaratory judgment that the Company does not infringe O2’s ‘722 patent. That case has been assigned
to the same Judge presiding over the litigation over the ‘615, ‘814, and ‘881 patents described above.
 

Taiwan Litigation
 

Summary.    In addition to the U.S. litigation described above, O2 has brought legal proceedings against the Company in Taiwan based
upon its ‘318 patent. Unlike the U.S., where a party seeking a preliminary injunction must first file a lawsuit on the merits of the underlying claim, in
Taiwan it is possible for a party to be granted a preliminary injunction without first filing a lawsuit on the merits. In January 2003, upon O2’s
request, the Shihlin District Court in Taiwan issued a preliminary injunction prohibiting the Company from manufacturing, designing, displaying,
importing or selling the Company’s
 

F-26



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 
MP 1011A and MP 1015 products in Taiwan, either directly or through a third party acting at the Company’s request.
 

The Company believes that it has at all times conducted its business in compliance with the injunction. Nevertheless, O2 has taken
various actions in an attempt to persuade the Shihlin District Court that the Company has violated it. The Company has also taken several legal
actions in an attempt to have the injunction lifted and/or to have O2’s ‘318 patent declared invalid. These actions include appealing the Shihlin
District Court’s injunction, initiating proceedings with the Taiwan Intellectual Property Office (TIPO) to invalidate O2’s ‘318 patent and seeking
counter-injunctions from the Taipei District Court. Some of those actions have produced legal outcomes in the Company’s favor and others have
not, but none has yet resulted in the lifting of the injunction or the invalidation of O2’s patent. The Company intends to continue pursuing the
available legal avenues to achieve these objectives.
 

In June 2003, O2 filed a lawsuit against the Company in the Shihlin District Court for a resolution on the merits of O2’s claim that the
Company’s products infringe O2’s ‘318 patent. That lawsuit was dismissed in April 2004, but O2 filed a similar lawsuit in Taipei District Court
shortly thereafter. No date for the trial has yet been set.
 

In August 2004, the TIPO issued a letter ordering O2 to amend its ‘318 patent. The TIPO letter indicated that two of the three independent
claims asserted by O2 lacked inventive steps and therefore should be amended or deleted by O2. As to the third independent claim, the TIPO
indicated that certain corrections should be made, but has not at this time indicated that the third independent claim should be amended or
deleted. If, following such correction, the third claim is upheld by the TIPO, such claim would be sufficient for O2 to continue its patent claims
against the Company. In July 2004, the Taiwan Supreme Court issued a ruling that remanded O2’s patent infringement case against the Company
to the Taiwan High Court. In that ruling, the Taiwan Supreme Court indicated that it must be demonstrated whether O2’s country of incorporation,
the Cayman Islands, offers similar, reciprocal protections to Taiwanese individuals and entities under its patent law. If the Taiwan High Court does
not find that such reciprocity exists, then the Court might rule that O2 is not entitled to certain legal protections for its patents under Taiwan patent
law. If the Court were to rule that O2 is not entitled to such certain legal protections, then the preliminary injunction and provisional seizure orders
granted to O2 and the lawsuit filed by O2 currently pending with the Taipei District Court would all be dismissed.
 

Details.    Included below are more details on certain aspects of the Taiwan litigation.
 

O2’s Injunction Against the Company.    The Company’s Taiwan counsel, Chen and Lin, has advised the Company that so long as title
to the Company’s products and physical possession of the Company’s goods transfer outside Taiwan to a third party not commissioned by the
Company and not acting at the Company’s request, and the Company does not otherwise design, manufacture, or display the MP 1011A and MP
1015 in Taiwan, the Company can sell those products to any third party in the U.S. or outside Taiwan and be in compliance with the injunction.
Following the issuance of the injunction, the Company examined the Company’s distribution channels and altered the Company’s distribution
arrangements for the Company’s MP 1011A and MP 1015 products. Since the issuance of the injunction the Company has sold these products
F.O.B. Los Gatos, California, to third parties with whom the Company has distribution arrangements. Although the Company does not direct the
parties with whom it has distribution arrangements as to where they should resell the MP 1011A and MP 1015
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products, they generally do not order these products until they have received an order from a customer, who is often located in Taiwan. The
Company believes, based on advice from Chen and Lin, that this course of business does not violate the injunction. The abovementioned opinions
of Chen and Lin are not binding on the court, which will reach its own conclusions.
 

Despite the Company’s belief, O2 has attempted repeatedly to persuade the Shihlin District Court that the Company has violated the
injunction. For example, O2 has on multiple occasions sought discovery in Taiwan and U.S. courts regarding the source of MP 1011A and MP
1015 products being used in Taiwan. In May 2004, O2 further requested the Shihlin District Court to find the Company in violation of the injunction
based on certain of the Company’s products. The court has not yet issued a ruling on O2’s motion. The Company’s products within each product
family, including most of the Company’s CCFL backlight inverter products, are produced using similar mask sets and processes. As is customary
in the semiconductor industry, the products within each product family are differentiated from one another principally by their electrical performance
specifications, which the Company confirms through testing prior to labeling the products. In 2003, the Company shipped products F.O.B. Los
Gatos, California for approximately $360,000 to parties with whom the Company has distribution arrangements for resale into Taiwan and China.
While these products were manufactured using the same processes the Company uses to produce the Company’s MP 1015 product, the Company
labeled these products as MP 1010B products because they possessed the superior electrical performance specifications of the Company’s MP
1010B product. Despite their electrical performance specifications, however, O2 contends that these products are equivalent to the Company’s MP
1015 product and are therefore subject to the injunction. The Company believes, based on the electrical performance specifications of these
products, that they are not equivalent to the Company’s MP 1015 product and are therefore not subject to the injunction. Following the
manufacture of the products discussed above, in the Company’s MP 1010B product the Company has used and continues to use mask sets and
processes that are different from those used to produce the products discussed above. Although most products in the Company’s CCFL backlight
inverter family, including the MP 1010B, MP 1011A, and MP 1015 products, continue to be produced using similar mask sets and processes, the
Company views them as distinct products based upon their distinct electrical performance specifications.
 

If O2 is able to persuade a Taiwanese court that the Company has violated the injunction, the court could fine the Company up to 300,000
NT (approximately $9,000 at current exchange rates), either overall or per shipment. The court could also broadly construe the injunction to cover
other products such as the MP 1010B or to prohibit the Company from selling the enjoined products indirectly through third parties with whom the
Company has distribution arrangements for resale of products into Taiwan. For any or all of these reasons, a finding of violation by the court could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s results, and possibly the Company’s sales, for one or more quarters.
 

The Company’s Counter-Injunctions Against O2.    The Company has obtained two defensive counter-injunctions from the Taipei District
Court, the first of which prohibits O2 from interfering with the Company’s or other parties’ use of the Company’s MP 1011A and MP 1015 products.
The second injunction prohibits O2 from interfering with the manufacture, sale, use or importation, by either the Company or a third party, of a
number of the Company’s other products which are specifically
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enumerated in the injunction, although the MP 1010B is not specifically addressed. The Company posted cash bonds of approximately $6.1 million
(including the $90,000 bond discussed below) with the Taipei District Court in connection with the two defensive preliminary injunctions. These
bonds are currently recorded as restricted assets on the Company’s balance sheet. If the Company does not prevail at trial, it might have to forfeit
some or all of these bonds. Any such forfeiture would be an expense in the quarter in which the outcome of the trial is probable and reasonably
estimable. A forfeiture of any substantial part of the bonds would materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and financial
position for that quarter.
 

O2’s Other Actions Against the Company.    In August 2003, November 2003, and March 2004, O2 filed for provisional seizures against
the Company in the Shihlin District Court and Taipei District Court, which would entitle O2 to seize up to approximately $1.9 million of the
Company’s assets in Taiwan, including but not limited to MP 1011A and MP 1015 parts. The court granted the provisional seizures. The execution
of the first provisional seizure was exempted because the Company posted a bond in the amount of approximately $90,000. The Company elected
not to post a bond to exempt the second and third provisional seizure orders, and the court seized property from the Company’s Taiwan office. The
Company has appealed the second and third provisional seizures to the Taiwan High Court. One of the Company’s appeals, involving the third
seizure, has been denied but the other appeal regarding the second seizure is still pending. The second and third provisional seizure orders have
not yet been executed to the satisfaction of O2’s demand, and accordingly O2 may continue to request that the court seize the Company’s
property under these orders. O2 also filed a criminal complaint with the prosecutor’s office of the Shihlin District Court against two of the
Company’s Taiwan employees accusing them of interfering with the enforcement of the Shihlin District Court’s preliminary injunction against the
Company. In March 2004, the Shihlin District Court Prosecutor’s Office dismissed that complaint.
 

O2’s Lawsuits Against the Company’s Customers.    In addition to lawsuits between O2 and the Company in Taiwan and the U.S., O2
has also initiated numerous legal proceedings in Taiwan and the U.S. against other companies, including AsusTek, Hewlett-Packard, Clevo,
Samsung and others who have been purchasers and/or users of the Company’s products. Although court filings are generally not publicly available
in Taiwan, the Company is aware that in some cases those companies have been enjoined from using MP 1011A and MP 1015 products imported
into Taiwan. In at least two cases, preliminary injunctions against AsusTek and Clevo were upheld by district courts in Taiwan. Injunctions against
end-users of the Company’s products necessarily reduce the demand for the Company’s products, potentially leading to reduced sales. Such
injunctions could also damage the Company’s reputation in the marketplace. The Company typically agrees to indemnify customers upon request
against patent infringement and, on that basis, is currently defending a customer against one of O2’s lawsuits. Continued expenditure of the
Company’s funds in defending customers against O2’s lawsuits could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and
operating results.
 

Trial on the Merits in Taiwan.    The Company could lose at trial on the question of whether the Company’s products infringe O2’s ‘318
patent. Although O2 has named only the Company’s MP 1011A and MP 1015 products in its lawsuit, if the court were to conclude that those
products infringe the ‘318 patent, the court could also conclude that many of the Company’s newer products, including the 1010B and other CCFL
products that are physically similar to the MP 1011A and/or the MP 1015, infringe
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O2’s ‘318 patent. The Company does not believe that the ‘318 patent is a valid patent or that any of the Company’s products infringe the ‘318
patent, but a court may come to a different conclusion. O2’s original applications for its U.S. ‘615 patent and its Taiwan ‘318 patent were
substantially similar, but some of O2’s claims contained in the ‘318 patent were rejected by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. Since the
claims in the ‘318 patent are formulated more broadly than those of the ‘615 patent, the summary judgment in the U.S. that the Company’s
products do not infringe the ‘615 patent may not be as helpful to the Company in the ‘318 case as it might be if the patents were identical.
 

If the court were to conclude that any of the Company’s products infringe the ‘318 patent (and the ‘318 patent were valid), the Company
could be liable to O2 for damages based on past sales, and could further be permanently enjoined from selling those products (directly or through
distribution arrangements) for use in Taiwan. Although many system and module manufacturers who use the Company’s products have shifted,
and are continuing to shift, their manufacturing from Taiwan to China, a significant portion of the Company’s expected future revenue over the next
several years is expected to come from users of the Company’s CCFL backlight inverter product family in Taiwan. A final judgment awarded by a
court prohibiting direct or indirect sales of the Company’s MP 1011A or MP 1015 products into Taiwan would have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business and results of operations for at least several quarters while the Company works to transition customers to alternative, non-
infringing products. The Company cannot be sure that it could successfully effect such a transition. If the Company is permanently enjoined from
selling other, newer products into Taiwan, this would have an immediate, drastic, and adverse effect on the Company’s ability to continue in its
business as presently conducted.
 

Additional O2 Patents.    The Company is aware that on May 28, 2002, O2 was issued U.S. Patent No. 6,396,722 (“the ‘722 patent”), a
continuation of O2’s ‘615 patent. The Company is also aware that O2 has filed for related patents in other Asian countries. The Company is not
aware that any foreign patents have been issued in response to these patent applications and do not know when, if ever, any such patent will
issue. Nevertheless, the Company expects O2 may pursue claims against us in the U.S. based on the ‘722 patent and, if and when any additional
foreign patents issue, based on those patents. Depending on the scope and severity of those claims, any injunctions that may be issued against
the Company, or damages that may be awarded against the Company, could have a material and adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.
 

In connection with these cases in 2003 the Company has placed approximately $6.1 million in a certificate of deposit account with the
Court in Taiwan as security against future possible damages related to the lawsuit. The deposits are classified as restricted assets in the
accompanying balance sheet. Additionally, approximately $9,000 of the Company’s lab equipment in Taiwan has been bonded by the Court. It is
not possible to predict the likely outcome of the litigation and accordingly, no amounts have been accrued as loss contingencies as of December
31, 2003 or June 30, 2004.
 

Linear Technology Corporation
 

On May 3, 2004, Linear Technology Corporation (“Linear”) filed a complaint for misappropriation of trade secrets, unfair business practices,
California common law unfair competition, breach of agreement, and breach of the duty of good faith and fair dealing against the Company and a
former Linear employee who currently works for the Company in the Superior Court of the State of California,
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Santa Clara County. In its complaint, Linear alleges that the Company hired several former Linear employees who purportedly disclosed Linear’s
trade secrets, that the Company relied on these trade secrets to contact Linear’s customers and solicit Linear’s employees, and that the Company
otherwise used this information in a manner that has harmed Linear. In its complaint, Linear has requested unspecified actual and punitive
damages, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees. No trial date has yet been set in this lawsuit, and the parties are in the initial discovery phase in the
litigation. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to Linear’s claims, and it intends to defend vigorously against these claims.
 

It is not possible to predict the likely outcome of the litigation and accordingly, no amounts have been accrued as loss contingencies to
date.
 

On July 16, 2004, a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission (ITC) under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 on
behalf of Linear Technology Corporation (Linear). The investigation is now captioned: In the Matter of Certain Voltage Regulator Circuits,
Components Thereof and Products Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-521. A letter supplementing the complaint was filed on August 10, 2004. In
its complaint, Linear alleges that two products, the MP 1556 and the EV 0063 (products within the Company’s DC to DC converter product family),
infringe Linear’s U.S. Patent Nos. 5,481,178 and 6,580,258 at this time. Therefore, Linear alleges that the Company violated section 337 because
it imported these and other allegedly infringing products into the United States, sold them for importation in the United States, and/or sold them
within the United States after importing them. The complaint requests that the ITC institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue an
exclusion order and a cease and desist order prohibiting specific unfair acts found to be illegal in the investigation. On August 11, 2004, the ITC
ordered that an investigation be instituted to determine whether there has been a violation of section 337, as alleged in the complaint. The matter
is in its preliminary stages, and the Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims and intends to defend vigorously against them. If
Linear is successful in securing an exclusion order against the MP 1556, EV 0063, and potentially other products that Linear may allege are
infringing, such an exclusion order would prevent such products from being shipped into the United States and would have a material adverse
effect upon the Company’s business.
 

It is not possible to predict the likely outcome of the litigation and accordingly, no amounts have been accrued as loss contingencies to
date.
 

We are aware that on October 6, 2004, Microsemi Corporation issued a press release stating that it filed a patent infringement lawsuit
against the Company in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, alleging that the Company willfully infringes four
Microsemi patents, U.S. Patent Nos. 5,615,093; 5,923,129; 5,930,121; and 6,198,234. The Microsemi press release states that Microsemi
requests that the Company should stop using Microsemi’s patented technology and should provide monetary relief for unauthorized use of
Microsemi’s intellectual property.
 

It is not possible to predict the likely outcome of the litigation and accordingly, no amounts have been accrued as loss contingencies to
date.
 

F-31



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 
12.    Employee Benefit Plan
 

The Company sponsors a 401(k) savings and profit-sharing plan (the Plan) for all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements.
Participants may contribute up to the amount allowable as a deduction for federal income tax purposes. The Company is not required to contribute
and did not contribute to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004.
 
13.    Major Customers
 

The following table summarizes net revenue and accounts receivable for customers which accounted for 10% or more of accounts
receivable or net revenue:
 

   

Accounts
Receivable

December 31,
  

Accounts
Receivable
Six Months

Ended
June 30,

2004
 

 

Net Revenue
Year Ended

December 31,
  

Net Revenue
Six Months

Period Ended
June 30,

2004Customers
  

2002
  

2003
   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

A   —  —  —  11% 13% —  —
B   21%  27% —  54% 22% 14% 2%
C   —  37% 1% —  —  30% 6%
D   23%  —  —  —  13% —  —
E   —  —  7% —  11% 7% 7%
F   —  9% 13% —  4% 16% 11%
G   —  —  31% —  —  —  22%
H   —  3% 17%          19%

 
14.    Segment Information
 

As defined by the requirements of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, the Company
operates in one reportable segment: the design, development, marketing and sale of high-performance, mixed-signal analog semiconductors for
the personal computing and telecommunications markets. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its chief executive officer. The
Company derived substantially all of its sales from international sales during 2001 and 2002. In 2003, the Company had significant sales to a third
party with whom it had a distribution arrangement in the United States who resells primarily to customers in Asia. In March 2004, the Company
discontinued using this particular third party and is using other distributors in Asia for sales to customers in that region.
 

F-32



Table of Contents

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and Six Months Ended June 30, 2004
(Information with Respect to June 30, 2004 and the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2003 and 2004 is Unaudited)
 

The following is a summary of revenues by geographic region based on customer location:
 

   

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2004Country
  

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

United States   $ —  $ 121,925  $ 7,674,553  $ 1,322,055
Taiwan    7,237,258   10,033,798   10,006,563   6,826,697
Japan    —   1,863,118   2,617,923   1,364,676
China    —   —   1,411,026   6,938,991
Other    893,097   186,760   2,494,266   1,606,527
         
Total   $ 8,130,355  $ 12,205,601  $ 24,204,331  $ 18,058,946
         

 
Although 32% and 7% of direct sales are to customers in the United States in 2003 and the six months ended June 30, 2004, respectively,

99% and 98%, respectively, of direct and indirect sales are to customers in Asia.
 

The following is a summary of revenue by product type:
 

   

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2004
   

2001
  

2002
  

2003
  

Cold Cathode Fluorescent Lamp Inverters   $ 8,130,355  $ 9,693,959  $ 16,898,243  $ 8,840,120
Direct Current (DC) to DC Converters    —   388,131   5,549,264   7,085,904
LED Drivers    —   420,565   1,441,755   1,855,417
Audio Amplifiers    —   1,702,946   315,069   277,505
         
Total   $ 8,130,355  $ 12,205,601  $ 24,204,331  $ 18,058,946
         

 
The following is a summary of long-lived assets by geographic region, excluding restricted assets (see Note 1):

 

   

Years Ended December 31,
  

Six Months
Ended

June 30,
2004Country

  

2002
  

2003
  

United States   $ 1,497,534  $ 2,110,572  $ 3,341,135
Taiwan    47,236   23,488   88,031
China    —   14,831   24,885
       
Total   $ 1,544,770  $ 2,148,891  $ 3,454,051
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15.    Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
 

The Company had the following activity in its valuation allowances:
 

   

Sales
Returns

  

Bad Debt
  

Total 
  

Deferred
Tax Asset
Valuation
Allowance

Balance, December 31, 2000   $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 1,532,000
Charged to costs and expenses    126,830   —   126,830   1,679,000
Deductions    (126,830)   —   (126,830)   —
      
Balance, December 31, 2001    —   —   —   3,211,000
Charged to costs and expenses    —   50,000   50,000   981,000
Deductions    —   —   —   —
      
Balance, December 31, 2002    —   50,000   50,000   4,192,000
Charged to costs and expenses    90,482   —   90,482   602,000
Deductions    (81,373)   (14,176)   (95,549)   —
      
Balance, December 31, 2003   $ 9,109  $ 35,824  $ 44,933  $ 4,794,000
      

 
16.    Subsequent Events
 

On August 19, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with a Chinese local authority to establish a facility in China, initially for the
testing of its ICs. Pursuant to the agreement, the company has agreed contribute capital (in the form of cash, in-kind assets, and/or intellectual
property) of at least $5 million to a wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary as the registered capital of the subsidiary. From the date when the local
authorities have both approved the establishment of the Company’s Chinese subsidiary and granted the subsidiary’s business license, $750,000 of
the investment is to occur within three months and the remaining balance is to occur within three years. It is anticipated that the registered capital
will consist of approximately $0.5 million in cash and $4.5 million in in-kind assets, such as testing equipment and office equipment, furniture, and
supplies.
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No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in this prospectus. You

must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the shares offered hereby, but only under
circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS

 

   

Page

Prospectus Summary   1
The Offering   4
Summary Consolidated Financial Data   5
Risk Factors   7
Forward-Looking Information   20
Use of Proceeds   20
Dividend Policy   20
Capitalization   21
Dilution   22
Selected Consolidated Financial Data   23
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations   25
Business   42
Management   59
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions   70
Principal and Selling Stockholders   72
Description of Capital Stock   76
Shares Eligible for Future Sale   79
Underwriting   81
Validity of Securities   84
Experts   84
Where You Can Find More Information   84
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements   F-1
 

 
Through and including             , 2004 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers effecting transactions in these securities,

whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer’s obligation to deliver a
prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.
 

 

             Shares
 

Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
 

Common Stock
 

 

 

 

Goldman, Sachs & Co.
 

Merrill Lynch & Co.
 

Deutsche Bank Securities
 

Piper Jaffray
 

Representatives of the Underwriters
 



Table of Contents

PART II
 INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
 

Unless otherwise defined, all capitalized terms contained in this Part II shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the prospectus which
forms a part of this registration statement. Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. is sometimes referred to in this Part II as the “Registrant.”
 
Item 13.    Other expenses of issuance and distribution.
 

The following table sets forth the costs and expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, payable by the Registrant in
connection with the sale of common stock being registered hereby, including the shares offered for sale by the selling stockholders. All amounts
are estimates except the SEC registration fee, the NASD filing fee and the Nasdaq National Market listing fee. None of these expenses will be
borne by the selling stockholders.
 
Securities and Exchange Commission registration fees   $ 12,670
NASD filing fee    10,500
Printing and engraving expenses     
Legal fees and costs     
Accounting fees and costs     
Nasdaq National Market listing fees     
Transfer agent and registrar fees and expenses     
Miscellaneous expenses     

   
Total   $  

 
Item 14.    Indemnification of directors and officers.
 

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides for the indemnification of officers, directors, and other corporate agents in
terms sufficiently broad to indemnify such persons under certain circumstances for liabilities (including reimbursement for expenses incurred)
arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Article IX of the Registrant’s proposed Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation (Exhibit 3.2 hereto) and Article IX of the Registrant’s proposed Amended and Restated Bylaws (Exhibit 3.4 hereto), both
of which will become effective upon the consummation of the Registrant’s anticipated reincorporation into Delaware, provide for indemnification of
the Registrant’s directors, officers, employees, and other agents to the extent and under the circumstances permitted by the Delaware General
Corporation Law. The Registrant intends to purchase directors’ and officers’ insurance and to enter into agreements with its directors and officers
that will require the Registrant, among other things, to indemnify them against certain liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service
as director or officers to the fullest extent not prohibited by law. The Underwriting Agreement (Exhibit 1.1 hereto) provides for indemnification by
the Underwriters of the Registrant, its directors and officers, and by the Registrant of the Underwriters, for certain liabilities, including liabilities
arising under the Securities Act and affords certain rights of contribution with respect thereto. The version of our Bylaws in effect prior to our
anticipated reincorporation requires us to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted under California law, which could apply
to actions taken by our directors and officers during the time that our state of incorporation is California.
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Item 15.    Recent sales of unregistered securities.
 

Since September 1, 2001, we have sold and issued the following unregistered securities:
 

 
(1) From September 1, 2001 to September 1, 2004, we granted stock options to purchase an aggregate of 8,187,000 shares of common

stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.80 to $10.00 per share to employees, consultants, directors, and other service providers
pursuant to our 1998 Stock Plan.

 
 (2) On August 13, 2002, we issued a warrant to purchase 33,718 shares of common stock at $1.20 per share to Wilson Sonsini

Goodrich & Rosati.
 
 (3) On August 23, 2002, we issued an aggregate of 5,087,767 shares of Series D Preferred Stock to 18 accredited investors for an

aggregate consideration of $16,743,841.22.
 
 (4) On September 17, 2004, our Board of Directors approved the grant of 176,740 shares of our common stock at a price of $0.001 per

share to certain of our employees for an aggregate offering price of $176.74.
 

The sales and issuances of securities described in paragraphs (1) and (4) above were exempt from registration under the Securities Act by
virtue of Section 4(2) of the Securities Act or by virtue of Rule 701 promulgated under the Securities Act in that they were offered and sold either
pursuant to a written compensatory benefit plan or pursuant to a written contract relating to compensation, as provided by Rule 701. The sale and
issuance of securities described in paragraphs (2) and (3) above were exempt from registration under the Securities Act by virtue of Section 4(2) of
the Securities Act or by virtue of Regulation D promulgated thereunder.
 
Item 16.    Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules.
 
 (a) Exhibits.
 

Exhibit
Number

  

Description

  1.1*   Form of Underwriting Agreement.
  3.1**   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to be effective upon the reincorporation.
  3.2**   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to be effective upon consummation of this offering.
  3.3**   Bylaws, to be effective upon the reincorporation.
  3.4*   Amended and Restated Bylaws, to be effective upon consummation of this offering.
  4.1**

  
Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 23, 2002, as amended, by and among the Registrant and the parties who are

signatories thereto.
  5.1*   Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati.
10.1**   Registrant’s 1998 Stock Plan and form of option agreement.
10.2**   Registrant’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan and form of option agreement.
10.3**   Registrant’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of subscription agreement.
10.4*   Form of Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement.
10.5†**

  
Foundry Agreement between the Registrant and Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp. of Shanghai, dated August 14,

2001.
10.6**

  
Office Lease, First Amendment to Office Lease, and Second Amendment to Office Lease between the Registrant and Boccardo

Corporation, dated May 6, 2002, October 30, 2003, and May 6, 2004, respectively.
10.7**   Employment Agreement with Michael Hsing.
10.8**   Employment Agreement with Tim Christoffersen.
10.9**   Employment Agreement with Jim Moyer.
10.10   Separation Agreement and Release and Consulting Agreement, as amended, with Brian McDonald.
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Exhibit
Number

  

Description

10.11**   Distribution Agreement with Asian Information Technology Inc. Ltd., dated March 1, 2004.
10.12**   Business Purchase Agreement with Uppertech Hong Kong Ltd., dated March 1, 2004.
10.13†**   Investment and Cooperation Contract, dated August 19, 2004.
10.14†**   Patent License Agreement, dated May 1, 2004.
23.1   Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
23.2*   Consent of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati (included in Exhibit 5.1).
23.3   Consent of Chen and Lin.
24.1**   Power of Attorney.
24.2   Power of Attorney for Alan Earhart. Reference is made to Page II-4.

 * To be filed by amendment
 ** Previously filed.
 † Confidential treatment requested for portions of this agreement, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the

Securities and Exchange Commission
 
 (b) Financial Statement Schedules.
 
Item 17.    Undertakings.
 

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to provide to the underwriters at the closing specified in the underwriting agreement,
certificates in such denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriters to permit prompt delivery to each purchaser.
 

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event
that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer
or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been
settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy
as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
 

The undersigned hereby undertakes that:
 

(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as
part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)
(1), or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.
 

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
 

II-3



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Los Gatos, State of California, on October 8, 2004.
 

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.

By:
 

/s/    MICHAEL R. HSING

 

 
Michael R. Hsing
President and Chief Executive Officer

 
POWER OF ATTORNEY

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Alan Earhart, whose signature appears below, hereby constitutes and appoints Michael

Hsing and Tim Christoffersen, or either of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments, including post-
effective amendments, to this Registration Statement, and any registration statement relating to the offering covered by this Registration
Statement and filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933 and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agents or their substitute or substitutes may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons on October 8,
2004 in the capacities indicated.
 

Signature
  

Title

/s/    MICHAEL R. HSING        

Michael R. Hsing   

President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

/S/    TIM CHRISTOFFERSEN        

Tim Christoffersen   

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

*

Herbert Chang   

Director

/s/    ALAN EARHART        

Alan Earhart   

Director

*

Jim Jones   

Director

*

Jim C. Moyer   

Director

*

Umesh Padval   

Director

 

*By:  /s/    MICHAEL R. HSING        
 

 
Michael R. Hsing
Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

Exhibit
Number

  

Description

  1.1*   Form of Underwriting Agreement.
  3.1**   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to be effective upon the reincorporation.
  3.2**   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, to be effective upon consummation of this offering.
  3.3**   Bylaws, to be effective upon the reincorporation.
  3.4*   Amended and Restated Bylaws, to be effective upon consummation of this offering.
  4.1**

  
Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 23, 2002, as amended, by and among the Registrant and the parties who are

signatories thereto.
  5.1*   Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati.
10.1**   Registrant’s 1998 Stock Plan and form of option agreement.
10.2**   Registrant’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan and form of option agreement.
10.3**   Registrant’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of subscription agreement.
10.4*   Form of Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnification Agreement.
10.5†**

  
Foundry Agreement between the Registrant and Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp. of Shanghai, dated August 14,

2001.
10.6**

  
Office Lease, First Amendment to Office Lease, and Second Amendment to Office Lease between the Registrant and Boccardo

Corporation, dated May 6, 2002, October 30, 2003, and May 6, 2004, respectively.
10.7**   Employment Agreement with Michael Hsing.
10.8**   Employment Agreement with Tim Christoffersen.
10.9**   Employment Agreement with Jim Moyer.
10.10   Separation Agreement and Release and Consulting Agreement, as amended, with Brian McDonald.
10.11**   Distribution Agreement with Asian Information Technology Inc. Ltd., dated March 1, 2004.
10.12**   Business Purchase Agreement with Uppertech Hong Kong Ltd., dated March 1, 2004.
10.13†**   Investment and Cooperation Contract, dated August 19, 2004.
10.14†**   Patent License Agreement, dated May 1, 2004.
23.1   Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
23.2*   Consent of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati (included in Exhibit 5.1).
23.3   Consent of Chen and Lin.
24.1**   Power of Attorney.
24.2   Power of Attorney for Alan Earhart. Reference is made to Page II-4.

 * To be filed by amendment
 ** Previously filed.
 † Confidential treatment requested for portions of this agreement, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the

Securities and Exchange Commission
 



Exhibit 10.10
 

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND RELEASE
 

RECITALS
 

This Separation Agreement and Release (“Agreement”) is made by and between Brian McDonald (“Employee”) and Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
(the “Company”) (jointly referred to as the “Parties”):
 

WHEREAS, Employee was employed by the Company;
 

WHEREAS, the Employee and the Company entered into an Employment Agreement effective July 26, 2002 (the “Employment Agreement”);
 

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee entered into an Employee Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement dated August 5,
2002 (the “Confidentiality Agreement”);
 

WHEREAS, the Company granted Employee an option (“Option 1”) to purchase 400,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”)
on August 20, 2002 under the Company’s 1998 Stock Plan (the “Plan”), subject to the terms of the Plan and the option agreement executed by the Company
and Employee relating to Option 1 (“Option Agreement 1”), an option (“Option 2”) to purchase 40,000 shares of Common Stock on November 6, 2003 under
the Plan, subject to the terms of the Plan and the option agreement executed by the Company and Employee relating to Option 2 (“Option Agreement 2”),
and an option (“Option 3” and together with Option 1 and Option 2, the “Options”) to purchase 10,000 shares of Common Stock on January 28, 2004 under
the Plan, subject to the terms of the Plan and the option agreement executed by the Company and Employee relating to Option 3 (“Option Agreement 3” and
together with Option Agreement 1 and Option Agreement 2, the “Option Agreements”);
 

WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to accept Employee’s resignation as its Vice President of Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer
and his relinquishment of all other officer and director positions with the Company and its affiliates as of June 22, 2004 (the “Resignation Date”); and
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to resolve any and all disputes, claims, complaints, grievances, charges, actions, petitions and demands that the Employee
may have against the Company, including, but not limited to, any and all claims arising or in any way related to Employee’s employment with or separation
from the Company.
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows:
 

COVENANTS
 

1. Consideration.



(a) Severance Payment. The Company agrees to pay Employee the lump sum equivalent of two (2) weeks of his base salary (as in effect on the
Resignation Date), less applicable withholding, in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices. This payment will be made to Employee
within five (5) business days after the Effective Date.

 
(b) Consulting. Commencing on the Resignation Date, Employee will make himself available to serve as a consultant to the Company through

September 24, 2004 (the “Consulting Term”), pursuant to the written consulting agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”), attached hereto as Exhibit
A.

 
2. Options. The Parties acknowledge and agree that one hundred eighty three thousand three hundred thirty-three (183,333) shares of Common Stock

subject to Option 1 have vested as of the Resignation Date, zero (0) shares of Common Stock subject to Option 2 have vested as of the Resignation Date, and
zero (0) shares of Common Stock subject to Option 3 have vested as of the Resignation Date. The Parties hereby agree that no further shares will vest under
the Options from and after the Resignation Date. The vested portion of Option 1 will remain outstanding following the Resignation Date and will continue to
be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the applicable Option Agreement. Option 2 and Option 3 will cease to exist and be cancelled and
Employee will have no further rights with respect to Option 2 and Option 3. The portion of Option 1 that has not vested as of the Resignation Date will cease
to exist and be cancelled and Employee will have no further rights with respect to such unvested portion of Option 1. Employee will continue to be a Service
Provider for purposes of the Plan and the Option Agreements, pursuant to the Consulting Agreement. The Company shall provide written notice to Employee
not more than five (5) business days after Employee ceases to be a Service Provider for purposes of the Plan and Option Agreements; provided, however, that
the Company shall have no obligation to provide such notice when Employee ceases to be a Service Provider for purposes of the Plan and Option
Agreements because the Consulting Agreement expires by its own terms. Employee acknowledges that if any of the Options have been classified as
“incentive stock options” within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, such Options will convert into nonstatutory
stock options three (3) months and one (1) day after the Resignation Date. Furthermore, Employee acknowledges that in the event the Options are classified
as nonstatutory stock options on the date such Options are exercised, the income recognized upon such exercise will be considered wages that must be
reported on Employee’s W-2 and applicable tax withholding will be required. Employee agrees that the Company may refuse to process any such exercise
until Employee has made arrangements satisfactory to the Company to satisfy any such withholding obligations.
 

3. Benefits. Employee’s health insurance benefits will cease on June 30, 2004, subject to Employee’s right to continue his health insurance under
COBRA. Employee’s participation in all other benefits and incidents of employment will cease on the Resignation Date. Employee will cease accruing
employee benefits, including, but not limited to, vacation time and paid time off, as of the Resignation Date.
 

4. Confidential Information. Employee will continue to maintain the confidentiality of all confidential and proprietary information of the Company
and will continue to comply with the terms and conditions of the Confidentiality Agreement between Employee and the Company. Employee



will return all of the Company’s property and confidential and proprietary information in his possession to the Company.
 

5. Payment of Salary and Benefits. Employee acknowledges and represents that the Company has paid all salary, wages, bonuses, accrued vacation,
commissions and any and all other benefits due to Employee through the Resignation Date. Employee ceased accruing employee benefits, including, but not
limited to, vacation time and paid time off, as of the Resignation Date.
 

6. Release of Claims. Employee agrees that the foregoing consideration represents settlement in full of all outstanding obligations owed to Employee
by the Company and its officers, managers, supervisors, agents and employees. Employee, on his own behalf, and on behalf of his respective heirs, family
members, executors, agents, and assigns, hereby fully and forever releases the Company and its current and former officers, directors, employees, agents,
investors, shareholders, attorneys, administrators, affiliates, divisions, subsidiaries, predecessor and successor corporations, and assigns (“the Releasees”),
from, and agrees not to sue concerning, any claim, duty, obligation or cause of action relating to any matters of any kind, whether presently known or
unknown, suspected or unsuspected, that Employee may possess arising from any omissions, acts or facts that have occurred up until and including the
Effective Date of this Agreement including, without limitation:
 

(a) any and all claims relating to or arising from Employee’s employment relationship with the Company and the termination of that
relationship;

 
(b) any and all claims relating to, or arising from, Employee’s right to purchase, or actual purchase of shares of stock of the Company, including,

without limitation, any claims for fraud, misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of duty under applicable state corporate law, and securities
fraud under any state or federal law;

 
(c) any and all claims under the law of any jurisdiction including, but not limited to, wrongful discharge of employment, constructive discharge

from employment, termination in violation of public policy, discrimination, harassment, retaliation, fraud, fraudulent inducement, breach of contract,
both express and implied, breach of a covenant of good faith and fair dealing, both express and implied; promissory estoppel, negligent or intentional
infliction of emotional distress, negligent or intentional misrepresentation, negligent or intentional interference with contract or prospective economic
advantage, unfair business practices, defamation, libel, slander, negligence, personal injury, assault, battery, invasion of privacy, false imprisonment,
conversion, workers’ compensation and disability benefits;

 
(d) any and all claims for violation of any federal, state or municipal statute, including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of

1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Fair Labor
Standards Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the California Family Rights Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the Older
Workers Benefit Protection Act, The Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, and the
California Labor Code;



(e) any and all claims for violation of the federal, or any state, constitution;
 

(f) any and all claims arising out of any other laws and regulations relating to employment or employment discrimination;
 

(g) any claim for any loss, cost, damage, or expense arising out of any dispute over the non-withholding or other tax treatment of any of the
proceeds received by Employee as a result of this Agreement; and

 
(h) any and all claims for attorneys’ fees and costs.

 
The Company and Employee agree that the release set forth in this section will be and remain in effect in all respects as a complete general

release as to the matters released. This release does not extend to any obligations incurred under this Agreement.
 

7. Acknowledgement of Waiver of Claims Under ADEA. Employee acknowledges that he is waiving and releasing any rights he may have under the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (“ADEA”) and that this waiver and release is knowing and voluntary. Employee and the Company agree that
this waiver and release does not apply to any rights or claims that may arise under ADEA after the Effective Date of this Agreement. Employee acknowledges
that the consideration given for this waiver and release Agreement is in addition to anything of value to which Employee was already entitled. Employee
further acknowledges that he has been advised by this writing that:
 

(a) he should consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement;
 

(b) he has up to twenty-one (21) days within which to consider this Agreement;
 

(c) he has seven (7) days following his execution of this Agreement to revoke the Agreement;
 

(d) this Agreement will not be effective until the revocation period has expired; and
 

(e) nothing in this Agreement prevents or precludes Employee from challenging or seeking a determination in good faith of the validity of this
waiver under the ADEA, nor does it impose any condition precedent, penalties or costs for doing so, unless specifically authorized by federal law.

 
8. Civil Code Section 1542. Employee represents that he is not aware of any claim by him other than the claims that are released by this Agreement.

Employee acknowledges that he has been advised by legal counsel and is familiar with the provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542, which provides
as follows:
 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT
THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM



MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.
 
Employee, being aware of said code section, agrees to expressly waive any rights he may have thereunder, as well as under any other statute or common law
principles of similar effect.
 

9. No Pending or Future Lawsuits. Employee represents that he has no lawsuits, claims, or actions pending in his name, or on behalf of any other person
or entity, against the Company or any other person or entity referred to herein. Employee also represents that he does not intend to bring any claims on his
own behalf or on behalf of any other person or entity against the Company or any other person or entity referred to herein.
 

10. Confidentiality. The Parties acknowledge that Employee’s agreement to keep the terms and conditions of this Agreement confidential was a
material factor on which all parties relied in entering into this Agreement. Employee hereto agrees to use his best efforts to maintain in confidence the
existence of this Agreement, the contents and terms of this Agreement, and the consideration for this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“Settlement Information”). Employee agrees to take every reasonable precaution to prevent disclosure of any Settlement Information to third parties, and
agrees that there will be no publicity, directly or indirectly, concerning any Settlement Information. Employee agrees to take every precaution to disclose
Settlement Information only to those attorneys, accountants, governmental entities, and family members who have a reasonable need to know of such
Settlement Information.
 

11. No Cooperation. Employee agrees he will not act in any manner that might damage the business of the Company. Employee agrees that he will not
encourage, counsel or assist any attorneys or their clients in the presentation or prosecution of any disputes, differences, grievances, claims, charges, or
complaints by any third party against any of the Releasees, unless under a subpoena or other court order to do so. Employee will inform the Company in
writing within three (3) days of receiving any such subpoena or other court order.
 

12. Non-Disparagement. Employee agrees to refrain from any defamation, libel or slander of the Releasees, and any tortious interference with the
contracts, relationships and prospective economic advantage of the Releasees. Employee agrees that he will direct all inquiries by potential future employers
to Human Resources. The Company agrees that it and its executive officers will not disparage and will refrain from any defamation, libel or slander of the
Employee, and any tortious interference with the contracts, relationships and prospective economic advantage of the Employee.
 

13. Non-Solicitation. Employee agrees that for a period of twelve (12) months immediately following the Effective Date of this Agreement, Employee
will not either directly or indirectly solicit, induce, recruit or encourage any of the Company’s employees or consultants to leave their employment, or
attempt to do so, either for himself or any other person or entity.
 

14. Breach. Employee acknowledges and agrees that any breach of any provision of this Agreement will constitute a material breach of this Agreement
and will entitle the Company



immediately to recover and/or cease the severance benefits provided to Employee under this Agreement.
 

15. No Admission of Liability. The Parties understand and acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes a compromise and settlement of actual or
potential disputed claims. No action taken by the Parties hereto, or either of them, either previously or in connection with this Agreement will be deemed or
construed to be:
 

(a) an admission of the truth or falsity of any claims made or any potential claims; or
 

(b) an acknowledgment or admission by either party of any fault or liability whatsoever to the other party or to any third party.
 

16. Costs. The Parties will each bear their own costs, expert fees, attorneys’ fees and other fees incurred in connection with this Agreement, except as
provided herein.
 

17. Arbitration. The Parties agree that any and all disputes arising out of the terms of this Agreement, their interpretation, and any of the matters herein
released, will be subject to binding arbitration in Santa Clara County before the American Arbitration Association under its National Rules for the Resolution
of Employment Disputes or California Code of Civil Procedure. The Parties agree that the prevailing party in any arbitration will be entitled to injunctive
relief in any court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the arbitration award. The Parties agree that the prevailing party in any arbitration will be awarded its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. The Parties hereby agree to waive their right to have any dispute between them resolved in a court of law by a judge
or jury. This paragraph will not prevent either party from seeking injunctive relief (or any other provisional remedy) from any court having jurisdiction over
the Parties and the subject matter of their dispute relating to Employee’s obligations under this Agreement and the Confidentiality Agreement.
 

18. Tax Consequences. The Company makes no representations or warranties with respect to the tax consequences of the payment of any sums to
Employee under the terms of this Agreement. Employee agrees and understands that he is responsible for payment, if any, of local, state and/or federal taxes
on the sums paid hereunder by the Company and any penalties or assessments thereon. Employee further agrees to indemnify and hold the Company
harmless from any claims, demands, deficiencies, penalties, assessments, executions, judgments, or recoveries by any government agency against the
Company for any amounts claimed due on account of Employee’s failure to pay federal or state taxes or damages sustained by the Company by reason of any
such claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
 

19. Authority. The Company represents and warrants that the undersigned has the authority to act on behalf of the Company and to bind the Company
and all who may claim through it to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Employee represents and warrants that he has the capacity to act on his own
behalf and on behalf of all who might claim through him to bind them to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Each party warrants and represents that
there are no liens or claims of lien or assignments in law or equity or otherwise of or against any of the claims or causes of action released herein.



20. No Representations. Each party represents that it has had the opportunity to consult with an attorney, and has carefully read and understands the
scope and effect of the provisions of this Agreement. In entering into this Agreement, neither party has relied upon any representations or statements made by
the other party hereto which are not specifically set forth in this Agreement.
 

21. Severability. In the event that any provision, or any portion thereof, becomes or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal,
unenforceable or void, this Agreement will continue in full force and effect without said provision or portion of said provision.
 

22. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding between the Company and Employee concerning the subject
matter of this Agreement and Employee’s relationship with the Company, and supersedes and replaces any and all prior agreements and understandings
between the Parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement and Employee’s relationship with the Company, with the exception of the
Confidentiality Agreement, the Consulting Agreement, the Plan, and, to the extent not amended hereby, the Option Agreements.
 

23. No Waiver. The failure of the Company to insist upon the performance of any of the terms and conditions in this Agreement, or the failure to
prosecute any breach of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, will not be construed thereafter as a waiver of any such terms or conditions. This
entire Agreement will remain in full force and effect as if no such forbearance or failure of performance had occurred.
 

24. No Oral Modification. This Agreement may only be amended in a writing signed by Employee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
 

25. Governing Law. This Agreement will be construed, interpreted, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California,
without regard to choice-of-law provisions. Employee hereby consents to personal and exclusive jurisdiction and venue in the State of California.
 

26. Effective Date. This Agreement will become effective on the date that (i) it has been signed by both parties and (ii) eight (8) days have passed since
Employee has signed it.
 

27. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each counterpart will have the same force and effect as an original and will
constitute an effective, binding agreement on the part of each of the undersigned.
 

28. Voluntary Execution of Agreement. This Agreement is executed voluntarily and without any duress or undue influence on the part or behalf of the
Parties hereto, with the full intent of releasing all claims. The Parties acknowledge that:
 

(a) They have read this Agreement;
 

(b) They have been represented in the preparation, negotiation, and execution of this Agreement by legal counsel of their own choice or that
they have voluntarily declined to seek such counsel;



(c) They understand the terms and consequences of this Agreement and of the releases it contains; and
 

(d) They are fully aware of the legal and binding effect of this Agreement.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the respective dates set forth below.
 
    BRIAN MCDONALD

Dated: 6/23/2004    By:  /s/    Brian McDonald        
        Brian McDonald

    MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.

Dated: 6/23/2004    By:  /s/    Michael Hsing        
      Name: Michael Hsing
      Title:  CEO
 



EXHIBIT A
 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT
 

MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.
 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT
 

This Consulting Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of June 22, 2004 by and between Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) and
Brian McDonald (“Consultant”). The Company desires to retain Consultant as an independent contractor to perform consulting services for the Company,
and Consultant is willing to perform such services, on the terms described below. In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree
as follows:
 

1. Services and Compensation. Consultant agrees to perform for the Company the services described in Exhibit A (the “Services”), and the Company
agrees to pay Consultant the compensation described in Exhibit A for Consultant’s performance of the Services.
 

2. Confidentiality.
 

A. Definition. “Confidential Information” means any non-public information that relates to the actual or anticipated business or research and
development of the Company, technical data, trade secrets or know-how, including, but not limited to, research, product plans or other information
regarding Company’s products or services and markets therefor, customer lists and customers (including, but not limited to, customers of the Company
on whom Consultant called or with whom Consultant became acquainted during the term of this Agreement), software, developments, inventions,
processes, formulas, technology, designs, drawing, engineering, hardware configuration information, marketing, finances or other business information.
Confidential Information does not include information that (i) is known to Consultant at the time of disclosure to Consultant by the Company as
evidenced by written records of Consultant, (ii) has become publicly known and made generally available through no wrongful act of Consultant or
(iii) has been rightfully received by Consultant from a third party who is authorized to make such disclosure.

 
B. Nonuse and Nondisclosure. Consultant will not, during or subsequent to the term of this Agreement, (i) use the Confidential Information for

any purpose whatsoever other than the performance of the Services on behalf of the Company or (ii) disclose the Confidential Information to any third
party. Consultant agrees that all Confidential Information will remain the sole property of the Company. Consultant also agrees to take all reasonable
precautions to prevent any unauthorized disclosure of such Confidential Information.

 
C. Former Client Confidential Information. Consultant agrees that Consultant will not, during the term of this Agreement, improperly use or

disclose any proprietary information or trade secrets of any former or current employer of Consultant or other person or entity with which Consultant
has an agreement or duty to keep in confidence information acquired by Consultant, if any. Consultant also agrees that Consultant will not bring onto
the Company’s premises any unpublished document or proprietary information belonging to any such employer, person or entity unless consented to
in writing by such employer, person or entity.



D. Third Party Confidential Information. Consultant recognizes that the Company has received and in the future will receive from third parties
their confidential or proprietary information subject to a duty on the Company’s part to maintain the confidentiality of such information and to use it
only for certain limited purposes. Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Agreement and thereafter, Consultant owes the Company and such
third parties a duty to hold all such confidential or proprietary information in the strictest confidence and not to disclose it to any person, firm or
corporation or to use it except as necessary in carrying out the Services for the Company consistent with the Company’s agreement with such third
party.

 
E. Return of Materials. Upon the termination of this Agreement, or upon Company’s earlier request, Consultant will deliver to the Company all

of the Company’s property, including but not limited to all electronically stored information and passwords to access such property, or Confidential
Information that Consultant may have in Consultant’s possession or control.

 
3. Ownership.

 
A. Assignment. Consultant agrees that all copyrightable material, notes, records, drawings, designs, inventions, improvements, developments,

discoveries and trade secrets conceived, discovered, developed or reduced to practice by Consultant, solely or in collaboration with others, during the
term of this Agreement that relate to the products, technology or research and development of the Company, that are created using any facilities,
equipment, supplies or trade secret information of Company or that are created in connection with performing the Services under this Agreement
(collectively, “Inventions”), are the sole property of the Company. Consultant also agrees to assign (or cause to be assigned) and hereby assigns fully
to the Company all Inventions and any copyrights, patents, mask work rights or other intellectual property rights relating to all Inventions.

 
B. Further Assurances. Consultant agrees to assist Company, or its designee, at the Company’s expense, in every proper way to secure the

Company’s rights in Inventions and any copyrights, patents, mask work rights or other intellectual property rights relating to all Inventions in any and
all countries, including the disclosure to the Company of all pertinent information and data with respect to all Inventions, the execution of all
applications, specifications, oaths, assignments and all other instruments that the Company may deem necessary in order to apply for and obtain such
rights and in order to assign and convey to the Company, its successors, assigns and nominees the sole and exclusive right, title and interest in and to
all Inventions, and any copyrights, patents, mask work rights or other intellectual property rights relating to all Inventions. Consultant also agrees that
Consultant’s obligation to execute or cause to be executed any such instrument or papers shall continue after the termination of this Agreement.

 
C. Pre-Existing Materials. Subject to Section 3.A, Consultant agrees that if, in the course of performing the Services, Consultant incorporates

into any Invention developed under this Agreement any pre-existing invention, improvement, development, concept, discovery or other proprietary
information owned by Consultant or in which Consultant has an interest, (i) Consultant will inform Company, in writing before incorporating such
invention, improvement, development, concept, discovery or other proprietary information into any Invention, and (ii) the Company is



hereby granted a nonexclusive, royalty-free, perpetual, irrevocable, worldwide license to make, have made, modify, use and sell such item as part of or
in connection with such Invention. Consultant will not incorporate any invention, improvement, development, concept, discovery or other proprietary
information owned by any third party into any Invention without Company’s prior written permission.

 
D. Attorney-in-Fact. Consultant agrees that, if the Company is unable because of Consultant’s unavailability, dissolution, mental or physical

incapacity, or for any other reason, to secure Consultant’s signature for the purpose of applying for or pursuing any application for any United States or
foreign patents or mask work or copyright registrations covering the Inventions assigned to the Company in Section 3.A, then Consultant hereby
irrevocably designates and appoints the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as Consultant’s agent and attorney-in-fact, to act for and
on Consultant’s behalf to execute and file any such applications and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the prosecution and issuance of
patents, copyright and mask work registrations with the same legal force and effect as if executed by Consultant.

 
4. Conflicting Obligations.

 
A. Conflicts. Consultant certifies that Consultant has no outstanding agreement or obligation that is in conflict with any of the provisions of this

Agreement or that would preclude Consultant from complying with the provisions of this Agreement. Consultant will not enter into any such
conflicting agreement during the term of this Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, Consultant is permitted to enter into any other employment or
independent contracting relationships concurrent with this Agreement. Consultant’s violation of this Section 4.A will be considered a material breach
under Section 6.B.

 
B. Substantially Similar Designs. In view of Consultant’s access to the Company’s trade secrets and proprietary know-how, Consultant agrees

that, if and to the extent that Consultant contributes to or has access to any semiconductor circuit or other product designs or technology of Company,
Consultant will not, without Company’s prior written approval, design identical or substantially similar semiconductor circuit or other product designs
as those developed under this Agreement for any third party during the term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months after the
termination of this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that the obligations in this Section 4 are ancillary to Consultant’s nondisclosure obligations
under Section 2.

 
5. Reports. Consultant also agrees that Consultant will, from time to time during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, keep the

Company advised as to Consultant’s progress in performing the Services under this Agreement. Consultant further agrees that Consultant will, as requested
by the Company, prepare written reports with respect to such progress. The Company and Consultant agree that the time required to prepare such written
reports will be considered time devoted to the performance of the Services.
 

6. Term and Termination.
 

A. Term. The term of this Agreement will begin on June 22, 2004 and will continue until the earlier of (i) September 24, 2004, or (ii) termination
as provided in Section 6.B.



B. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon giving the other party 14 days’ prior written notice of such termination
pursuant to Section 11.E of this Agreement in the event that the other party is in breach of any material provision of this Agreement, which breach is
not cured within such notice period.

 
C. Survival. Upon such termination, all rights and duties of the Company and Consultant toward each other shall cease except:

 
(1) The Company will pay, within 30 days after the effective date of termination, all amounts owing to Consultant for Services completed

and accepted by the Company prior to the termination date and related expenses, if any, submitted in accordance with the Company’s policies
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 1 of this Agreement; and

 
(2) Section 2 (Confidentiality), Section 3 (Ownership), Section 4 (Conflicting Obligations), Section 7 (Independent Contractor; Benefits),

Section 8 (Indemnification), Section 9 (Nonsolicitation) and Section 10 (Arbitration and Equitable Relief) will survive termination of this
Agreement.

 
7. Independent Contractor; Benefits.

 
A. Independent Contractor. It is the express intention of the Company and Consultant that Consultant perform the Services as an independent

contractor to the Company. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way be construed to constitute Consultant as an agent, employee or representative
of the Company. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Consultant is not authorized to bind the Company to any liability or obligation or
to represent that Consultant has any such authority. Consultant agrees to furnish (or reimburse the Company for) all tools and materials necessary to
accomplish this Agreement and shall incur all expenses associated with performance, except as expressly provided in Exhibit A. Consultant
acknowledges and agrees that Consultant is obligated to report as income all compensation received by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.
Consultant agrees to and acknowledges the obligation to pay all self-employment and other taxes on such income.

 
B. Benefits. The Company and Consultant agree that Consultant will receive no Company-sponsored benefits from the Company. If Consultant

is reclassified by a state or federal agency or court as Company’s employee, Consultant will become a reclassified employee and will receive no
benefits from the Company, except those mandated by state or federal law, even if by the terms of the Company’s benefit plans or programs of the
Company in effect at the time of such reclassification, Consultant would otherwise be eligible for such benefits.

 
8. Indemnification. Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its directors, officers and employees from and against all taxes,

losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and other legal expenses, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with (i)
any negligent, reckless or intentionally wrongful act of Consultant or Consultant’s assistants, employees or agents, (ii) any breach by the Consultant or
Consultant’s assistants, employees or agents of any of the covenants contained in this Agreement, (iii) any failure of Consultant to perform the Services in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations,



or (iv) any violation or claimed violation of a third party’s rights resulting in whole or in part from the Company’s use of the work product of
Consultant under this Agreement.

 
9. Nonsolicitation. From the date of this Agreement until 12 months after the termination of this Agreement (the “Restricted Period”), Consultant will

not, without the Company’s prior written consent, directly or indirectly, solicit or encourage any employee or contractor of the Company or its affiliates to
terminate employment with, or cease providing services to, the Company or its affiliates. During the Restricted Period, Consultant will not, whether for
Consultant’s own account or for the account of any other person, firm, corporation or other business organization, intentionally interfere with any person who
is or during the period of Consultant’s engagement by the Company was a partner, supplier, customer or client of the Company or its affiliates.
 

10. Arbitration and Equitable Relief.
 

A. Arbitration. Consultant agrees that any and all controversies, claims or disputes with anyone (including the Company and any employee,
officer, director, shareholder or benefit plan of the Company, in its capacity as such or otherwise) arising out of, relating to or resulting from
Consultant’s performance of the Services under this Agreement or the termination of this Agreement, including any breach of this Agreement, shall be
subject to binding arbitration under the Arbitration Rules set forth in California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1280 through 1294.2, including
Section 1283.05 (the “Rules”) and pursuant to California law. CONSULTANT AGREES TO ARBITRATE, AND THEREBY AGREES TO WAIVE ANY
RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO, ALL DISPUTES ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO: ANY STATUTORY CLAIMS UNDER STATE OR FEDERAL LAW, CLAIMS UNDER TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF
1964, THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, THE AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1967, THE OLDER
WORKERS BENEFIT PROTECTION ACT, THE CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING ACT, THE CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE,
CLAIMS OF HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION OR WRONGFUL TERMINATION AND ANY STATUTORY CLAIMS. Consultant understands that
this Agreement to arbitrate also applies to any disputes that the Company may have with Consultant.

 
B. Procedure. Consultant agrees that any arbitration will be administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), and that a neutral

arbitrator will be selected in a manner consistent with its National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes. Consultant agrees that the
arbitrator will have the power to decide any motions brought by any party to the arbitration, including discovery motions, motions for summary
judgment and/or adjudication and motions to dismiss and demurrers, prior to any arbitration hearing. Consultant agrees that the arbitrator will issue a
written decision on the merits. Consultant also agrees that the arbitrator will have the power to award any remedies, including attorneys’ fees and costs,
available under applicable law. Consultant understands that the Company will pay for any administrative or hearing fees charged by the arbitrator or
AAA, except that Consultant shall pay the first $200.00 of any filing fees associated with any arbitration Consultant initiates. Consultant agrees that
the arbitrator will administer and conduct any arbitration in a manner consistent with the Rules and that, to the extent that the AAA’s



National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes conflict with the Rules, the Rules will take precedence.
 

C. Remedy. Except as provided by the Rules, arbitration will be the sole, exclusive and final remedy for any dispute between the Company and
Consultant. Accordingly, except as provided for by the Rules, neither the Company nor Consultant will be permitted to pursue court action regarding
claims that are subject to arbitration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the arbitrator will not have the authority to disregard or refuse to enforce any
lawful Company policy, and the arbitrator shall not order or require the Company to adopt a policy not otherwise required by law which the Company
has not adopted.

 
D. Availability of Injunctive Relief. In addition to the right under the Rules to petition the court for provisional relief, Consultant agrees that any

party may also petition the court for injunctive relief where either party alleges or claims a violation of Sections 2 (Confidentiality), 3 (Ownership) or 4
(Conflicting Obligations) of this Agreement or any other agreement regarding trade secrets, confidential information, nonsolicitation or Labor Code
§2870. In the event either the Company or Consultant seeks injunctive relief, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable costs and
attorneys’ fees.

 
E. Administrative Relief. Consultant understands that this Agreement does not prohibit Consultant from pursuing an administrative claim with a

local, state or federal administrative body such as the Department of Fair Employment and Housing, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
or the workers’ compensation board. This Agreement does, however, preclude Consultant from pursuing court action regarding any such claim.

 
F. Voluntary Nature of Agreement. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that Consultant is executing this Agreement voluntarily and without

any duress or undue influence by the Company or anyone else. Consultant further acknowledges and agrees that Consultant has carefully read this
Agreement and has asked any questions needed to understand the terms, consequences and binding effect of this Agreement and fully understand it,
including that Consultant is waiving its right to a jury trial. Finally, Consultant agrees that Consultant has been provided an opportunity to seek the
advice of an attorney of its choice before signing this Agreement.

 
11. Miscellaneous.

 
A. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of California without regard to California’s conflicts of law rules.

 
B. Assignability. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Consultant may not sell, assign or delegate any rights or obligations under this

Agreement.
 

C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement
and supersedes all prior written and oral agreements between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.

 
D. Headings. Headings are used in this Agreement for reference only and shall not be considered when interpreting this Agreement.



E. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted by this Agreement to be given to a party shall be in writing and shall be
deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial messenger or courier service, or mailed by U.S. registered or certified mail (return receipt
requested), or sent via facsimile (with receipt of confirmation of complete transmission) to the party at the party’s address or facsimile number written
below or at such other address or facsimile number as the party may have previously specified by like notice. If by mail, delivery shall be deemed
effective 3 business days after mailing in accordance with this Section 11(E).

 
(1) If to the Company, to:

983 University Avenue, Building A
Los Gatos, CA 95032
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
Telephone: (408) 357-6600
Facsimile: (408) 357-6750

 
(2) If to Consultant, to the address for notice on the signature page to this Agreement or, if no such address is provided, to the last address of

Consultant provided by Consultant to the Company.
 

F. Attorneys’ Fees. In any court action at law or equity that is brought by one of the parties to this Agreement to enforce or interpret the
provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, in addition to any other relief to which that party may
be entitled.

 
G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable, the other provisions shall remain effective and

enforceable to the greatest extent permitted by law.
 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Consulting Agreement effective as of the date first set forth above.
 
CONSULTANT    MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.

By:  /s/    Brian McDonald            By:  /s/    Michael Hsing        
Name: Brian McDonald    Name: Michael Hsing
Title:  Self    Title:  CEO
 
Address for Notice:

  Brian McDonald
  5821 Algonquin Way
  San Jose, CA 95138



EXHIBIT A
 

Services and Compensation
 

1. Contact. Consultant’s principal Company contact:
 

Name:  Michael Hsing                                             
 

Title:  CEO                                                             
 

2. Services. The Services consist of the following:
 

Consultant will provide consulting and advisory services relating to financial and accounting matters and to projects or work in process that had been
within the Consultant’s areas of responsibility while he served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, including such appropriate tasks as the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board”) may request as necessary and appropriate to assist Timothy Christoffersen transition into the position of the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer. Consultant will not be required to provide more than one work day (eight hours) per calendar week in services under this Agreement,
except as mutually agreed by Consultant and the Company.
 

3. Compensation.
 

A. The Company will pay Consultant $60.00 per hour for every hour of service actually performed under this Agreement.
 

B. The Company will reimburse Consultant for all reasonable expenses incurred by Consultant in performing the Services pursuant to this
Agreement, if Consultant receives written consent from an authorized agent of the Company prior to incurring such expenses and submits receipts for
such expenses to the Company in accordance with Company policy.

 
Every two weeks, Consultant shall submit to the Company a written invoice for Services and expenses, and such statement shall be subject to the

approval of the contact person listed above or other designated agent of the Company.
 
Effective as of June 22, 2004
 



CONSULTANT    MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.

By:  /s/    Brian McDonald           By:  /s/    Michael Hsing     
Name: Brian McDonald    Name: Michael Hsing
Title:  Self    Title:  CEO



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO
 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT
 

This Amendment (this “Amendment”), dated as of September 24, 2004 is made by and between Monolithic Power Systems, Inc., a California
corporation (the “Company”), and Brian McDonald (“Consultant”).
 

R E C I T A L S
 

WHEREAS, the Company and Consultant have entered into a Consulting Agreement dated June 22, 2004 (the “Consulting Agreement”);
 

WHEREAS, Section 6.A. of the Consulting Agreement provides, among other things, that the Consulting Agreement would terminate on September
24, 2004; and
 

WHEREAS, the Company and Consultant desire to amend the Consulting Agreement to extend the term of such agreement until December 24, 2004.
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
 

1. Amendment. Section 6.A. of the Consulting Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:
 

“Term. The term of this Agreement will begin on June 22, 2004 and will continue until the earlier of (i) December 24, 2004, or (ii)
termination as provided in Section 6.B.”

 
2. Limitation. Except as amended above, the Consulting Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. For avoidance of doubt, the Severance

Agreement and Release between the Company and Consultant executed on June 23, 2004 (the “Severance Agreement”) shall remain in full force and effect
and shall be unaffected by the Amendment.
 

3. Miscellaneous.
 

A. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of California without regard to California’s conflicts of law rules.
 

B. Assignability. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment or the Consulting Agreement, Consultant may not sell, assign or delegate any
rights or obligations under this Amendment or the Consulting Agreement.
 

C. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Amendment, the Consulting Agreement and the Severance Agreement constitute the full and entire
understanding and agreement between the parties with regard to the subject matter hereof and thereof.



D. Headings. Headings are used in this Amendment for reference only and shall not be considered when interpreting this Amendment.
 

F. Attorneys’ Fees. In any court action at law or equity that is brought by one of the parties to this Agreement to enforce or interpret the
provisions of this Amendment, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, in addition to any other relief to which that party may be
entitled.
 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Amendment is found to be illegal or unenforceable, the other provisions shall remain effective and
enforceable to the greatest extent permitted by law.
 

H. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be enforceable, and all of which together
shall constitute one instrument.
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment effective as of the date first set forth above.
 
CONSULTANT   MONOLITHIC POWER SYSTEMS, INC.

By:
 

/s/ Brian McDonald
  

By:
 

/s/ Tim Christoffersen

Name:  Brian McDonald   Name:  Tim Christoffersen
Title:  Consultant   Title:  CFO
 
Address for Notice:
 
5821 Algonquin Way
San Jose, CA 95138



Exhibit 23.1
 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 

We consent to the use in this Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 333-117327 of Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. on Form S-1
of our report dated March 31, 2004 (August 19, 2004 as to Note 16 and October 6, 2004 as to Note 11; which report expresses an unqualified
opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to lawsuits related to alleged patent infringement and alleged misappropriation of trade
secrets) appearing in the Prospectus, which is part of this Registration Statement.
 

We also consent to the reference to us under the heading “Experts” in such Prospectus.
 
/s/  Deloitte & Touche LLP
 
 
San Jose, California
October 8, 2004



Exhibit 23.3
 

Chen and Lin
Taipei, Taiwan R.O.C.

 
October 8, 2004
 
Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.
983 University Avenue
Building A
Los Gatos, CA 95032
 

Re: Monolithic Power Systems, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1.
 
Dear Sirs:
 

We hereby consent to the reference to our firm under the captions “Experts,” “Risk Factors—If we are unsuccessful in our current lawsuits
with O2 Micro International Limited in either the U.S. or in Taiwan, we could be enjoined from selling many of our products and/or be required to
pay substantial damages or fines. Any unfavorable outcome would cause our revenues to decline significantly and severely harm our business and
operating results,” and “Legal Proceedings—O2 Micro—Taiwan Litigation” and in Note 11 under “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” in
Monolithic Power Systems, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1.
 

Very truly yours,
CHEN AND LIN

By:
 

/s/    C.H. CHEN        

  C.H. Chen
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